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Statement of Compliance
Hon Peter Collier MLC
Minister for Aboriginal Affairs
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016
In accordance with Section 63 of the Financial
Management Act 2006, I hereby submit for
information and presentation to Parliament, the
Annual Reports for the Department of Aboriginal
Affairs and the Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority
for the financial year ended 30 June 2016.
These Annual Reports have been prepared in
accordance with the provisions of the Financial
Management Act 2006.

Cliff Weeks
Director General
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Agency Overview
•

From the Director General

•

A spotlight on the Department

•

Key numbers in 2015-16

•

An Introduction to the Department

•

Significant Issues and Opportunities

•

Performance Management Framework

The Department of Aboriginal Affairs is the lead State
Government agency responsible for ensuring better
outcomes for Aboriginal people.
It does this through:
• preserving and protecting Aboriginal sites to deliver
optimal social, financial and environmental returns for
Western Australians;
• releasing the potential of land for the utilisation of
Aboriginal people to achieve their social, economic and
cultural aspirations;
• supporting Aboriginal people to advance their priorities,
through community led policy, partnerships and programs;
and
• improving accountability for the delivery of outcomes from
government investment for Aboriginal people.
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From the Director General
It is with great pleasure that I report on the performance of the Department of Aboriginal Affairs
(Department) for the 2015-16 financial year.
It has been a transformative year with improvements in our services, systems, engagement and
performance driving positive progress in outcomes for Aboriginal people.
We continue to build important relationships with our stakeholders, including Aboriginal people,
government, industry and community through improved consultation, communication and public
oriented programs, including the Reconciliation Week Banner Project and the Partnership, Acceptance,
Learning and Sharing (PALS) program.
The Reconciliation Week Banner project has continued to grow with 150 organisations, public and private,
large and small, joining together to promote and celebrate reconciliation, by sponsoring 329 banners
across Perth and ten local government areas.

Cliff Weeks, Director General
Department of Aboriginal Affairs

We continue to foster understanding and awareness in school children across the State through the PALS program. In 2015-16 the
program significantly exceeded our expectations with the Department funding 679 projects by 520 schools across Western Australia. The
awareness of, and appreciation for, Aboriginal history and culture is vital to a more harmonious future.
We listen to our stakeholders and have adjusted many aspects of our business to respond to the feedback provided to us through our
annual stakeholder survey. In the 2014/15 survey, our stakeholders told us that they expected better engagement with Aboriginal people,
more engagement with communities, clearer communication on the Department’s roles and activities, and a greater focus on the
personalisation of our services.
We have responded to these demands through increased visits to Aboriginal communities, more stakeholder forums, and coordinating
exhibitions and publications to celebrate Aboriginal culture and success.
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This year we have focussed on improving our consultation
practices and provided more opportunities for Aboriginal people
to work with us, have their say and to share information.
In 2015-16, the Department coordinated heritage forums in
Broome, Geraldton, Kalgoorlie, Karratha, Perth and the South
West aimed at improving mutual understanding and use of
existing heritage assets, building trusting relationships and sharing
information.
We have invested in system improvements and processes that
deliver a more personal level of service, including the digitisation
of Aboriginal family history information, faster responses to family
history requests, and ancestral remains repatriation.
We have focussed on communicating better, utilising our new
social media tools, our website, and email newsletters, which
provide a platform to inform and educate, whilst delivering greater
transparency in reporting against commitments.
Our communications have focussed on ensuring a more balanced
representation of how the state of Aboriginal affairs is presented,
with newsletters and social media stories shared on Twitter and
LinkedIn that highlight important events, achievements and issues
in Aboriginal affairs. It is important to look beyond the
disadvantage and ensure that the success stories and positive rolemodels in modern Aboriginal culture are promoted and
celebrated.
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We have invested in being better and smarter in our business,
seeking opportunities to reduce red tape, which makes our
services more accessible. We have adopted operating principles
based on intelligence, technology, innovation and communication.
With these operating principles, we have delivered significant cost
savings, exceeded many of our performance targets, and
implemented new corporate systems and processes that provide
greater opportunity for data analytics for evidence based policy
and regulatory processes.
Savings to government were achieved through adherence to the
government’s budgetary correction measures and through
initiatives to minimise expenditure in the context of the broader
whole of government fiscal situation. Generally, the Department
managed to constrain spending to 2014-15 levels.
We have continued to improve our stakeholder satisfaction rating
to 81 per cent, an increase of two per cent on the last year, and
trending upward.
As the changes that occurred during the year settle, we expect to
see these results continue to improve into future years.
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These successes however have not been without challenges.
Aboriginal people continue to be the most disadvantaged in
our State which, whilst improving in some key areas,
addressing disadvantage remains a key priority for the
Department and the government for many years.
The investments in our systems development has enabled us
to capture an enormous amount of data and information to
facilitate improved intelligence on issues, events and
locations to manage Aboriginal affairs more effectively.
We have boosted our performance accountability role across
government and are delivering strategic projects such as the
Aboriginal Affairs Coordinating Committee’s interagency data
warehouse, to provide government and the Department with
critical information and insights into trends and performance
of government against the Closing the Gap indicators.
I acknowledge the ongoing support and guidance of the
Hon Peter Collier MLC, Minister for Aboriginal Affairs and his
staff. In particular, the Minister’s leadership as Chair of the
Aboriginal Affairs Cabinet Sub Committee, which has set the
direction for improvements to address the disparity between
the living standards of Aboriginal people and the rest of the
community.

The level of transformation across the Department has been
dramatic and will continue into 2016-17. Whilst this change is
essential, it has been disruptive to employees and stakeholders,
with high levels of change, new systems, new processes and new
skills required to stay ahead amidst budget constraints and an
increasing demand for services.
I acknowledge the impact these changes have had on the people
of the Department. I thank them for their perseverance,
continued commitment and drive to deliver positive outcomes
for Aboriginal people, whilst meeting the ongoing challenges
faced by public sector agencies.
I am proud of the achievements of the Department of Aboriginal
Affairs for the 2015-16 financial year and I am committed to the
ongoing progress towards business improvement to ensure
better outcomes for Aboriginal people into the future.

CLIFF WEEKS
DIRECTOR GENERAL
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A spotlight on the Department
Financial performance per year $’000
$36,588

$32,948

Aboriginal Australians employed at DAA
$35,660

$32,379

$32,017

DAA

$32,003

24.5%

WA PUBLIC SECTOR
Total Cost of Service

2014

2015

2016

Net Cost of Service
Women in Leadership at DAA

Stakeholder Satisfaction per year

75%

65%

2.7%

72%

79%

81%

Two of five Tier 2 positions held by women
Target

2013

2014

Planned commitments
Not Delivered
1%
Deferred
4%

Delivered
95%

2015

2016

Key Performance Targets
On Target
20%

2015-16 Gender diversity

Below Target
20%

37%

63%

Better than target
60%
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Key numbers for 2015-16

5269
land access permits granted

More than

1600
heritage advices provided

889
Aboriginal history
related requests
received

150

organisations participated in
the Reconciliation Street
Banners project
(37% increase from 2014-15)

8

Commonwealth-State project
or negotiation forums held

23

State-level project or policy
meetings held

329 520
679
8

banners were sponsored in
2015-16 (37% increase from
2014-15)

schools are delivering

Street Banners Project
expanded to

additional local governments
participating from 2014-15

PALS projects in 2016 (42%
increase in the number of
participating schools and 61%
increase in the number of
projects from 2015)
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56

leases and subleases over ALT
Reserves, Freehold and Pastoral
land approved

11

273
requests from external
researchers received

103
submissions to the
ALT considered

repatriations, including

23

sets of ancestral remains reburied

96

requests for Native Title
information received
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An introduction to the Department
The Department of Aboriginal Affairs is the lead State Government
agency responsible for ensuring better outcomes for Aboriginal people.
It does this through:
• preserving and protecting Aboriginal sites to deliver optimal social,
financial and environmental returns for Western Australians;
• releasing the potential of land for the utilisation of Aboriginal people to
achieve their social, economic and cultural aspirations;
• supporting Aboriginal people to advance their priorities, through
community led policy, partnerships and programs; and
• improving accountability for the delivery of outcomes from government
investment for Aboriginal people.

Our

Purpose

Managing Aboriginal heritage and land held in trust for future
generations.
Ensuring better outcomes for Aboriginal people through community
development and government investments.

Our

Future

Aboriginal people benefit from the same opportunities as non-Aboriginal
people whilst maintaining a strong, vibrant culture.

Our

Operating Principles
Intelligence enables better insights, problem solving and service design.
Technology enables faster workflows, improved access to data and
opportunity to reduce regulatory burden to stakeholders.
Innovation enables better business processes and improved
productivity.
Communication and engagement enables transparent and accountable
decision making and service delivery.
11

Part 1 – Agency Overview

Page 12
Responsible Minister
The Department of Aboriginal Affairs is responsible to the Hon Peter
Collier MLC, Minister for Education; Aboriginal Affairs; Electoral
Affairs.

Enabling Legislation
The Department of Aboriginal Affairs is established as a department
under section 35 of the Public Sector Management Act 1994.

Our

Values

Embrace Aboriginal culture: Respect Aboriginal cultural values and
ways of working and promote an improved understanding in the
wider community.
Show respect: Value the worth of individuals, Aboriginal expertise,
the knowledge of Elders and our Australian Indigenous History.
Take responsibility: Take ownership of our actions and clearly
articulate their purpose and outcomes.
Act with Integrity: Earn and sustain public trust by performing our
work conscientiously, reliably and transparently.
Foster Innovation: Develop leading edge approaches and translate
them into tangible action for the benefit of the community.

Administered Legislation
The Department of Aboriginal Affairs is responsible for administering
the following legislation that affect the wellbeing of Aboriginal
people:
Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority Act 1972

Achieve Excellence: Strive to do things better and collectively
create a culture of the community.

• Covers consultation, planning, coordination and adequacy of services for Aboriginal people.
• Establishes the Aboriginal Lands Trust, which has operational functions related to land.

Aboriginal Heritage Act 1972

• Provides specific responsibilities relating to the management and protection of heritage
sites.

Aboriginal Communities Act 1979

• Enables Aboriginal people to establish by-laws that govern conduct on, and access to,
community lands.
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as at 30 June 2016

MINISTER FOR ABORIGINAL AFFAIRS
HON PETER COLLIER MLC
DIRECTOR GENERAL
CLIFF WEEKS

ASSISTANT
DIRECTOR
GENERAL

EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR,
CORPORATE
SERVICES

EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR,
HERITAGE

EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR,
LANDS

EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR,
ACCOUNTABLE
GOVERNMENT

EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR,
COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT

VAUGHAN DAVIES

GLEN KAR

TIFFINY VALE

NEIL THOMSON

LUCY GUNN

ROSS TOMASINI

− Boards and
Committees
− Ministerial Liaison
Unit
− Office of the Director
General Executive
− Policy
− Strategy and
Performance

− Finance
− Human Resources
− Information Solutions
− Legal Services

− Advice and approvals
− Officer of Chief
Heritage Officer
− Site Assessment

− Land Operations
− Land Governance

Click on structure to link to relevant page or website

− Economic
Development
− Governance &
Coordination
− Intergovernmental
Unit
− Regional
Coordination

− Community
Partnerships
− Community Programs
− Social Innovation
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Aboriginal Heritage Amendment Bill 2014
Roe 8 Supreme Court Action
Robinson v Fielding Supreme Court Decision
Preserving our Aboriginal Sites Grants Program
Aboriginal Lands Trust Pastoral Leases and Rangelands
Town Based Reserves
Yagan Memorial Park
Aboriginal Business Directory WA
Youth Investment Reforms
Partnership, Acceptance, Learning and Sharing Program (PALS)
The Reconciliation Week Banners Project
Aboriginal Community Patrols
Grants Directory
South West Native Title Settlement
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Aboriginal Heritage Amendment Bill 2014
The Aboriginal Heritage Amendment Bill 2014 (the Bill) was
introduced into the Legislative Assembly’s Notice Paper in February
2016. The Bill contains a number of important reforms to the
Aboriginal Heritage Act 1972 (the Act). The reforms increase
penalties for site damage, streamline the decision making process
for approvals under section 18 of the Act, and empower Aboriginal
people by encouraging early engagement between land users and
Aboriginal people. The amendments will also provide the basis for
reinvigorating the Honorary Warden provisions in the Act so that
Aboriginal people may play a greater role in the management and
protection of their own heritage.

Roe 8 Supreme Court Action
On 30 March 2016, the Department, on behalf of the Aboriginal
Cultural Material Committee (ACMC), was served with an
application for judicial review. The judicial review was for the
ACMC’s 2015 decision regarding Aboriginal sites DAA 3709 (North
Lake and Bibra Lake), DAA 4107 (Bibra Lake) and Aboriginal heritage
place DAA 3296 (Hope Road Swamp/Bibra Lake).
A Supreme Court hearing was held before Justice Pritchard on
29 June 2016. Justice Pritchard has reserved her decision on this
matter at the time of this report.
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Robinson v Fielding Supreme Court Decision
On 18 June 2014, an application was made to the Supreme Court
for a review of a decision, made by the ACMC, relating to
Aboriginal site DAA 22874 (Marapikurrinya Yintha) at Port
Hedland Harbour.
On 1 April 2015, Hon Justice Chaney handed down his decision in
the case Robinson v Fielding [2015] WASC 108 relating to the
Aboriginal Heritage Act 1972 and concluded that the ACMC did
not take into consideration matters it should have in reassessing
DAA 22874, and failed to afford procedural fairness to the
applicants. Justice Chaney found that the ACMC used an
incorrect interpretation of section 5(b) and ordered that the
ACMC reassess its earlier decision in relation to DAA 22874.
The Supreme Court decision had direct ramifications for a further
34 places, which required reassessment by the ACMC, and
indirectly on the site assessment processes and provision of
advice by the Department on heritage matters. The decision also
proved that the effective operation of the AHA required input
from Aboriginal people, and that Aboriginal people are, and will
remain, the principal source of information about the existence of
sites to which the Act applies, and the significance and
importance of those sites.
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Preserving our Aboriginal Sites Grants Program
The Preserving our Aboriginal Sites Grants Program creates
opportunities for the Aboriginal not-for-profit sector to undertake
projects that help to preserve important Aboriginal sites in Western
Australia. The program aims to:
• increase protection through hands-on management of important
sites;
• empower Aboriginal groups to manage their own heritage;
• increase public understanding of Aboriginal heritage; and
• create economic development opportunities for Aboriginal
organisations, particularly in regional areas.
Successful past projects include:
• removal of graffiti from Aboriginal sites;
• fencing and firebreaks around important ceremonial object
keeping areas and lore grounds; and
• development of trails, seating and interpretive signage for
Aboriginal heritage areas.
Aboriginal Lands Trust Pastoral Leases and Rangelands
The Aboriginal Lands Trust (ALT) has six pastoral leases, with four
in the Kimberley and two in the Pilbara, for the use and benefit of
Aboriginal people. New agricultural opportunities exist over the
extensive rangelands reserves that are part of the ALT’s Estate and
are being explored in partnership with Traditional Owners. The ALT
has facilitated more than $3 million in external investment in
developing partnerships in 2015-16.
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The ALT has facilitated considerable third party investment through
the development of partnerships underpinned by the approval of
three subleases. Community consultation is underway in the
Tjurabalan Native Title Determination Area after a successful feral
herbivore control program has resulted in improved rangeland
conditions. This could lead to an expression of interest to establish a
functioning pastoral operation which supports Traditional Owners.
Town Based Reserves
Implementation of the Whole of Government Policy Framework for
the transition of Aboriginal Town Based Reserves in Western
Australia is being led by the Regional Services Reform Unit, however,
individual government agencies are also pursuing Town Based
Reserves projects as opportunities and resources allow.
There are 38 Town Based Reserves in Western Australia, occupied by
approximately 3,000 people, 27 of which are located on Aboriginal
Lands Trust Estate.
The ALT is progressing the leasing of individual housing lots within
Nambi Village in Leonora to the Katampul Aboriginal Corporation.
This leasing arrangement allows the Corporation to secure
Commonwealth infrastructure funding and is an interim step
towards regularisation of the community. The Department, the
Regional Services Reform Unit and the Housing Authority are
working together to investigate options for improved housing for
residents living at Mallingbar and One Mile in Broome.
16
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The ALT and the Department are working closely with communities on
Town Based Reserves to ensure greater community safety and
improved amenity having recently undertaken repairs, clean-ups and
demolitions in Ninga Mia, Irrungadji, Parnpajinya, One Mile and
Mallingbar.
The ALT and the Department are working with the Pilbara
Development Commission to undertake reform of seven Town Based
Reserves in the Pilbara region.
Yagan Memorial Park
Yagan Memorial Park, which was created in 2006 is vested with the
Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority for the purpose of “Protection of
Indigenous Burial, Cultural and Heritage, and Memorial Garden”.
Yagan was a Noongar warrior leader who played an important role in
early resistance to British settlement of the south west of Western
Australia.
The Yagan Memorial Park commemorates the reburial of Yagan’s Kaat
(head), and provides a place to pay respect to the warrior Yagan. The
site is important to both Aboriginal people and the broader
community due to its links to the rich Noongar history of the Swan
Valley.
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Aboriginal Business Directory
The Aboriginal Business Directory WA was established to provide
increased opportunities for businesses owned and operated by
Aboriginal people in Western Australia. It is user-friendly, cost-free
and practical both for Aboriginal businesses to register and for
those wanting to procure goods and services from Aboriginal
businesses.
The Directory, which is searchable by location and by industry
sector, also provides an avenue for Aboriginal businesses to
promote their capabilities to prospective clients at no cost.
The State Government and industry recognise the contribution of
Aboriginal businesses to the economy and in providing jobs and
economic opportunities for Aboriginal people.
Since the Directory’s official launch in October 2012, more than 400
Aboriginal businesses have registered on the site. In total the
Aboriginal Business Directory has received in excess of 136,000
visits from approximately 44,700 unique users, with company
profiles viewed more than 33,800 times.
The Department will continue to promote the benefits of the
Directory to potential buyers of goods and services and to
encourage Aboriginal business owners to register, particularly in
regional Western Australia.
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Youth Investment Reforms
In May 2015, the State Government announced the Aboriginal Youth
Services Investment reforms and development of the Aboriginal Youth
Services Investment Priorities and Principles to guide contract
arrangements with service providers.
The objectives of the reforms are to:
• foster stronger partnerships and collaborative approaches that
include connections with the community at a local level;
• enable integrated and sustainable service delivery and reduce
fragmentation of funding and effort;
• build in performance measurement based on outcomes; and
• refocus investment to programs that address the complex needs of
young people who are at risk but fall between the traditional
boundaries of government agency responsibilities.
The Investment Priorities and Principles apply to Government funded
programs and services targeted at Aboriginal youth, delivered directly
by State government agencies or by non-government service
providers.
Partnership, Acceptance, Learning and Sharing Program (PALS)
Based on the core attributes of Partnership, Acceptance, Learning and
Sharing, the PALS program encourages young Western Australians to
develop projects that promote and advance reconciliation. PALS
allows school children to learn more about Aboriginal culture in an
engaging way, and creates an opportunity for Aboriginal students to
participate in, and be proud of, their culture.
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PALS continuing success demonstrates an appetite and willingness
of young people to embrace reconciliation and enhance their
cultural awareness. In 2016, 520 schools received PALS funding for
679 different projects. This represents nearly half of the total
number of all Western Australian schools and a 42 per cent increase
from the previous year.
The Reconciliation Week Banner Project
In celebration of National Reconciliation Week the Department
facilitates the display of street banners promoting the message of
reconciliation across city centres throughout the metropolitan area.
In an effort to encourage reconciliation within the Western
Australian business community, the Department extended the
opportunity for local organisations to sponsor banners. The project
was a significant success with 150 organisations sponsoring 329
banners, representing a 38 per cent increase from 2014-15. The
project expanded to include an additional eight metropolitan local
government areas.
Aboriginal Community Patrols
Aboriginal Community Patrols provide street-level interventions to
address social, safety and wellbeing issues for at-risk people.
Patrols are a culturally sensitive service targeted at reducing contact
between Aboriginal people and the criminal justice and health
systems by removing people from situations of potential harm.
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Patrols are operated by community based organisations and are
largely an Aboriginal community initiative staffed by Aboriginal
people who use their cultural authority to intervene, mediate and,
where possible, resolve potentially dangerous or disruptive situations
in public places.
Patrols make a positive contribution to community safety, crime
prevention and the wellbeing of some of the most vulnerable people
in our communities, as well as offering economic development and
capacity building opportunities.
In 2015-16, the State Government, through the Department of
Aboriginal Affairs, invested $5.8 million towards the program.
14 Patrols are operating in metropolitan, regional and remote areas
of Western Australia.
South West Native Title Settlement
On 5 July 2013, the Western Australian Government presented the
South West Aboriginal Land and Sea Council with a final offer to
resolve native title claims across the South West of Western Australia.
The final offer to the Noongar community is the most comprehensive
native title proposal since the 1992 High Court Mabo decision and
provides an opportunity for the government to work in partnership
with the Noongar community to improve their economic, social and
cultural development.
The Department has been an active party to the South West
Settlement negotiations since they began in 2010, predominantly in
relation to:
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• Noongar Standard Heritage Agreement – The new Aboriginal
heritage agreement for the South West provides a uniform and
efficient approach for conducting Aboriginal heritage surveys in
compliance with the Aboriginal Heritage Act 1972,
• Noongar Heritage Partnership Agreement – providing a
framework through which the Department and the Regional
Corporations can work in partnership in the areas of identifying,
recording, protecting and managing Noongar heritage values and
sites within the agreement area, and
• The proposed transfer of Aboriginal Lands Trust properties in the
region (consisting of 26 freehold properties and 34 Crown
reserves) to a Noongar Land Trust to be held on behalf of the
Noongar people as part of the land base element of the final
settlement offer.
Six Noongar Indigenous Land Use Agreements are currently being
considered for registration by the Registrar of the National Native
Title Tribunal with the Yued, Whadjuk People, Gnaala Karla Booja,
Ballardong People, South West Boojarah #2 and Wagyl Kaip &
Southern Noongar groups, and the South West Aboriginal Land and
Sea Council (SWALSC). When registered on the National Native Title
Tribunal Register of Indigenous Land Use Agreements, these
Agreements will lead to the resolution of all native title claims in the
South West of Western Australia.
The Department and SWALSC remain fully committed to the South
West Settlement and both will continue to progress preparation for
commencement of the settlement.
19
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The Department of Aboriginal Affairs’ Outcome Service structure and
performance management framework aligns to the Department’s strategic
framework and Outcomes Based Management Framework.
The strategic framework 2012-14 was updated in 2015. Outcomes and
services are structured to deliver on the strategic goals of each of the
services, each with approved key effectiveness and efficiency indicators.
These cascade into service level operational plans through to individual
performance agreements, providing a true alignment of individual work plans
towards the Department’s strategic goals.
Outcomes Based Management Framework
The Department contributes to the two Government goals of :
• Social and environmental responsibility: ensuring that economic activity
is managed in a socially and environmentally responsible manner for the
long term benefit of the State; and
• Financial and economic responsibility: responsibly managing the State’s
finances through the efficient and effective delivery of services,
encouraging economic activity and reducing regulatory burden on the
private sector.
The framework demonstrates the relationship between the Department’s
services and desired outcomes, and the government goals to which they
contribute. The key effectiveness indicators measure the extent of the impact
of the delivery of services on the achievement of desired outcomes. The key
efficiency indicators monitor the relationship between the service delivered
and the resources used to produce the service.
20
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Government Goals
Financial and Economic Responsibility
Responsibly managing the State’s finances through the efficient and effective delivery of services, encouraging economic activity and reducing
regulatory burden on the private sector.

Social and Environmental Responsibility
Ensuring that economic activity is managed in a
socially and environmentally responsible manner
for the long-term benefit of the State.

Agency Outcomes
Achieving the right balance between
development and protection to ensure
economic opportunities are leveraged to
the benefit of the whole community.
Key Effectiveness Indicators
Percentage of direct stakeholders satisfied with
the services related to the management of
Aboriginal heritage.
Agency Services
Heritage Management: This service involves
the provision of secretariat and policy support to
the Aboriginal Cultural Material Committee;
provision of advice on matters relating to
Aboriginal heritage; processing of statutory
approvals; administration of heritage sites
register; and heritage compliance activities.
Key Efficiency Indicators
1) Average processing time per statutory
approval.
2) Average time to update the Register.
3) Average time to complete the initial
assessment.

Better utilisation of the Aboriginal Lands
Trust Estate to achieve shared social and
economic outcomes.

Improving accountability for the delivery of
outcomes for Aboriginal people from
government investments.

Supporting the Western Australian
Aboriginal community to independently
determine and further their identified
priorities.

Percentage of direct stakeholders satisfied with
the services related to the management of the
Aboriginal Lands Trust Estate.

Percentage of direct stakeholders satisfied with
the services related to improving accountability
for the delivery of services to Aboriginal people.

Percentage of direct stakeholders satisfied with
services related to community development
programs for Aboriginal people.

Land Management: This service involves the
provision of secretariat, policy support and
advice to the Aboriginal Lands Trust; and the
management of the Aboriginal Lands Trust
Estate; processing of land access approvals;
assisting with the operational management and
development of land; and facilitating the transfer
of land to Aboriginal people.

Accountable Government: This service
involves the provision of secretariat and policy
support to the Aboriginal Affairs Coordinating
Committee, including advice, monitoring and
reporting on the delivery of outcomes for
Aboriginal people from government investments
and intergovernmental activities.

Community Development: This service
involves the provision of secretariat and policy
support to the Western Australian Aboriginal
Advisory Council; developing partnerships that
build the capacity of Aboriginal people to
improve social outcomes; and reconciliation
activities.

1) Average processing time per land
transaction.

1) Average cost per 1,000 of Aboriginal
population.

1) Average cost per initiative funded.
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Outcome 1: Achieving the right balance between development and
protection to ensure economic opportunities are leveraged for the
benefit of the whole community.
We preserve and protect Aboriginal sites to deliver optimal social,
financial and environmental returns for all Western Australians.
Preservation and Celebration: Aboriginal heritage is one of the State’s
greatest assets. Improving accessibility to Aboriginal site information
preserves this asset for current and future generations.
Trust and Accountability: Improving the accuracy and quality of
heritage information enhances relationships with Traditional Owners
and improves decision making.
Effectiveness and Efficiency: Streamlined processes delivers better
opportunities for investment and economic development.
Capability and Capacity: Building expertise in Aboriginal heritage
management enables preservation and protection of Western Australian
Aboriginal heritage.
Aboriginal Heritage Future: Honouring Aboriginal people’s cultural
aspirations regarding their sites by assisting the implementation of
programs for preservation and protection, ongoing customary use,
authority, education and the fostering of knowledge, and independent
economic advancement.
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Outcome 2: Better utilisation of the Aboriginal Lands Trust Estate (ALT)
to achieve shared social and economic outcomes.
We release the potential of land for the utilisation of Aboriginal people
to achieve their social, economic and cultural aspirations.
Land Tenure Reform: A precursor to investment for Aboriginal people
and improves amenity, housing outcomes, service delivery and increased
commercial opportunities.
Cultural and Economic Value: Stronger engagement better informs
decisions on land reform which sustains culture.
Government Services: Coordinated expenditure and funding of
maintenance improves the infrastructure on the ALT Estate.
Economic Opportunities: The ALT Estate provides significant economic
and investment opportunities for Aboriginal people, such as pastoral,
tourism, conservation, commercial development and home ownership.
Management of the Estate: Management of reserves through stronger
governance enhances decision-making and increases accountability.
The Department is responsible for administering the Aboriginal Affairs
Planning Authority Act 1972. The Aboriginal Lands Trust (ALT) is the
statutory board convened under the Act. The Board advises the Minister
for Aboriginal Affairs on issues relating to the ALT Estate.

The Department administers the Aboriginal Heritage Act 1972 which
prescribes specific responsibilities relating to the management and
protection of heritage sites. The Aboriginal Cultural Material Committee
(ACMC) is the statutory committee convened under the Act. The ACMC
advises the Minister for Aboriginal Affairs on Aboriginal heritage
matters.
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Outcome 3: Improving accountability for the delivery of outcomes
for Aboriginal people from government investments.
We improve the accountability for delivering outcomes for Aboriginal
people from government investment.

Outcome 4: Supporting the Western Australian Aboriginal community
to independently determine and further their identified priorities
We support Aboriginal people to advance their priorities through
community-led policy, partnerships and programs.

Aboriginal Engagement: Better engagement with Aboriginal
communities and organisations improves outcomes.
Government Coordination: Coordination and collaboration of
Aboriginal affairs across government.
Performance Accountability: Regular analysis, reporting and data
coordination improves government accountability and performance.
Regional Leadership: Strengthening regional leadership of cross
portfolio/agency priorities delivers greater efficiency and effectiveness
in delivery of government services.
Outcome Effectiveness: Outcome based design in the delivery of
services guides better government investment.
Economic Development: Enhancing opportunities for Aboriginal people
to more fully participate in the State’s economy.

Recognition and Connection: Improving recognition and connection to
Aboriginal history and culture builds understanding.
Community Ownership: Aboriginal community driven policy, project and
program design builds greater responsibility for priorities and outcomes.
Cultural Competency: Improving respect for Aboriginal culture will
improve relationships to deliver better opportunities and outcomes for
Aboriginal people.
Sustainable Partnerships: Long term community and government
partnerships drives sustainable change.
Strengths Based Investment: Building on strengths and capabilities of
the Aboriginal community creates social and economic opportunities.
Community Liaison: Improving access to services for regional and
remote Aboriginal people through our regional presence.

The Department is responsible for administering the Aboriginal Affairs
Planning Authority Act 1972. The Aboriginal Affairs Coordinating
Committee (AACC) is the statutory committee convened under the Act.
The Committee reports to the Minister for Aboriginal Affairs and
coordinates the activities of all persons and bodies, corporate or
otherwise, providing or proposing to provide service and assistance in
relation to Aboriginal people.

The Department is responsible for administering the Aboriginal Affairs
Planning Authority Act 1972. The Western Australian Aboriginal
Advisory Council (WAAAC) is the statutory council convened under the
Act. The Council provides advice to the Minister for Aboriginal Affairs on
matters relating to the interests and wellbeing of Aboriginal people.

Changes to Outcome Based Management Structure
There were no changes to the Department’s Outcome Based
Management Structure during the year

Shared responsibilities
The Department did not share any responsibilities with other agencies in
2015-16.
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Agency Performance

The Department of Aboriginal Affairs is the lead State Government agency in ensuring
better outcomes for Aboriginal people.
The Department’s Outcome Based Management Framework was established and approved
by the Department of Treasury in February 2012. The Framework reflects the reforms,
strategic direction and organisational structure of the Department and articulates the
Department’s contribution to the Government’s desired outcomes, the services to be
delivered and the performance targets to be achieved, both financial and non-financial, for
the budget year.
For the 2015-16 period, key stakeholders were identified for interview across the Heritage,
Land, Accountable Government and Community Development directorates. Across the
Department 206 stakeholders were interviewed from a database of 246 stakeholders,
achieving a 87 per cent participation rate with a maximum error ration of +/-1.8 per cent at
the 95 per cent confidence level. The surveys were conducted in May and June 2016.
The graph represents overall stakeholder satisfaction with the services delivered in the
respective measurement periods, and demonstrates continued improvement in
stakeholder satisfaction achieved in 2016. A more detailed breakdown is available in the
Key Performance Indicators Section of this report, on page 62.
Overall Stakeholder Satisfaction from 2010 to 2016

61%

59%

58%

2010

2011

2012

75%

72%

2013

2014

79%

81%

2015

2016
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Financial Targets
2015-16
Budget
$000

2015-16
Actual
$000

Variance
$000

Link

Total Cost of Services (ie endorsed expense limit)

33,832

32,379

1,453

Page 72

Net Cost of Services (details in the Income Statement)

33,402

32,003

1,399

Page 72

Total Equity (details in the Statement of Financial Position)

2,926

6,139

(3,213)

Page 73

(1,525)

28

(1,553)

Page 74

137

129

Net Increase / Decrease in Cash Held (details in the Statement of
Cash Flows)
Full Time Equivalent (FTE) Staff Level

8

The Department achieved savings on the 2015-16 Budget of $1.4 million. These savings were achieved through adherence to the
Government’s budgetary correction measures and through internal agency initiatives to minimise expenditure in the context of the
broader whole of government fiscal situation.
The Department managed to constrain spending to 2014-15 levels mainly through maintaining a degree of employee vacancies
throughout the year.
The change in Total Equity reflects savings achieved during the year and an increase in provisions for workforce renewal.
Detailed reports and notes are available in the Financial Statements for the Department of Aboriginal Affairs to 30 June 2016 from page
71.
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Key Performance Indicators Summary
Heritage Management: Achieving the right balance between development
and protection to ensure economic opportunities are leverages to the
benefit of the whole community.
2014-15
Actual

2015-16
Budget

2015-16
Actual

Variance
from target

Key Effectiveness Indicator
Percentage of direct
stakeholders satisfied with
the services related to the
management of Aboriginal
heritage

Land Management: Better utilisation of the Aboriginal Lands Trust Estate
to achieve shared social and economic outcomes
2014-15
Actual

2015-16
Budget

2015-16
Actual

Variance
from target

63%

65%

77%

12% above
target

4.3 days

10 days

3.5 days

6.5 days
below target

Key Effectiveness Indicator
84%

65%

72%

7% above
target

Key Efficiency Indicators

Percentage of direct
stakeholders satisfied with
the services related to the
management of Aboriginal
Lands Trust Estate
Key Efficiency Indicators

Average processing time
per statutory approval

74 days

70 days

106 days

36 days
over target

Average time to update the
register

18 days

30 days

30 days

15 days
over target

Average time to complete
initial assessment

4.2 days

10 days

7 days

On target

Average processing time
per land transaction

Detailed reports and explanatory comments are available in the Key Performance Indicator report from page 62.
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Accountable Government: Improving accountability for the delivery of
outcomes for Aboriginal people from government investments.
2014-15
Actual

2015-16
Budget

2015-16
Actual

Variance
from target

Key Effectiveness Indicator
Percentage of direct
stakeholders satisfied with
the services related to
improving accountability for
the delivery of services to
Aboriginal people.

2014-15
Actual

2015-16
Budget

2015-16
Actual

Variance
from target

81%

65%

94%

29% above
target

$14,855

$14,742

$9,072

$5,668
below target

Key Effectiveness Indicator
85%

65%

83%

18% above
target

Key Efficiency Indicators
Average cost per 1,000 of
Aboriginal population.

Community Development: Supporting the Western Australian Aboriginal
community to independently determine and further their identified priorities

Percentage of direct
stakeholders satisfied with
the services related to
community development
programs for Aboriginal
people.
Key Efficiency Indicators

$65,126

$58,199

$48,362

$9,837
below target

Average cost per initiative
funded
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Report on Operations
•

Aboriginal Heritage

•

Aboriginal Lands

•

Accountable Government

•

Community Development

•

Across the Department

The Department of Aboriginal Affairs is the lead
State Government agency responsible for
ensuring better outcomes for Aboriginal people.
It does this through:
• preserving and protecting Aboriginal sites to deliver
optimal social, financial and environmental returns for
Western Australians;
• releasing the potential of land for the utilisation of
Aboriginal people to achieve their social, economic
and cultural aspirations;
• supporting Aboriginal people to advance their
priorities, through community led policy, partnerships
and programs; and
• improving accountability for the delivery of outcomes
from government investment for Aboriginal people.
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Aboriginal Heritage
The Department of Aboriginal Affairs is focussed on achieving the
right balance between development and protection of Aboriginal
heritage to ensure economic opportunities are leveraged for the
benefit of the whole Western Australian community.
The Department achieves this through research and advice to
Aboriginal people, Government, community and industry on matters
relating to Aboriginal heritage; processing of statutory approvals;
administration of heritage sites register; and other heritage
protection and compliance activities.
During 2015-16, the Heritage directorate has focussed on regulatory
reform and implementation of process improvements following the
2015 Supreme Court decision relating to an Aboriginal Cultural
Material Committee (ACMC) decision about DAA site 22874
Marapikurrinya Yintha and the finding that the ACMC failed to
afford procedural fairness to stakeholders.
The Department has implemented significant changes to processes
and systems, as well as education and training of employees in order
to ensure the effective assessment of applications and provision of
advice to stakeholders. This resulted in short term challenges in
meeting timeframes early in the year which has had a negative
impact on the directorate’s ability to meet performance targets
during the first half of the year. However, performance improved in
the second half of the year, with performance expected to meet
targets in the next reporting period.

%
2

Underspent
against budget

56

Full Time
Equivalent
employees

%
72

Of stakeholders are
satisfied with the
services relating to
Aboriginal Heritage

%
86

Operational
commitments
delivered as planned

Variance against budget

$170,000

Satisfaction with services related to Aboriginal Heritage

72%

Average processing time per statutory approval

106 days

Average time to update the Register

30 days

Average time to complete initial assessment

7 days

• More than 270 people attended the 15 Noongar Standard Heritage Agreement forums
• 11 repatriations completed, including the reburial of 23 sets of ancestral remains
• Discussion with Yued, Ballardong, Gnaala Karla Booja, South West Boojarah and
Wagyl Kaip and SWALSC commenced to provide site information held by the
Department
• More than 1600 heritage advices provided
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Preservation and Celebration
Aboriginal heritage is one of the State’s greatest assets. Improving accessibility to Aboriginal site information preserves this asset for current
and future generations. The Department of Aboriginal Affairs is focussed on building and managing the State’s knowledge of Aboriginal sites to
enable better protection under the Aboriginal Heritage Act 1972.
Of those remaining in the State’s possession, approximately
Repatriation and reburial of ancestral remains
80 per cent are suitable for repatriation. The Department will
The Department seeks to enhance awareness, protection and
continue to work with the local Aboriginal groups, the WA Museum
celebration of Aboriginal heritage through initiatives such as ancestral
and other government agencies in leading further reburial projects.
remains repatriation projects.
Twelve repatriation projects were planned for the 2015-16 financial
year. Eleven repatriation projects, including the reburial of 23 sets of
ancestral remains, were completed during the year, with two further
repatriations planned in Busselton and Gnowangerup.
The Department continues to meet with the relevant Traditional
Owners to reach agreement on final arrangements.

#DAA Heritage recently worked with the Noongar Community to retrieve
ancestral remains from a beach south of Bunbury
#DAA officers assisted in coordination of #repatriation of ancestral remains in
Mt Margaret
This week Gnowangerup Aboriginal community, DAA, WAM buried ancestral
remains

There are a number of cultural sensitivities associated with
repatriations, including locating the correct Traditional Owners with
whom to engage and to determine the most suitable places for
reburials to occur.

Site Information
The Department sought to capture high quality data and transform it
into knowledge by developing a new online Register of Aboriginal
sites to improve access to information about Sites and Protected
areas. The current Register of Places and Objects (the Register)
contains 14,436 entries.

Since its inception, 36 projects have been completed involving the
repatriation and reburial of approximately 113 sets of ancestral remains
from across the Southern, Goldfields, Gascoyne/Murchison, Pilbara and
West Kimberley regions. There are approximately 160 sets of remains
held by the WA Museum and a further 42 sets located at the Ossuary in
Karrakatta.

The new Register was planned for implementation in the 2015-16
financial year. The project has been delayed to enable a thorough
review of the accuracy and integrity of the Register’s data prior to
publication.
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At June 2016, the Department had audited all Aboriginal Cultural
Material Committee decisions and is preparing current information into
a format that will be compatible for the online Register, as well as
developing informative fact sheets on Aboriginal heritage sites of
interest for publication with the expected release of the Register at the
end of 2016.
Heritage Forums
The Department holds heritage forums with stakeholders throughout
the year in order to identify and foster knowledge-sharing and
partnership opportunities.
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Trust and Accountability
Improving the accuracy and quality of heritage information enhances
relationships with Traditional Owners and improves decision making.
The Department is focussed on building trust based relationships
with Traditional Owners. The strong partnerships built between the
Department and Aboriginal people better facilitate the outcomes for
heritage protection through programs and projects.
Partnerships with Traditional Owners
In addition to the heritage forums, one of the key activities planned
to deliver this year was the return of information held by the
Department to ten Traditional Owner Groups.

In 2015-16, eight forums were planned over the course of the year with
The heritage information the Department shares with Traditional
industry, Aboriginal groups, and heritage consultants to build trusting
Owner groups consists of Registered heritage site and heritage place
relationships, share information, and foster knowledge-sharing
files, as well as Heritage Survey Reports. The Department is of the
opportunities.
view that the cultural knowledge held in the files, and reports, belong
Six forums about the ramifications of the Robinson v Fielding Supreme to the custodians of the reported places and should be available to
the community to preserve, to continue to share with future
Court decision were held in Broome, Geraldton, Kalgoorlie, Karratha
generations and to assist with fulfilling the management aspirations
and Perth. The forums resulted in a greater understanding by the
community of not only the Robinson v Fielding matter but also current of their cultural heritage.
and proposed reforms relating to Aboriginal heritage.
During 2015-16 the Department handed back information to the
Kuruma Mathudunera Aboriginal Corporation, the Esperance
Fifteen forums were held regarding the implementation of the
Tjaltjraak Native Title Aboriginal Corporation and the Dambimangari
South West Native Title Settlement and Noongar Standard Heritage
Aboriginal Corporation. Discussions are continuing with the six
Agreement between the Department, the Government and industry.
Noongar groups that form the South West Settlement as well as the
The forums provided the opportunity for participants to learn about,
Buurabalayji Thalanyji Aboriginal Corporation.
and understand, the various Aboriginal heritage components of the
South West Settlement Indigenous Land Use Agreements and the
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Effectiveness and Efficiency
Streamlined processes deliver better opportunities for investment
and economic development.
The Department committed to improving decision making
transparency and accountability through meeting targets relating to
process time for Section 18 applications and non-section 18 heritage
places, assessing the backlog of priority heritage places and
complying with procedural fairness policy for applications and
heritage place assessments.
To deliver this, the Department undertook a review of the Heritage
directorate, as well as a comprehensive process review of site
assessment guidelines, as a result of the Justice Chaney
Supreme Court decision in 2015.
Following the Supreme Court decision, the Department and the
ACMC were required to review site assessment guidelines.
Applications associated with potential section 5(b) sites were placed
on hold to deal with the broader interpretation of the decision.
These reviews have impacted the ability of the Department to meet
targeted deadlines for processing of statutory approvals, updating
the Register and completing initial assessments. The results for the
2015-16 year are as follows:
• Average time to process section 18 applications: 107 days
• Average time to update the Register: 18 days
• Average time to complete initial assessment: 7.4 days
• Assess backlog of priority heritage places: 1280 completed
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In line with the Government’s agenda to streamline statutory
approval processes, the Department has implemented phase 2
of the Aboriginal Heritage Electronic Lodgement Program
(AHELP). Phase 2 delivers an improved ability to monitor
compliance with the requirements of the Aboriginal Heritage Act
1972, mapping of statutory information and improved
accessibility to Aboriginal heritage information for all
stakeholders, including the digitisation of all section 18
application and approval files. The new system delivers improved
data reliability, accountability and reporting capability.
Feedback from the general public who access the Department’s
heritage information using the new digital access system has
been positive. More than 1,600 heritage advices provided to the
public are now mapped and can be searched and analysed across
a range of themes.
DAA met with South West Boojarah WP to discuss #Heritage issues
& build stronger partnerships.
#DAA met with South Wagyl Kaip & Southern #Noongar WP to discuss
#Heritage issues & build stronger partnerships.
2016 marks 10 years of DAA AHIS online #GIS search system assisting public comply with AHA http://bit.ly/1S7XiQf
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Capability and Capacity
Building expertise in Aboriginal heritage management enables
preservation and protection of Western Australian Aboriginal
heritage.
To deliver on this, the Department is committed to adopting
appropriate practice and utilising expert knowledge in relation to
Aboriginal heritage management and ensuring internal resources
are aligned to meet these objectives.
The Heritage directorate has focussed on developing its human
resources to meet the changing business needs. This is a focus of
the transformation activities currently underway, and supported
by training and development for employees.
Training is also provided to stakeholders and clients to build
external proficiency and understanding. During the year, five
heritage workshops were held to provide information and
support to stakeholders.
Elders, DAA & @Wheatbeltnrm provided heritage training to
Noongar Boodjar Rangers @ #Wandoo Conservation Reserve

Part 3 – Report on Operations

Aboriginal Heritage Future
The Department strives to honour Aboriginal people’s cultural
aspirations regarding their sites by assisting to implement
programs for preservation and protection, ongoing customary use,
authority, education and the fostering of knowledge, and
independent economic advancement.
To deliver this, the Department is committed to developing
strategies to improve the understanding and use of existing
heritage assets, including conducting heritage forums with
stakeholders. The ongoing delivery of forums will continue,
focussing on educating stakeholders about the Aboriginal
Heritage Act 1972, building trusting relationships and sharing
information.
The Department also planned to identify opportunities to enhance
awareness, protection and celebration of Aboriginal sites that
maximise return on investment for all Western Australians through
the 2015-16 Preserving our Aboriginal Sites Grants Program, which
enhances awareness and protection of Aboriginal heritage sites.
Assessment and evaluation of Round 3 of the grant program was
completed in June 2016. Nine applications were selected by the
evaluation panel to receive a total of $144,000 in grant funding.
The successful applicants were distributed throughout the State,
with two successful applications each in the Goldfields, Kimberley
and Pilbara, and one each for the Metro / Wheatbelt,
Murchison/Gascoyne, and South West regions.
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Aboriginal Cultural Material Committee
The Department administers the Aboriginal Heritage Act 1972 (AHA) which prescribes specific responsibilities relating to the
management and protection of heritage sites. The Aboriginal Cultural Material Committee is the statutory committee convened
under the Act. The Committee advises the Minister for Aboriginal Affairs on Aboriginal heritage matters.
Report from the Deputy Chair – Ms Vanessa Kickett
In 2015-16 the Aboriginal Cultural Material Committee (ACMC) assessed 419 heritage places
in relation to section 5 of the Aboriginal Heritage Act 1972. This was 154 more places than
were assessed in the previous year. The Committee continues to work toward reducing the
number of heritage places lodged in the Register of Places and Objects pending assessment
by the ACMC.
The ACMC also considered 73 Notices under section 18 of the Act to impact upon Aboriginal
heritage places and seven applications under section 16 of the Act to undertake research.
During the course of the year, the ACMC welcomed four additional members, bringing the
total number to 10, of which seven Aboriginal members all bring with them a wealth of
experience and cultural knowledge.
I would like to thank the Department for providing ongoing administrative support to the
Committee which is vital to the operation of the ACMC.

More information about the ACMC including key dates is available
here: http://bit.ly/28IfMuv

Details on Board Members and remuneration is
provided in the “Governance and Legal Disclosures”
section of this report on page 167.
34

Aboriginal Lands

Aboriginal Lands
The Department of Aboriginal Affairs is focussed on better
utilisation of the Aboriginal Lands Trust Estate to achieve shared
social and economic outcomes.
The Department will achieve this through releasing the potential
of land for the utilisation of Aboriginal people to meet their social,
economic and cultural aspirations. Outcomes and services
relating to Aboriginal Lands are delivered by the Lands directorate.
The services to deliver this objective involve the provision of
advice to the Aboriginal Lands Trust, Aboriginal people,
Government and other key stakeholders in relation to the
management of the Aboriginal Lands Trust Estate, processing of
land access approvals, assisting with the operational management
and development of land, management of strategic initiatives by
the Aboriginal Lands Trust, and facilitating the transfer of land to
Aboriginal people.
During the year, the Lands directorate focussed on working better
with stakeholders which is evidenced by a significant
improvement in stakeholder satisfaction with services during the
year achieving 77 per cent stakeholder satisfaction rating
compared to 63 per cent reported in 2014-15.

%
2

Underspent against
budget

30

Full Time
Equivalent
employees

%
77

Of stakeholders are
satisfied with the
services relating to
Aboriginal Lands

%
100
Operational
commitments
delivered as
planned

Variance against budget

$96,000

Satisfaction with services related to Aboriginal Lands

77%

Average processing time per land transaction

3.5 days

• Individual lots in Balgo, Nambi Village, Kalumburu, Beagle Bay, Lombadina, and Fitzroy
Crossing leased
• Three freehold ALT properties in Medina transferred into Aboriginal ownership
• 56 leases and subleases over ALT Reserves, Freehold and Pastoral land approved
• Key agencies collaborated on six projects.
• Aboriginal stakeholders engaged on five land projects
• Of 6 ALT pastoral leases, 3 subleases approved during the year
• 103 submissions made to the ALT
• 5,269 land access permits granted
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Land Tenure Reform
Land tenure reform is a precursor to investment for Aboriginal people and improves amenity, housing outcomes, service delivery and
increased commercial opportunities. The Department has committed to developing a policy framework and appropriate procedures with
land use planning, to support land tenure reform and divestment. It proposed to do this through the development of a land Tenure Reform
issues paper and through land use planning of the Aboriginal Lands Trust (ALT) Estate to create a framework for land tenure reform.
Throughout 2015-16, the Department has met with the Departments
of Lands, Planning, the Premier and Cabinet, Regional Development
and the Housing Authority to progress a policy on land tenure
improvement of the ALT Estate and applies two key principles for the
purpose of progressing land tenure reform:
• For Aboriginal communities, leases are issued only on individual lots
in accordance with land use planning principles so that communities
become more ‘town like’ as their development progresses.
• For rangelands, leases can be issued over ALT lands so that these
lands can be utilised for agriculture, tourism, conservation and
cultural purposes. The leases should be issued with contemporary
provisions, clarifying responsibilities and providing safeguards for
Government in cases where leases are not managed effectively in
the future.
The application of these land reform principles in 2015-16 includes the
leasing of individual lots in Balgo, Nambi Village, Kalumburu, Beagle
Bay, Lombadina and Fitzroy Crossing to support economic
development and commercial activity, service delivery, and residential
development initiatives in Aboriginal communities.
The Department has committed to divesting ALT Reserves in an
appropriate form of tenure to increase Aboriginal land ownership and
utilisation, by increasing parcels of land under direct control of

Aboriginal people or organisations, reporting on the demand for a
form of home ownership in a remote community, creating leases
to meet the requirements for key infrastructure and essential
services and divestment of englobo reserves and pastoral leases to
Native Title holders.
In 2015-16, a practical approach was taken to increase Aboriginal
management and ownership of ALT and Aboriginal Affairs Planning
Authority land. Three freehold ALT properties in Medina have
been transferred into Aboriginal ownership, while the ALT has
supported a significant increase in the granting of rights and
interests in the ALT Estate to Aboriginal people through approving
leasing and subleasing proposals. During the year, the ALT and the
Minister of Aboriginal Affairs approved 56 leases and subleases
over ALT reserves, freehold and pastoral land. These leases and
subleases support economic development and commercial activity,
service delivery and residential development initiatives in
Aboriginal communities throughout the State.
#ALT grant sub-lease at #WA #Walagunya Station, to improve
#Aboriginal pastoral endeavours
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Cultural and Economic Value
Stronger engagement better informs decisions on land tenure reform,
which sustains culture. To deliver on this, the Department aimed to
strengthen partnerships across key land administration, planning,
housing and service delivery agencies, as well as strengthening
partnerships with Aboriginal community groups and Aboriginal
corporations.
The Department committed to collaborating with key agencies across
the three tiers of government on three projects, exceeding this target
during 2015-16.
The Lands directorate successfully collaborated with key agencies on
the following:
• Town Based Reserves Working Group – resulting in an agreed
approach to transitioning residents from Mallingbar and One Mile
(Broome) into mainstream public housing and the demolition of
unsafe housing.
• Tenure Allocation and Improvement Group – resulting in the
identification of tenure and leasing options available to Aboriginal
people under the Land Administration Act 1997 and the Aboriginal
Affairs Planning Authority Act 1972.
• Agricultural development partnerships – over ALT pastoral leases
and reserves, resulting in three subleases in Walagunya,
Pippingarra and Glen Hill/Doon Doon, which support Aboriginal
pastoral enterprises.
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• Progression of statutory processes under the Aboriginal Planning
Authority Act 1972 to support the Kimberley Science and
Conservation Strategy. This will allow for the deproclamation and
divestment of portions of ALT reserves to native title holders.
• Facilitation of an agreement between the South West Aboriginal
Land and Sea Council and the Department for Child Protection and
Family Services to enable the extension of leases in Perth that
support boarding arrangements for regional Aboriginal students.
• Negotiations with the City of Swan for the provision of
management and maintenance services at Yagan Memorial Park.
#Land Transfer Ceremony @ #Medina Moorditj Koort #Aboriginal
Corp Congratulations #ALTEstate
Chair & Sec #AboriginalLandsTrust met #KimberleyRegionalGroup re
opportunities #ALTEstate

In 2015-16, stakeholders
expressed greater satisfaction
with services related to the
management of the Aboriginal
Lands Trust Estate, exceeding
the target by 12%.
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The Department committed to consulting with Aboriginal groups,
corporations and representative bodies to implement a
communications strategy targeting stakeholders and empowering
Aboriginal involvement in the pastoral industry.
To deliver on this commitment, the Lands directorate engaged with
Aboriginal groups, corporations and representatives on the following
land projects:
• Dambimangari native title holders to discuss transit permits over
ALT reserves.
• Balanggarra native title holders to discuss the divestment of ALT
reserves.
• Tjurabalan native title holders to discuss sub-leasing arrangements
over Lake Gregory and Billiluna pastoral leases.
• Katampul Aboriginal Corporation to progress the leasing of individual
housing lots in Nambi Village (Leonora).
• Cullacabardee residents to advise on safety precautions associated
with a contamination site in the community.
On the six pastoral leases managed by the ALT, the following subleases
were approved to support Aboriginal pastoral enterprises:
• A sublease over Walagunya pastoral lease to Eastern Guruma
Pastoral Company resulting in private investment of $1.3 million in
pastoral lease improvements.
• A sublease over Pippingarra pastoral lease issued to 46 Pindan,
a company representing three Traditional Owner groups.
• A sublease over Glen Hill pastoral lease and part of Doon Doon
pastoral lease to Glen Hill Aboriginal Pastoral Corporation.

Part 3 – Report on Operations

Government Services to ALT Estate
Coordinated expenditure and funding of maintenance improved the
infrastructure on the ALT Estate.
The Department is aiming to evaluate taxpayer and community
investment on the ALT Estate and secure financial resources to
deliver positive reforms and outcomes. During the year, discussions
commenced with the Housing Authority and the Regional Services
Reform Unit to identify funding that supports prioritised investment
into Aboriginal communities and the ALT Estate. An expenditure limit
of $1.269 million has been secured for 2016-17.
Land staff met with Billiluna #Aboriginal Pastoral Company-positive
outcomes #ALTEstate
Successful muster on #ALTEstate Doon Doon (West) Pastoral Lease
#Kimberley

Economic Opportunities
The ALT Estate provides significant economic and investment
opportunities for Aboriginal people, such as pastoral, tourism,
conservation, commercial development and home ownership.
The Department aims to support this by promoting Aboriginal
businesses to increase economic opportunities, creating programs
and awareness campaigns to increase participation and promoting
government procurement reforms that offer economic
participation opportunities for Aboriginal people.
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The Department seeks to use Aboriginal businesses or corporations to
assist with managing the ALT Estate. In 2015-16, at least nine
Aboriginal businesses or corporations were engaged to provide more
than 20 contracts on the ALT Estate including:
• Central Kimberley Services for asbestos remediation at Bayulu;
• 4 Square Services for the removal of unsafe buildings at Ninga Mia;
• Remote Site Logistics for the removal of unsafe pine trees from
Mogumber Mission; and
• Mamabulanjin AC for clean up of rubbish at Mallingbar.
Management of the ALT Estate
The management of land reserves, through stronger governance,
enhances decision making and increases accountability. The
Department sought to deliver this by applying best practice principles
to the management of the ALT Estate and identifying and
appropriately managing risks on the ALT Estate.
In 2015-16, the Land directorate consolidated its Contemporary
Aboriginal Lands Management System (CALMS), capturing data on
both the ALT / Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority (AAPA) Estate and
Aboriginal communities. Data manipulation through CALMS allows for
maps, dashboards and data visualisation to be produced on key
trends, achievements and statistical summaries.
The Department supports the ALT Board in fulfilling its statutory
functions, which includes supporting the development of policies
related to management of the ALT Estate. During the year, policies on
Burials on the ALT Estate and Principles of Consultation for Transit
Permits on ALT Estate were developed and published, and are
available on the Department’s website.
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Addressing priority health and safety risks on the ALT Estate has
been a strong focus in 2015-16. Key risk management outcomes
include:
• establishment of an infrastructure inspection program resulting in
six communities receiving infrastructure risk assessments. These
communities were Ringer Soak, Dodnun, Irrungadji, Marmion
Village, Loanbun and Cullacabardee;
• remediation of a contaminated site in Cullacabardee, including
the collection of asbestos, the erection of fencing and warning
signs, and the provision of health and safety information for
community residents;
• repair or demolition of unsafe buildings in Ninga Mia, as well as a
clean up of household refuse throughout the community;
• remediation of unsafe buried electrical mains cabled at Djarindjin;
• removal of asbestos from a Community Hall at Bayulu;
• pumping of septic tanks and emergency electrical work at
Irrungadji;
• repair of water infrastructure at Parnpajinya, Buruwa and
Nulleywah; and
• removal of unsafe trees and the removal of loose asbestos from a
church at Mogumber mission, a site regularly visited by members
of the Noongar community.
#DAA Lands staff participated in training in new #Aboriginal land
data system #ALTEstate
#LandFacts #ALTEstate issues #Land permits for travelling through
#Aboriginal reserves #WA
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Aboriginal Lands Trust
The Department is responsible for administering the Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority Act 1972 (AAPA). The Aboriginal Lands Trust (ALT) is
the statutory board convened under the Act, with the primary function of holding and managing land held in trust for the Aboriginal inhabitants
of Western Australia. The ALT Estate currently consists of approximately 24 million hectares of land, which is 9.65 per cent of the State’s land
mass.
Report from the Chair – Dr Robert Isaacs AM OAM JP PhD (Hon)
Since my appointment as Chair of the Aboriginal Lands Trust (ALT) in June 2015, I have found the role very rewarding but challenging. I appreciate
the full support I have received from my fellow ALT members.
In 2015-16 I have led a concerted effort by the ALT to build a better understanding of its role within and outside of Government. Together with the
Board members, I have built on relationships with Ministers, Directors General and advocacy groups within the community. Most importantly, the
ALT is engaging with Aboriginal people who are directly affected by the decisions of Government.
There are massive challenges to be met, including the chronic resourcing needs of the 186 communities which are within the ALT Estate. In
particular, I look forward to the outcomes of the work being led by the Regional Services Reform Unit which is reporting to the Aboriginal Affairs
Cabinet Sub-Committee on its progress. Almost all of the larger remote communities being addressed by the Regional Services Reforms are
located on the ALT Estate. To this end, the Reforms represent an opportunity to make a difference for the communities which are impacted by a
patchwork of service delivery arrangements and often ad-hoc program delivery.
Most rewardingly, the ALT has granted 56 leases and subleases over reserve, freehold and pastoral lands in the last 12 months and is working with
Aboriginal people to develop new economic opportunities on its pastoral estate. It is great to see the development of new partnerships on
pastoral stations and is currently working closely with Native Title holders to finalise arrangements for all six pastoral leases it holds.

#LandFacts the #ALTEstate Chairman Dr R Isaacs was the 2015
Western Australian of the Year

Details on Board Members
and remuneration is provided in the
“Governance and Legal Disclosures”
section of this report on page 166.
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Accountable Government
The Department of Aboriginal Affairs is focussed on improving
accountability for the delivery of outcomes for Aboriginal
people from government investments.
The Accountable Government directorate provides strategic
oversight and monitoring of Government investment to improve
outcomes for Aboriginal people in Western Australia.
The Department provides research advice and support for the
Aboriginal Affairs Coordinating Committee and its
Sub-committees and provides advice, monitors and reports on
the delivery of outcomes for Aboriginal people and
intergovernmental activities.

%
2

Underspent against
budget

24

Full Time
Equivalent
employees

%
83

Of stakeholders are
satisfied with the
services relating to
Accountable
Government

%
94
Operational
commitments
delivered as
planned

Variance against budget

$74,000

Satisfaction with services related to Accountable
Government

83%

Average cost per 1,000 of Aboriginal population

$48,362

• 8 Commonwealth-State project or negotiation forums attended
• 23 State-level project or policy meetings attended
• Monthly Mid-West Aboriginal Organisations Alliance meetings held
• Bi-monthly Mid-West / Gascoyne Human Services Regional Managers Group
meetings held
• Workshop in Kalgoorlie in relation to possible new District Leadership Group
model held
• 7 meetings of the Laverton Aboriginal Residents Group held
• ‘Conversation’ held with Aboriginal people in Kalgoorlie to discuss the formation of
an Aboriginal Residents Group in Kalgoorlie/Boulder – 35 people attended
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Aboriginal Engagement
Better engagement with Aboriginal communities, organisations and
people improves outcomes. To deliver on this the Department
focussed on increasing engagement with Aboriginal organisations and
communities.
The Department committed to improving the information flow between
Aboriginal people and the State Government through increased
engagement with Aboriginal advocacy and representative organisations
as well as communities. The Department planned to work with the
Meekatharra Aboriginal Reference Group and the Mt Magnet Yamatji
Reference Group to further develop capacity and focus as a group to
represent and resolve issues impacting on the Aboriginal community in
Meekatharra and Mt Magnet respectively.
For 2015-16, the Department delivered monthly meetings in
Meekatharra and identified priority issues. The Meekatharra
Aboriginal Reference Group has achieved a number of key results
against its priority issues, including a community driven drug and
alcohol plan, developed in partnership with the Mental Health
Commission, supporting local Aboriginal people to run and be elected
to local Government (a first in the history of the Shire of Meekatharra),
working with the Department of Education to address truancy issues,
exploring more appropriate liquor restrictions supported by the
Aboriginal community in Meekatharra and worked closely with WA
Police around community safety issues.
This work will continue into 2016-17 and will link with the Department
in the development and implementation of the Mid-West Model.
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Performance Accountability
Regular analysis, reporting and data coordination improves
government accountability and performance. The Department is
focussed on a bilateral commitment to policy approaches and
priorities, and sought to influence Commonwealth and State
bilateral discussions and agreements. The Department planned to
enhance the accessibility, relevance and level of detail in key data
and information held by the Department, in order to better inform
policy approaches and priorities.
The Department delivered the Progress against Closing the Gap
Western Australia 2015 and the Aboriginal Affairs Quick Statistics
Directory . The Department is developing the Aboriginal Affairs
Coordinating Committee Data Warehouse in cooperation with other
government agencies, which will deliver strategic oversight of
progress addressing Aboriginal disadvantage in Western Australia.
The regular reporting of 24 indicators of wellbeing across eight
sub regions of the State will alleviate ad hoc and resource intensive
data gathering exercises. Decision makers across government will
be better informed in their work to improve Aboriginal life
outcomes. Significant contributions and prioritisation agencies
represented on the Aboriginal Affairs Coordinating Committee has
ensured that the project remains on track for delivery in early
2016-17.
Progress on #ClosingTheGap shows WA has met the national target
for #Aboriginal early childhood education
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Regional Leadership
Strengthening regional leadership of cross portfolio priorities delivers
greater efficiency and effectiveness in the delivery of government
services for Aboriginal people. The Department is focussed on
maintaining a high degree of regional situational awareness and
strengthening regional leadership in the implementation of cross
portfolio priorities.
To deliver on this, the Department committed to monitor regional
activities and developments, participate in interagency committees
and working groups and implement regional Aboriginal engagement
models in the Mid-West and Goldfields. The Department planned to
provide timely advice on critical issues and trends impacting upon
Aboriginal people and the community of regional WA.
The Mid-West Model has progressed in partnership with the Mid-West
Gascoyne Regional Managers Group and the Mid-West Aboriginal
Organisations Alliance. Meetings in the Goldfields of Regional
Managers to form a District Leadership Group in line with Regional
Services Reforms, as well as developing structure and links to the
non-government sector and Aboriginal communities have also been
progressed. This work will continue into 2016-17.
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Outcome Effectiveness
Outcome based design in the delivery of services guides better
government investment. The Department is focussed on ensuring
that government investment achieves improved outcomes for
Aboriginal people through establishing an evidence base for
measurable outcomes, performance evaluation and reinvestment.
The Department committed to providing input into the Evaluation
Framework for the Regional Services Reforms, performing research
and evaluation into Aboriginal affairs priority areas linked to poor
outcomes and developing and implementing a reporting framework
for the Youth Investment and Aboriginal Justice Reforms.
The Department coordinated and developed a whole-of-government
inaugural annual report on working towards the reduction in
Aboriginal over-representation in the justice system.
The Department monitored the performance of the Regional Services
Reforms through active regional participation in District Leadership
Groups, in the Kimberley and Pilbara, membership of the Strategic
Regional Advisory Councils and membership of the Aboriginal Affairs
Coordinating Committee sub-committee on regional and remote
investment. The Department monitors the Youth Investment Reform
through membership of the Youth Investment Reform Leadership
Group.
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Economic Development
The Department aims to enhance opportunities for Aboriginal people
to maximise their potential and to increase their social and economic
wellbeing by participating more fully in the State’s economy.
The Department is focussed on promoting Aboriginal businesses to
increase economic opportunities, creating programs and awareness
campaigns to increase reforms that offer economic participation
opportunities for Aboriginal people.
To deliver on this strategy, the Department committed to promote
the benefits of listing on the Aboriginal Business Directory WA to the
Aboriginal business sector, raise awareness of the Government’s
Aboriginal Economic Participation Strategy 2012-2016 and engage
Aboriginal businesses both directly and indirectly through processes
that raise awareness of economic opportunities.
The Department chaired the Aboriginal Business Directory WA
Management Team that oversees the policy and management of the
directory. As at June 2016, the Directory has more than 400
businesses listed.
During the year, the Department delivered the third progress report on
the implementation of the Aboriginal Economic Participation Strategy
and, in conjunction with the Small Business Development Corporation
and Department of Finance, convened a forum to inform Aboriginal
businesses on State government tendering and procurement
processes.
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In 2016-17 the Department will coordinate the fourth and final
report on the implementation of the Strategy. The Department will
continue to provide assistance to Aboriginal people and businesses
by facilitating and brokering partnerships, undertaking research and
economic modelling, providing advice and raising awareness of
current and emerging opportunities. The Department continues to
promote and advocate for Aboriginal economic participation and
achievement, by promoting the requirement for an Aboriginal
engagement plan for all State tender specifications.
The #ALT uses #AboriginalBusinessDirectory. Find 400+ Aboriginal
business listings in metro #Perth & #Regional #WA
#TelethonKids & #DAA working together on Developmental
Pathways Project #AboriginalHealth http://bit.ly/29FawsS

Overall satisfaction of stakeholders with
services related to improving accountability
for the delivery of services to Aboriginal
people is consistent with 2014-15
stakeholder survey results.
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Aboriginal Affairs Coordinating Committee.
The Aboriginal Affairs Coordinating Committee (AACC) is a statutory committee convened under section 19 of the Aboriginal Affairs Planning
Authority Act 1972. The AACC reports to the Minister for Aboriginal Affairs and coordinates the activities of all persons and bodies,
corporate or otherwise, providing or proposing to provide services and assistance in relation to Aboriginal people.
The AACC is currently focussed on addressing systemic issues affecting Aboriginal people in Western Australia.
Report from the Chair – Mr Cliff Weeks
The Aboriginal Affairs Coordinating Committee (AACC) is the main coordinating body for Aboriginal affairs, programs, services and policies in
Western Australia. The AACC draws heavily upon the expertise and knowledge of key Government departments working with Aboriginal
people. Over the past seven years the AACC has increased its membership from eight member agencies in 2009 to 15 in 2016. The
expansion of the membership in 2015-2016 included the Departments’ of Culture and the Arts and Lands to drive priorities in those areas.
Key initiatives the AACC sub-committees undertook during 2015-16, with full endorsement of the Aboriginal Affairs Cabinet Sub-Committee,
include the development of the Western Australian Aboriginal Health and Wellbeing Framework 2015-2030, the Western Australian Mental
Health, Alcohol and other Drug Services Plan 2015-2025, the Suicide Prevention 2020 Strategy - Together we can save lives, the Aboriginal
Governance Leadership Development Program, the KindiLink 3 year old Aboriginal early education program, the Safer Families, Safer
Communities - Kimberley Family Violence Regional Plan and the Intensive Family Support Homes Pilot Program.
In addition, the State Government is currently undergoing a suite of significant Aboriginal affairs reforms which are monitored by the AACC,
in the regional and remote communities of the Pilbara and Kimberley in the form of Regional Services Reforms, and in the Perth
metropolitan and the Mid-West regions, via the Youth Investment Reform, and the Justice Reforms targeting Deaths in Custody and the
Aboriginal Over-representation in the Justice System.

45

Community Development

Community Development
The Department of Aboriginal Affairs is focussed on supporting the
Western Australian Aboriginal community to independently determine
and further their identified priorities.
The Department achieves this through supporting Aboriginal people to
advance their priorities through community-led policy, partnerships and
programs. The Community Development directorate delivers projects
and services to support the ambitions of Aboriginal people and develop
awareness of Aboriginal culture and history in the broader Western
Australian community. Those services included the provision of
community grants and sponsorships, and developing partnerships that
build the capacity of Aboriginal people to improve social outcomes.
In 2015-2016, the Community Development directorate achieved
significant milestones, including a substantial increase in participation
for the Reconciliation Week Street Banner project and 2016 PALS
Program. The development of a partnership with the State Records
Office has enabled the digitisation of an initial key selection of
Aboriginal family history documents which will expand to the entire
collection in 2016/17. In concert with this, 240 audio visual historical
records have been digitised to safeguard them for the future.
The outcomes of this work is reflected in the achievement of a
94 per cent satisfaction rate among directorate stakeholders, a
significant increase from 81 per cent the previous year.
DAA team is blown away by #WASchools enthusiastic response to
#PALS2016 ! #Reconciliation
A HUGE response to #StreetBanners16 over 300 banners sponsored
& 150 organisations supporting #reconciliationweek2016

%
2

Underspent
against budget

19

Full Time
Equivalent
employees

%
94

Of stakeholders are
satisfied with the
services relating to
Community
Development

%
82
Operational
commitments
delivered as
planned

Variance against budget

$163,000

Satisfaction with services related to Community
Development

94%

Average cost per initiative funded

$9,074

• 889 Aboriginal history related requests received
• 150 organisations participated in the Reconciliation Street Banners project (37%
increase from 2014-15); 329 banners sponsored in 2015-16 (37% increase from
2014-15); Street Banners Project expanded to 8 additional local governments
• 520 schools delivered 679 PALS projects in 2016, representing an increase of
nearly 42% in the number of participating schools and 61% in the number of
projects undertaken in 2015
• Partnerships with Edith Cowan University, Curtin University, Department of
Culture and the Arts and the Metropolitan Redevelopment Authority established
• 273 requests from external researchers actioned
• 96 requests for Native Title information actioned
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Recognition and connection
The Department is focussed on connecting people to Aboriginal
culture and history, promoting culturally appropriate methods to
share knowledge and information within the community, and
identifying innovative approaches to user research and stories to
improve cultural connection.
To deliver on this strategy, the Community Development directorate
provided historical and genealogical research to an increased
number of Aboriginal and non-Aboriginal people in 2015-2016 and
oversaw the expansion of both the Reconciliation Week Street
Banner Project and the PALS Program.
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2015-2016 financial year. This represents a 392 per cent increase over
the last four years and demonstrates the significance of AHRU services
to the Aboriginal community.
These services are critical in the work of the Department to support
healing within the community and help to mitigate the effects of past
government policies that displaced so many Aboriginal people.

The Banner project was an outstanding success, with 150
organisations from the public and private sector participating and
sponsoring 329 banners across ten metropolitan local government
areas, which includes eight new local government areas in 2015-16.

Aboriginal Family History Records Digitisation Project
The State Records Office of Western Australia (SROWA) has custody of
approximately 15,000 archival files created by the agencies that
precede the Department of Aboriginal Affairs as having responsibility
for Aboriginal affairs in Western Australia. These files are used by the
Aboriginal History Research Unit (AHRU) in responding to requests for
family and associated historical information from the Aboriginal
community and researchers.

The PALS program funded 520 schools to carry out 679
reconciliation projects. This represented a participation rate increase
of more than 40 per cent and represents approximately half of the
schools in the State.

To streamline research processes and prevent the deterioration of the
original documents from constant handling, a project to digitise the
archived records has been commenced and is expected to be
completed by mid-2017.

Aboriginal History Research Unit
The Aboriginal History Research Unit (AHRU) manages access to
the State archives and privately owned records that are under the
jurisdiction of the Department and responds to requests for
historical information relating to Aboriginal people.
The number of research and family history requests received by
AHRU has risen steadily with 933 requests recorded in the

Additionally, the Department retains approximately 240 audio and
visual tapes recorded between 1961 and 1998, that have been
digitised. These recordings contain Aboriginal oral history, linguistic
and cultural information including interviews with a number of
prominent Aboriginal people who are now deceased. The collection
represents significant value to the history of Aboriginal people in
Western Australia.
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Sustainable partnerships
Long term community and government partnerships drives sustainable
change. The Department is focussed on brokering strategic
partnerships and establishing initiatives between Aboriginal
organisations, government, non-government and corporate entities.
During the year, the Department established a partnership with
Edith Cowan University’s Kurongkurl Katitjin Centre to conduct
research into potential reform, rationalisation and reinvestment in
Aboriginal affairs in Western Australia. Linking this work to the
Strategic Framework of the Western Australian Aboriginal Advisory
Council (WAAAC) has been beneficial in supporting that document
with independent national and international research.
A second partnership with Edith Cowan resulted in They Served with
Honour: An Exhibition based on the publication by the Department
which commemorated the lives of Aboriginal men who served during
the Gallipoli campaign.
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They Served with Honour, An Exhibition
The Department collaborated with Edith Cowan University to
hold They Served with Honour: An Exhibition featuring
artworks and historical photographs celebrating and
recognising the contribution of 13 Aboriginal Western
Australian servicemen who served at Gallipoli. The exhibition
was launched on 27 April 2016 at Edith Cowan University Art
Gallery to mark this year’s ANZAC Centenary. This exhibition
was based on the publication, They Served with Honour:
Untold Stories of Western Australian Aboriginal Servicemen
which was researched, produced and published by the
Department. This book is available at
http://www.daa.wa.gov.au/community-development/theyserved-with-honour/.
Carrolup Collection
The Carrolup Aboriginal child artists are a significant part of
Western Australia’s history. The materials are a collection of
children’s artworks, letters, photographs and other provenance
items produced between 1945 and 1951 at the Carrolup Mission.

Through a partnership agreement with the Department of Culture and
the Arts, the book They Served with Honour has also been made
available through their bookshop outlets. Proceeds from the sale of
In 2013, the artworks were repatriated from Colgate University in
the book will go towards a tertiary scholarship for a Western Australian New York, back home to Western Australia with Curtin
Aboriginal person.
University selected as the preferred custodian due to its
commitment to and engagement with the Noongar Community.
The Department also worked with the Metropolitan Redevelopment
In 2015, 21 additional artworks were identified at the
Authority, providing advice and support on the development of key
Department of Aboriginal Affairs and were transferred to Curtin
projects in Perth such as the Elizabeth Quay development.
University to sit alongside the larger collection. These artworks
are profoundly important historical and cultural artefacts from
In November 2015, the Department partnered with Curtin University,
the Stolen Generations.
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Revealed Art Market: Genesis Healing Project
The Genesis Healing Project stall, run by the Department and Genesis
Lodge (Genesis) was a success at this year’s 2016 Revealed Art Market
at Fremantle Arts Centre, with hundreds of people attending the
one-day-only event. The event provided the Genesis artists, who
created the artworks for the 2016 Reconciliation Week Street Banner
project, the opportunity to sell their beautiful and dynamic works.
The inclusion of the Genesis stall helped to illuminate the important
healing and spiritual benefits that art-making provides Aboriginal
people, particularly for those receiving specialist medical treatment.
Cultural competency
Improving relationships and respect between Aboriginal and
non-Aboriginal people not only delivers better opportunities for
Aboriginal people but also adds value to our community as a whole.
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support reconciliation, with 80 per cent of respondents indicating
that their organisation placed high priority on reconciliation, and
90 per cent of workplaces had undertaken reconciliation activities in
the last 12 months prior to completing the survey.
Community Ownership
Aboriginal community driven policy, project and program design
builds greater responsibility for priorities and outcomes.
The Department is focussed on providing advice to government and
assistance to Aboriginal communities to design, deliver, participate
in, and evaluate policy, program and projects, as well as support
Aboriginal communities to assume greater ownership and
responsibility of community priorities and outcomes.

In 2015-16, the Department leveraged from the success of the
Reconciliation Week Street Banner Project to develop and promote a
Cultural Competency Framework to the 150 organisations that
participated in the Project. The Framework identified the principles
and key elements that organisations need to consider in moving
towards culturally responsive practice.

To deliver on this strategy, the Department contributed to the
development of a community engagement mechanism that is
focussed on fostering leadership at the individual, family and
community levels. Whilst embryonic, the Department believes this
mechanism will develop the capacity to inform, design and deliver
policy, programs and projects will develop at the local, regional and
state levels.

A survey was also undertaken with those organisations to gauge their
perceptions and attitudes towards reconciliation and cultural
understanding. Encouragingly, the survey found a clear aspiration to

The Department is committed to, and will continue to provide, policy
and research support for the Western Australian Aboriginal Advisory
Council in 2016-17.

49

Page 50
Strengths based investment
The Department is focussed on recognising and promoting
effective community-based approaches, identifying innovative
funding models, and supporting evidence-based research to
identify new and better ways of doing things.
To deliver on this strategy the Department established an online
grants application process. The system was trialled during 2016
in administering the PALS program. Benefits of the new online
application process included better integration with corporate
financial and performance management systems, a more
streamlined application process and improved communication
with applicants.
Grants Directory
In 2016, the Department invested in research to develop an online
Directory of grants and sponsorship opportunities from the
government, community, corporate and philanthropic sectors.
The Directory aims to support funded, community-based
organisations and individuals in Western Australia in locating
alternative sources of financial assistance for their programs and
initiatives in the context of a diminishing departmental grants and
sponsorship budget. It was developed to assist Aboriginal
community organisations and individuals in Western Australia in
locating alternative sources of financial assistance for their
programs and initiatives.
In the market for a #grant? Our research has uncovered over 400
resources http://bit.ly/27TlqBH #Aboriginal #WA
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More than 400 grants are listed on the Directory which is easy to use
and searchable by keywords, category and eligibility. In 2016-17, the
Department will continue to maintain the directory to support
community based approaches and organisations in identifying funding
opportunities.
Black Diggers Regional Telecast
The Department is focussed on brokering strategic partnerships and
establishing initiatives between Aboriginal organisations, government,
non-government and corporate entities.
The Aboriginal History Research Unit (AHRU) provided historical
research and advice for Westlink’s regional telecast of a filmed
performance of Black Diggers. The play, Black Diggers, was a highlight
of the 2015 Perth International Arts Festival. It explored stories of the
hundreds of Aboriginal soldiers who stepped up to fight for Australia in
World War I.
Regional screenings of the telecast throughout remote Australia were
prefaced with a filmic introduction by a descendant of Larry and
Lewis Farmer, brothers from Katanning who fought at Gallipoli and were
featured in the book, They Served with Honour. The telecasts were very
well received by regional audiences.
The Department will continue to provide advice and support to
organisations to assist with key community projects that promote
Aboriginal culture and understanding.
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Western Australian Aboriginal Advisory Council (WAAAC)
The Western Australian Aboriginal Advisory Council is a statutory council convened under the Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority
Act 1972. The Council provides advice to the Minister for Aboriginal Affairs on matters relating to the interests and wellbeing of
Aboriginal people.
Report from the Chair – Mr Ian Trust
The Western Australian Aboriginal Advisory Council (WAAAC) is a statutory body that provides a direct line of communication between
the Minister for Aboriginal Affairs and the State’s Aboriginal people and communities to improve social and economic outcomes for
Aboriginal people.
In September 2015 the WAAAC was reconvened with the appointment of six new members and the re-appointment of two members.
I was pleased to be elected Chair at the first meeting of the new WAAAC in November 2015. I would like to acknowledge the contribution of the
outgoing WAAAC members and hope that the current members can continue to work together to ensure that appropriate engagement with
Aboriginal people in Western Australia is achieved.
Since re-establishment, the Board has met four times and has developed a draft strategic framework which builds on concepts developed by
myself and the Wunan Foundation. It focuses on four key areas to improve outcomes for Aboriginal Western Australians: opportunities for
businesses, education, employment and leadership.
Achieving results through this framework will be informed by research and consultation with Government, Aboriginal communities and
service providers. It will identify our priorities and form the basis of our future activities.
The WAAAC is looking forward to working with Government and the Aboriginal community to improve the outcomes and wellbeing of
Aboriginal Western Australians.
Details on WAAAC Board Members and remuneration is
provided in the “Governance and Legal Disclosures”
section of this report on page 168.
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Intelligence, Technology, Innovation and Communication (iTiC)
In 2015-16 the Department strengthened its Intelligence, Technology, Innovation and Communication program, and reinforced the value of the
program by adopting and embedding these operating principles into its Strategic Framework and operational plans. These principles underpin
the strategic objectives and projects for each of the service areas and are reflective of the nature of organisational change underway across the
Department.
With these operating principles, the Department has delivered cost savings, exceeded performance targets, and implemented new corporate
systems and processes that provide greater opportunity for data analytics for evidence based policy and regulatory process support.
Intelligence
Intelligence enables better insights from data, to solve problems, design
services and deliver outcomes. The Department uses processes,
methods, measurements and systems to view, analyse and understand
information relevant to the history, current performance or future
directions of the Department.
During the year, the Department progressed a number of initiatives
focussed on improving intelligence gathering and analysis to guide
strategy development, support decision making and evaluate the
effectiveness and efficiency of its programs. These include:
• the Aboriginal Affairs Coordinating Committee Data Warehouse;
• new corporate performance and risk management and reporting
tools; and
• Intelligence and evaluation guides for employees.
Noelene White, daughter of Mr & Mrs White. Teachers at Carrolup
Mission between 1940 & early 1950

Aboriginal Affairs Coordinating Committee Data Warehouse
During 2015-16, the Department committed to establishing the
Aboriginal Affairs Coordinating Committee data warehouse. The
data warehouse will deliver strategic oversight of progress
addressing Aboriginal disadvantage within Western Australia,
and is consistent with the Government’s Open Data policy.
The data warehouse will enable more comprehensive, reliable
and consistent reporting against 24 indicators of wellbeing
across eight sub-regions of the State and will alleviate time
consuming and resource intensive ad hoc data gathering
exercises.
The Department established the required agreements and
infrastructure to populate the warehouse, whilst addressing
confidentiality and security issues and is on track for full delivery
in early 2016-17.

Department of Aboriginal Affairs adds to #CurtinUniversity art &
artefact collection #Carrolup #Aboriginal @WAtoday
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Corporate Performance, Risk Management and Business Intelligence
The Department committed to improving transparency and
accountability across the agency through integrated management and
reporting tools to better manage, monitor and evaluate corporate
performance and risk. These tools enable more accessible, reliable
and consistent performance information across a range of corporate
plans, including operational plans, workforce plans, the Department’s
Reconciliation Action plan and other corporate commitments.
During the year, the integrated approach was implemented, coupled
with live dashboards and reports transforming the static plans into a
system that provides consistent and reliable business intelligence and
evidence to support decision making, enables greater agility to adapt
to emerging risks, external factors and other circumstances as
required and enables the systematic implementation of each strategy.
The new system has delivered significant efficiencies, through a single
source for all corporate commitments and access to live business
intelligence information, resulting in reduced duplication, reduced
reporting requirements and improved quality and reliability of
performance data.

Aboriginal Western Australians - discover your family history this
month http://bit.ly/29X2viT #NFHM2016 #AHRU
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Technology
The Department aims to harness the power of digital technology
for educational, social and economic development
opportunities. Technology offers the opportunity to engage with
stakeholders differently and to have a lasting positive impact on
Aboriginal people, particularly those in regional and remote
communities whose access to programs and services is
hindered. Technology creates efficiencies in the Department’s
business by speeding up work flows, improving access to data
and reducing regulatory burden to stakeholders.
During the year, the department committed to ongoing
development of online tools, digitisation of historic records and
spatial systems. This includes the Aboriginal Heritage
Management System (AHELP) and the Contemporary Aboriginal
Land Management System (CALMS). The digitisation road map
will lead to better access to information for staff and
stakeholders relating to Aboriginal land, culture and heritage.
Cloud computing allows mass collaboration around data sets on
a shared platform and can create greater transparency for staff
and stakeholders. In 2015-2016 the Department road-mapped a
modular migration of data sources from Microsoft On-Premise
to Microsoft 365 (Cloud-based), designed and implemented to
house data for internal analysis, in order to strike a balance
between data security and transparency with stakeholders.

They Served with Honour- Exhibition celebrates Noongar Artists &
#Aboriginal #ANZAC Soldiers
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In 2015 – 2016 the Department planned a modular software upgrade
“cherry picking” cloud components from the Microsoft 365 suite to
support the Department’s technology plan. The SharePoint Intranet
was the first module to be migrated to the Cloud and went live at the
end of the financial year.
The Cloud-based analytics tools have revolutionised traditional
manual reporting for risk management and corporate performance,
creating live interactive dashboard reports linking the SharePoint Risk
Register and Corporate Performance Management and Reporting
System to Power BI.
Innovation
The Department is striving to do things differently, whether through
radical new approaches to delivering quality of life outcomes for
Aboriginal people, or simple process improvements to save money
and time, thus improving productivity for internal and external
stakeholders alike.
During the year, the Department committed to a number of activities
focussed on innovation and collaboration. A series of internal
workshops were held which focussed on exploring public sector
trends, and training for employees and managers. The Department
participated in events, including the Institute of Public Administration
Australia (WA)’s Innovation series and GovHack 2015.
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GovHack is an event held annually across Australia, which brings
together programmers, designers, entrepreneurs, archivists,
librarians and other enthusiasts to work with government data, to
innovate and create. The Department was one of five government
sponsors for the 2015 event in Perth and sponsored four State
prizes, as well as co-sponsoring a national prize. Using data
provided by the department, and “mashed up” with other open
source data, participants developed prototype applications
focussed on Aboriginal people and culture, economic development,
geospatial and historical information.
The Department, through the iTiC working group is exploring
opportunities for using innovative technologies, such as augmented
reality and geospatial data, to celebrate Aboriginal culture and
history. It is currently developing a prototype for a cultural walking
trail in the East Perth area, overlaying current geographical features
with Aboriginal heritage-related information. If successful, the
application presents educational, partnership and economic
opportunities and presents a new and modern way for the
Department to engage with stakeholders.
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Communication
The Department recognises the importance of connection – to
people, to country and to family. The Department seeks to find new
and better ways to connect with stakeholders and to include them in
policy and service design, learn from them and find ways to keep
them better informed of decisions and initiatives that may impact
them.

Governance and Leadership
During 2015-16 the Department reviewed its organisational and
governance structure, commencing a transformational review of
the Heritage directorate and establishing governance
sub-committees focussed on operations, corporate matters, policy
oversight, risk and audit, communications and organisational
transformation.

During the year, the Department invested in improving
communication and engagement with stakeholders through more
stakeholder workshops and forums, a new look website, monthly
Aboriginal Affairs electronic newsletters and through social media.

Management of all aspects of corporate performance and
effectiveness is a key priority for the Department’s leadership.
The new committee structure includes cross agency participation
to monitor and manage issues and activities that deliver
improvements to corporate governance, citizenship, management
and staffing matters.

The forums focussed on sharing information and providing more
opportunities for Aboriginal people to work with us, and have their
say.
Our electronic communications have focussed on ensuring a more
balanced picture of the way the state of Aboriginal affairs is
presented, with DAA e-news and social media stories using Twitter
and LinkedIn to highlight important events, achievements and issues
in Aboriginal affairs, and ensure that the success stories and positive
role-models in modern Aboriginal culture are promoted and
celebrated.
The Department will continue to explore opportunities to improve
communication and engagement with stakeholders and is focussed
on continuing to build connections, collaborate and seek input from
stakeholders to build a shared positive future for Aboriginal people.

Code of Conduct
During the year, the Department released a new Code of Conduct
(the Code), outlining the standards of behaviour and conduct for
employees and affiliates, and emphasises responsibility provide
high standards of service in our day to day conduct. The release of
the Code was complemented with Accountable and Ethical
Decision Making training, where participants applied the Code to
scenarios, to understand the complexity of public sector ethics,
and to use the guide to navigate towards accountable and ethical
decision making and to better understand the obligations of
employees, employers and other integrity bodies and standards
that may apply.
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Equity and diversity
The Department strongly values equity and diversity, as signified in the
Department’s values. This is well reflected in the Department’s
performance against diversity targets, in areas of senior management,
women and Aboriginal employees. The Department is well placed to
participate in discussions about supporting and developing Aboriginal
employees and embracing Aboriginal culture in the workplace.
The Department’s workforce strategy, includes equal employment
opportunity and diversity principles, embedded in four strategic areas
of leadership, attraction, engagement and development.
The Department has an excellent representation of Aboriginal
employees at 24.5 per cent compared to the public sector average
of 2.7 per cent. The Department is exploring opportunities to develop
Aboriginal employees to be competitive for higher level and
managerial positions.
The Department has a strong representation of female employees,
at 63 per cent of the workforce, with two of five Tier 2 positions held
by women. The Department’s Women in Leadership team have
developed a plan focussed on building leadership capability and
opportunity for the future.

Part 3 – Report on Operations

Performance development and review
The performance and development of employees is defined,
monitored and evaluated through a formal performance development
and review process. The process establishes a formal agreement
between manager and employee, articulating performance
expectations towards delivery of strategic and operational plans, as
well as values and behaviours and enable meaningful and constructive
discussions with regard to performance expectations and evaluation.
Ideas and suggestions
The Department supports the iTiC working group, which is an informal
and employee driven initiative focussed promoting idea sharing and
collaboration across the Department. The working group is a voluntary
think tank made up employees from all areas of the agency, with
flexible membership that is focussed on identifying problems and
opportunities and to research, design and develop proposals to
address them.
The working group created an online forum for discussion of issues and
ideas and is exploring new ways to promote employee engagement
and participation in the program.
A number of significant projects have emerged from this group,
including the Interagency Data Warehouse project, participation in
GovHack 2015, the Department’s social media engagement, and
business intelligence tools.
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Disclosures and Legal Compliance

Disclosures and Legal Compliance
•

Auditor General’s Opinion – Department of
Aboriginal Affairs

•

Department of Aboriginal Affairs Key
Effectiveness Indicators

•

Department of Aboriginal Affairs Key Efficiency
Indicators

•

Department of Aboriginal Affairs Financial
Statements

•

Auditor General’s Opinion – Aboriginal Affairs
Planning Authority

•

Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority Key
Effectiveness Indicator

•

Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority Key
Efficiency Indicator

•

Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority Financial
Statements

•

Board and Committee Remuneration

•

Ministerial directives

•

Other financial disclosures

•

Unauthorised use of credit cards

•

Governance disclosures
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Certification of Key Performance Indicators
I hereby certify that the key performance indicators are based on proper
records, are relevant and appropriate for assisting users to assess the
Department of Aboriginal Affairs’ performance, and fairly represent the
performance of the Department of Aboriginal Affairs for the financial year
ended 30 June 2016.

Cliff Weeks
Director General
Date:

1 September 2016
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Department of Aboriginal Affairs for the year ended 30 June 2016

EFFECTIVENESS INDICATORS
To report on the Department of Aboriginal Affairs effectiveness indicators, a survey is conducted on an annual basis, using an
independent, external research provider to ensure objectivity, as well as relevance and validity of the survey process. Survey
responses are sought from direct stakeholders, including other government agencies, key stakeholder committees and key community
organisations.
Advantage Communications - Research were engaged by the Department of Aboriginal Affairs to undertake the 2015-16
Annual Performance Measurement Survey. Telephone interviews were undertaken for the 2015-16 reporting period, consistent with
the previous year in order to secure the target participation rates. The stakeholder population identified for the survey was similar in
structure to prior years, but individual stakeholders vary from year to year.
For 2015-16 survey, key stakeholders were identified for interview across the Heritage, Land, Accountable Government and Community
Development directorates. Across the department, 246 stakeholders were interviewed from a database of 284 stakeholders, achieving
an 87 per cent participation rate with an overall maximum error ratio of +/-1.8 per cent at the 95 per cent confidence level. The
surveys were conducted in June 2016.
For the 2016-17 financial year, the targets across all services areas will increase to 80 per cent.
Stakeholder Satisfaction Survey Results

84%

72% 65%

ABORIGINAL
HERITAGE

63%

77%

65%

ABORIGINAL LANDS
2014-15 Actual

85% 83%

65%

ACCOUNTABLE
GOVERNMENT
2015-16 Actual

81%

94%
65%

COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT

79% 81%

65%

DAA TOTAL

2015-16 Budget
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HERITAGE

Outcome 1: Achieving the right balance between development and protection of Aboriginal heritage to ensure economic opportunities are leveraged to the
benefit of the whole community.
Percentage of direct stakeholders satisfied with the services related to the management of Aboriginal heritage
2013-14
Actual

2014-15
Actual

2015-16
Actual

2015-16
Target

90%

84%

72%

65%

Variance
 7% above 2015-16 Target
 Decline of 12% compared to 2014-15 Actual

90%

84%
72%

65%

By conducting a survey of stakeholders the Department seeks to measure its effectiveness in achieving
the right balance between:
•
Development, which leads to the delivery of economic benefits for all Western Australians; and
•
Protection of Aboriginal heritage, which will ensure that it is preserved for the future enjoyment
of both Aboriginal people and the wider community.
The services related to achieving this balance include support for the Aboriginal Cultural Material
Committee (ACMC); advice on matters relating to Aboriginal heritage; processing of statutory
approvals; administration of the heritage sites register; research and heritage compliance activities.
A total of 77 respondents from a database of 90 stakeholders, responded to the survey relating to
heritage, resulting in an overall participation rate of 86 per cent at a maximum error ratio of +/- 3.8 per
cent at the 95 per cent confidence level. The sample comprised 36 per cent from government agencies,
13 per cent from Aboriginal organisations, 13 per cent from community/not for profit organisations and
38 per cent from commercial.
The overall stakeholder satisfaction level of 72 per cent represents a 12 per cent decline from the
2014-15 Actual, however, it is still 7 per cent above the target.

2013-14
Actual

2014-15
Actual

2015-16
Actual

2015-16
Target

The survey indicates a decline in satisfaction relating to transparency and efficiency in decision-making
processes and investigations of possible damage to Aboriginal sites. The Department expected a
downturn in the result during 2015-16 as business process improvement and new systems were
implemented. The Supreme Court’s judicial review decision handed down in 2015 required the
Department and the ACMC to review site assessment guidelines. Applications associated with potential
sites under 5(b) were placed on hold until the implications of the Supreme Court decision and how to
address the broader interpretation from the decision. This resulted in short term increase in
timeframes for statutory approvals, updating the register and completing assessments. During the year,
Heritage services were also impacted by legal review of Roe 8 Approvals which is expected to have
64
further impacted on stakeholder satisfaction relating to the management of Aboriginal heritage.
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LAND

Outcome 2: Better utilisation of the Aboriginal Lands Trust Estate to achieve shared social and economic outcomes.
Percentage of direct stakeholders satisfied with the services related to the management of the Aboriginal Lands Trust Estate.
2013-14
Actual

2014-15
Actual

2015-16
Actual

2015-16
Target

59%

63%

77%

65%

Variance:
 12% above 2015-16 Target
 Increase of 14% compared to 2014-15
Actual

65%

63%

The services related to the management of the ALT Estate includes the provision of secretariat and
policy support to the ALT Board; provision of advice to the ALT Board, Aboriginal people, the
Minister for Aboriginal Affairs, government and key stakeholders in relation to the management of
the ALT Estate, processing of land access approvals, assisting with the operational management of
strategic initiatives in accordance with the ALT strategic plan and facilitating the transfer of land to
Aboriginal people.
A total of 58 respondents from a database of 66 participated in the survey, yielding an 88 per cent
participation rate at +/- 3.8 per cent maximum error ratio at the 95 per cent confidence level. The
survey sample comprised 55 per cent from government agencies, 25 per cent from Aboriginal
organisations, 9 per cent from community/not for profit organisations and 11 per cent from
commercial.

77%
59%

This measure seeks to determine the Department’s effectiveness in better utilising the Aboriginal Land
Trust (ALT) Estate to achieve shared social and economic outcome.

The overall satisfaction level of 77 per cent represents a 14 per cent improvement on the 2014-15
actual and a 12 per cent positive variance against the target.
Improvements in survey results relate to overall management of land on behalf of Aboriginal people
and reflect stakeholder satisfaction regarding a focus on creating awareness of economic opportunities
for Aboriginal people in relation to ALT Estate. The results also show satisfaction with an improved
response to remediation of health and safety risks on ALT Estate and improved engagement with
stakeholders on matters such as ALT policies, leasing, land access and land divestment opportunities.

2013-14
Actual

2014-15
Actual

2015-16
Actual

2015-16
Target
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ACCOUNTABLE GOVERNMENT

Outcome 3: Improving accountability for the delivery of outcomes for Aboriginal people from government investments
Percentage of direct stakeholders satisfied with the services related to improving accountability for the delivery of services to Aboriginal people.
2013-14
Actual

2014-15
Actual

2015-16
Actual

2015-16
Target

58%

85%

83%

65%

 18% above 2015-16 Target
 Decline of 2% compared to 2014-15 Actual

85%

83%
65%

58%

2013-14
Actual

2014-15
Actual

2015-16
Actual

2015-16
Target

This measure seeks to determine the Department’s effectiveness in improving accountability for the
delivery of outcomes from government investment. This is primarily based upon the activities and
actions associated with the Aboriginal Affairs Coordinating Committee (AACC) and the Department’s
ability to monitor and audit the quality and impact of investments in services to Aboriginal people.
The services related to improving accountability for the delivery of services to Aboriginal people
involves the provision of secretariat and policy support for the AACC, including advice, monitoring and
reporting on the delivery of outcomes for Aboriginal people from government investments and
intergovernmental activities.
A total of 66 respondents participated in the survey, from a database of 77 stakeholders, yielding an
86 per cent participation rate at a +/- 3.5 per cent maximum error ratio at the 95 per cent confidence
level. The survey sample comprised 88 per cent from government agencies, 6 per cent from Aboriginal
organisations and 6 per cent from community/not for profit organisations.
The overall satisfaction level of 83 per cent represents a 2 per cent decline on the 2014-15 actual,
however, it was still 18 per cent above the target.
The minor decline relates to the confidence of stakeholders in the Department’s ability to maintain a
high degree of situational awareness in regional areas, as it relates to Aboriginal communities and its
performance accountability focus on regional service. The Department continues to focus on
improving accountability for the delivery of outcomes from government investment for Aboriginal
people.
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COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

Outcome 4: Supporting the Western Australian Aboriginal community to independently determine and further their priorities.
Percentage of direct stakeholders satisfied with the services related to community development programs for Aboriginal people.
2013-14
Actual

2014-15
Actual

2015-16
Actual

2015-16
Target

87%

81%

94%

65%

Variance
 29% above 2015-16 Target
 Increase of 13% compared to 2014-15
Actual

This measure seeks to determine the Department’s support of the Aboriginal community to
independently determine and further its priorities through enhancing partnerships that build the
capacity of Aboriginal people to improve social outcomes.
The services included in determining the extent to which the Department has been effective against
this outcome include the provision of secretariat and policy support for the Western Australian
Aboriginal Advisory Committee (WAAAC); developing partnerships that build capacity of Aboriginal
people to improve social outcomes; and reconciliation activities.
A total of 55 respondents participated in the survey from a database of 63 stakeholders yielding an
87 per cent participation rate at a +/- 2.3 per cent maximum error ratio at the 95 per cent confidence
level. The survey sample comprised 29 per cent from government agencies, 23 per cent from
Aboriginal organisations, 31 per cent from community and 17 per cent from industry.

77%
59%

2013-14
Actual

65%

63%

The overall satisfaction level of 94 per cent represents a 13 per cent improvement on the 2014-15
actual, and a 29 per cent positive variance against the target.
In 2015-16, stakeholder satisfaction with the services related to community development programs for
Aboriginal people significantly improved, with stakeholders expressing high levels of satisfaction
related to initiatives such as the Partnership, Acceptance, Learning and Sharing (PALS) program,
Reconciliation Week Street Banner Project, Reconciliation Action Plans and Projects, the provision of
Aboriginal Family Histories and the digitisation of those records. Stakeholders reported significant
improvements in how community development programs were promoted during the year, as well as
the administration of grants and sponsorships, as well as referral services. Improvements were also
recorded for secretariat and policy support for the WAAAC, and in customer service.

2014-15
Actual

2015-16
Actual

2015-16
Target
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Heritage Management

2013-14
Actual

2014-15
Actual

2015-16
Actual

2015-16
Target

Average processing time per statutory approval

69 days

74 days

106 days

70 days

Average time to update register

12 days

18 days

30 days

15 days

Average time to complete initial assessment

3 days

4.2 days

7 days

7 days

Average Processing time per statutory
approval
106
69

74

2013-14
Actual

2014-15
Actual

70
2015-16
Actual

2015-16
Target

Average time to update the register
30
12

18

2013-14
Actual

2014-15
Actual

15
2015-16
Actual

2015-16
Target

Average time to complete the initial
assessment

3

4.2

2013-14
Actual

2014-15
Actual

7

7

2015-16
Actual

2015-16
Target

Variance
 36 days over 2015-16 Target
 34 day increase compared to 2014-15 Actual
 15 days over 2015-16 Target
 12 day increase compared to 2014-15 Actual
 Equal with 2015-16 Target
 3 day increase compared to 2014-15 Actual

The Department is responsible for administering the Aboriginal Heritage Act and within this responsibility
includes the processing of statutory approvals. Improving approvals performance is a high priority of the
government, acknowledging that a lack of certainty and unnecessary time delays have financial implications
and reputational repercussions for stakeholders. Accordingly, the Department considers managing
statutory approvals as a key measure of efficiency in delivery of Aboriginal heritage services. By
benchmarking and reporting average time taken to achieve statutory approvals relating to heritage
management, improvements with regard to timeliness of heritage approvals are reported on an annual
basis.
In 2015-16 the average processing time per statutory approval increased by 32 days compared to the
2014-15 Actual. This increase is attributed to the additional time taken to process more complex
transactions, including those applications affected by the decision handed down by Justice Chaney and
those where the Minister is constrained under the Environmental Protection Act 1986. As a result of the
Chaney decision, applications associated with potential section 5(b) sites were placed on hold until the
Department had a better understanding of its implications and how to deal with the broader interpretation.
In 2015-16 the average time to update the register increased from 18 days to 30 days, which is attributed
to the implementation of new systems and changes in staffing. As the new systems and skills settle, the
average time is expected to reduce significantly. The target for 2016-17 has decreased by 20 per cent
taking into account the expected efficiencies from the upgraded system and employee capability
improvements.
The average time to complete the initial assessment equalled the 2015-16 Target, albeit marginally higher
than the 2014-15 Actual. The three day increase is attributed to the implementation of new systems and a
reduction in Full Time Equivalent employees.
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Land Management

2013-14
Actual

2014-15
Actual

2015-16
Actual

2015-16
Target

Average processing time per land transaction

8.7 days

4.3 days

3.5 days

10 days

Average processing time per land
transaction
10

8.7
4.33
2013-14
Actual

2014-15
Actual

3.5
2015-16
Actual

2015-16
Target

2014-15
Actual

2015-16
Actual

2015-16
Target

Average cost per 1,000 Aboriginal population

$142,070

$65,126

$48,362

$58,199

2013-14
Actual

2014-15
Actual

$48,362
2015-16
Actual

$58,199

2015-16
Target

 0.8 day reduction compared to 2014-15 Actual

The positive variance between the 2015-16 Budget and 2015-16 Actual is attributed to the high volume of
simple transactions associated with the on-line transit permit system. The target for 2016-17 will be
reduced to correspond with performance trends.
2013-14
Actual

$65,126

 6.5 days below 2015-16 Target

This indicator seeks to measure the Department’s efficiency against the services related to the
management of the Aboriginal Lands Trust (ALT) Estate by benchmarking and reporting average time taken
to achieve land transactions relating to land management and improvements with regard to timeliness of
processes. This measure will help to identify improvements and achievements in terms of the following
result areas:
• Effective management of the ALT Estate land and its associated assets through timely approval of leases
by the ALT Board and processing of transit permits; and
• Better integration with development processes through the timely processing of mining entry permits.

Accountable Government

Average cost per 1,000 of Aboriginal
population
$142,070

Variance

Variance
 $9,837 below 2015-16 Target

 $16,764 reduction compared to 2014-15 Actual
This indicator seeks to measure the Department’s efficiency against the services provided in relation to the
accountability of government. The measure is calculated by applying the cost incurred by the Department in
delivering these services to the Western Australian Aboriginal population (per 1,000). By benchmarking and
reporting average cost per 1,000 of the Aboriginal population relating to accountable government activities.
Results against this measure will help to identify improvements and achievements in terms of the results
sought of improving accountability for the delivery of outcomes for Aboriginal people from government
investments through activities relating to the Aboriginal Affairs Coordinating Committee, and other
intergovernmental activities such as the implementation of national partnership agreements.
The increasing Aboriginal population coupled with a decrease in the total cost of services has resulted in a
significant reduction in the average cost per 1,000 of Aboriginal population. The decline in the cost of services
was primarily the result of fewer Full Time Equivalent employees, and the reallocation of activities with
69
associated overheads.
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Community Development

2013-14
Actual

2014-15
Actual

2015-16
Actual

2015-16
Target

Average cost per initiative funded

$24,091

$14,855

$9,074

$14,742

Average cost per community development
initiative funded
$24,091

$14,855

$14,742
$9,074

2013-14
Actual

2014-15
Actual

2015-16
Actual

2015-16
Target

Variance
 $5,668 below 2015-16 Target
 $5,781 reduction compared to 2014-15 Actual

This indicator measures the Department’s efficiency against the services provided in relation to supporting
the Aboriginal Community to independently determine and further its priorities.
Results against this measure will assist in identifying improvements and achievements in the provision of
initiatives funded by the Department, including the Aboriginal community patrols program; reconciliation
activities and grants to community organisations that seek to build the capacity of Aboriginal people to
improve social outcomes.
The 2015-16 Actual Average Cost per Initiative Funded is lower than the 2015-16 Budget as a result of
reallocation of grants and sponsorship to the Partnership, Acceptance, Learning and Sharing (PALS)
program during the year to fund a significant increase in the number of participating schools, from the
expected 520 initiatives to 679 initiatives funded during the year.
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Financial Statements

Department of Aboriginal Affairs for the year ended 30 June 2016

Certification of Financial Statements
The accompanying financial statements of the Department of Aboriginal
Affairs have been prepared in compliance with the provisions of the Financial
Management Act 2006 from proper accounts and records to present fairly
the financial transactions for the financial year ended 30 June 2016 and the
financial position as at 30 June 2016.
At the date of signing we are not aware of any circumstances which would
render the particulars included in the financial statements misleading or
inaccurate.

Maurice Hanrahan
Chief Financial Officer

Cliff Weeks
Director General

Date: 1 September 2016

Date:

1 September 2016
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
as at 30 June 2016

2016
$000

2015
$000

6
7
8
9
10
11

17,696
9,658
670
3,246
928
181
32,379

17,539
9,717
440
3,598
1,498
156
32,948

12

376
376

931
931

376

931

32,003

32,017

31,713
741
52
32,506

32,871
676
86
33,633

503

1,616

-

39
39

503

1,655

Page COST
72 OF SERVICES
Expenses
Employee benefits expense
Supplies and services
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Accommodation expenses
Grants and subsidies
Other expenses
Total cost of services
Income
Revenue
Other revenue
Total Revenue
Total income other than income from State Government
NET COST OF SERVICES
Income from State Government
Service appropriation
Services received free of charge
Royalties for Regions Fund
Total income from State Government

13
13
13

SURPLUS /(DEFICIT) FOR THE PERIOD
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Changes in asset revaluation surplus
Total other comprehensive income
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD

24

See also the 'Schedule of Income and Expenses by Service' at page 76.
The Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Amounts receivable for services
Other current assets
Total Current Assets
Non-Current Assets
Amounts receivable for services
Plant and equipment
Intangible Assets
Total Non-Current Assets

Note

2016
$000
6,114
377
346
543
1,035
8,415

2015
$000
5,381
1,082
262
598
364
7,687

414
764
2,426
3,604

346
528
2,084
2,958

12,019

10,645

21
22
23

417
3,391
1,239
5,047

585
3,256
419
4,260

22

833
833

899
899

TOTAL LIABILITIES

5,880

5,159

NET ASSETS

6,139

5,486

1,411
252
4,476
6,139

1,261
252
3,973
5,486

25
14
15
16
17
16
18
19

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Payables
Provisions
Other current liabilities
Total Current Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Provisions
Total Non-Current Liabilities

EQUITY
Contributed equity
Reserves
Accumulated surplus/(deficit)
TOTAL EQUITY
See also the 'Schedule of Assets and Liabilities by Service' at page 77.
The Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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24
24
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2016
$000

2015
$000

31,102
150
598
52
31,902

32,246
198
185
86
32,715

Payments
Employee benefits
Supplies and services
Accommodation
Grants and subsidies
GST payments on purchases
GST payments to taxation authority
Other payments

(18,036)
(9,952)
(2,674)
(806)
(1,492)
(42)
(160)

(17,488)
(9,650)
(3,019)
(2,618)
(1,448)
(71)
(167)

Receipts
GST receipts on sales
GST receipts from taxation authority
Other receipts
Net cash used in operating activities

45
1,463
1,028
(30,626)

75
1,544
937
(31,905)

(1,248)
(1,248)
28
6,463

(991)
(991)
(181)
6,644

6,491

6,463

CASH FLOWS FROM STATE GOVERNMENT
Service appropriations
Capital contributions
Holding account drawdown
Royalties for Regions Fund
Net cash provided by State Government

Note

Utilised as follows:
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

25

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments
Purchase of non-current physical assets
Net cash used in investing activities
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE PERIOD

25

The Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Reserves
$000

Accumulated
surplus /
(deficit)
$000

Total equity
$000

1,063

213

2,357

3,633

Surplus/(deficit)

-

-

1,616

1,616

Other comprehensive income

-

39

-

39

-

39

1,616

1,655

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners:
Capital appropriations

198

-

-

198

Total

198

-

-

198

Balance at 30 June 2015

1,261

252

3,973

5,486

Balance at 1 July 2015

1,261

252

3,973

5,486

-

-

503
-

503
-

-

-

503

503

150
150

-

-

150
150

1,411

252

4,476

6,139

Balance at 1 July 2014

Total comprehensive income for the period

Surplus/(deficit)
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the period
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners:
Capital appropriations
Total
Balance at 30 June 2016

Note
24

Contributed
equity
$000

The Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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COST OF SERVICES
Expenses
Employee benefits expense
Supplies and services
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Accommodation expenses
Grants and subsidies
Other expenses
Total cost of services

Heritage
Management
2016
2015
$000
$000

2016
$000

2015
$000

Accountable
Government
2016
2015
$000
$000

Land Management

Community
Development
2016
2015
$000
$000

2016
$000

2015
$000

5,753 6,328
3,140 3,507
217
159
1,055 1,297
302
541
59
56
10,526 11,888

17,696
9,658
670
3,246
928
181
32,379

17,539
9,717
440
3,598
1,498
156
32,948

Total

5,960
3,253
226
1,093
313
61
10,906

4,629
2,564
116
950
395
41
8,695

3,401
1,856
129
624
178
35
6,223

3,264
1,808
82
670
279
29
6,132

2,582
1,409
98
474
135
26
4,724

3,318
1,838
83
681
283
30
6,233

127

246

72

173

55

176

122

336

376

931

127

246

72

173

55

176

122

336

376

931

NET COST OF SERVICES

10,779

8,449

6,151

5,959

4,669

6,057

10,404 11,552

32,003

32,017

INCOME FROM STATE GOVERNMENT
Service appropriation
Services received free of charge
Royalties for Regions Fund
Total income from State Government

10,681
250
18
10,949

8,675
178
23
8,876

6,095
142
10
6,247

6,117
126
16
6,259

4,627
108
8
4,743

6,219
128
16
6,363

10,310 11,860
241
244
16
31
10,567 12,135

31,713
741
52
32,506

32,871
676
86
33,633

170

427

96

300

74

306

503

1,616

Income
Other revenue
Total income other than income from State
Government

Surplus/(deficit) for the period

163

583

The Schedule of Income and Expenses by Service should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Heritage
Management

Land Management

Accountable
Government

Community
Development

Total

ASSETS
Current Assets
Non Current Assets
Total assets

2016
$000

2015
$000

2016
$000

2015
$000

2016
$000

2015
$000

2016
$000

2015
$000

2016
$000

2015
$000

2,834
1,214
4,048

2,029
781
2,810

545
233
778

378
145
523

80
34
114

72
27
99

4,956
2,123
7,079

5,208
2,005
7,213

8,415
3,604
12,019

7,687
2,958
10,645

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

1,700
281
1,981

1,124
237
1,361

327
54
381

209
44
253

48
8
56

40
8
48

2,972
490
3,462

2,887
610
3,497

5,047
833
5,880

4,260
899
5,159

NET ASSETS

2,067

1,449

397

270

58

51

3,617

3,716

6,139

5,486

The Schedule of Assets and Liabilities by Service should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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2016
Estimate
$000

2016
Actual
$000

Variance
$000

2015
Actual
$000

2015
Actual
$000

Variance
$000

31,482
705

31,450
705

(32)
-

31,450
705

32,615
-

(1,165)
705

263
32,450

263
32,418

(32)

263
32,418

256
32,871

7
(453)

150

150

-

150

198

(48)

GRAND TOTAL

32,600

32,568

(32)

32,568

33,069

(501)

Details of Expenses by Service
Heritage Management
Land Management
Accountable Government
Community Development
Total Cost of Services
Less Total Income
Net Cost of Services
Adjustments (a)
Total appropriations provided to deliver services

11,395
6,502
4,937
10,998
33,832
(430)
33,402
(952)
32,450

10,906
6,223
4,724
10,526
32,379
(376)
32,003
415
32,418

(489)
(279)
(213)
(472)
(1,453)
54
(1,399)
1,367
(32)

10,906
6,223
4,724
10,526
32,379
(376)
32,003
415
32,418

8,695
6,132
6,233
11,888
32,948
(931)
32,017
854
32,871

2,211
91
(1,509)
(1,362)
(569)
555
(14)
(439)
(453)

Capital Expenditure
Purchase of non-current physical assets
Adjustments for other funding sources
Capital Contribution (appropriation)

1,393
(1,243)
150

(1,248)
1,398
150

(2,641)
2,641
-

(1,248)
1,398
150

(991)
1,189
198

(257)
209
(48)

DELIVERY OF SERVICES
Item 33 Net amount provided to deliver services
Section 25 Transfer of service appropriation
Amount Authorised by Other Statutes
- Salaries and Allowances Act 1975
Total appropriations provided to deliver services
CAPITAL
Item 123 Capital appropriations

(a) Adjustments comprise movements in cash balances and other accrual items such as receivables, payables and superannuation.
Note 30 'Explanatory statement' provides details of any significant variations between estimates and actual results for 2016 and between the actual results for 2016
and 2015.
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Australian Accounting Standards

General
The Department’s financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2016
have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards.
The term ‘Australian Accounting Standards’ includes Standards and
Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standard Board
(AASB).
The Department has adopted any applicable new and revised Australian
Accounting Standards from their operative dates.
Early adoption of standards
The Department cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard
unless specifically permitted by TI 1101 Application of Australian
Accounting Standards and Other Pronouncements. Partial exemption
permitting early adoption of AASB 2015-7 Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards - Fair Value Disclosures of Not-for-Profit Public
Sector Entities has been granted. Aside from AASB 2015-7, there has
been no early adoption of Australian Accounting Standards that have been
issued or amended (but not operative) by the Department for the annual
reporting period ended 30 June 2016.
2.

Summary of significant accounting policies

(a) General statement
The Department is a not-for-profit reporting entity that prepares general
purpose financial statements in accordance with Australian Accounting
Standards, the Framework, Statements of Accounting Concepts and other
authoritative pronouncements of the AASB as applied by the Treasurer's
instructions. Several of these are modified by the Treasurer's instructions
to vary application, disclosure, format and wording.

The Financial Management Act 2006 and the Treasurer's instructions
impose legislative provisions that govern the preparation of financial
statements and take precedence over Australian Accounting Standards,
the Framework, Statements of Accounting Concepts and other
authoritative pronouncements of the AASB.
Where modification is required and has had a material or significant
financial effect upon the reported results, details of that modification and
the resulting financial effect are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.
(b) Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting using the historical cost convention, except for land, buildings
and infrastructure which have been measured at fair value.
The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial
statements have been consistently applied throughout all periods
presented unless otherwise stated.
The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand dollars ($'000).
Note 3 ‘Judgements made by management in applying accounting
policies’ discloses judgements that have been made in the process of
applying the Department’s accounting policies resulting in the most
significant effect on amounts recognised in the financial statements.
Note 4 ‘Key sources of estimation uncertainty’ discloses key assumptions
made concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
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(c) Reporting entity
The reporting entity comprises of the Department only.
Mission
The Department's mission is to manage Aboriginal heritage and land held
in trust for future generations and to ensure outcomes for Aboriginal
people through community development and government investments.
The Department is predominantly funded by Parliamentary appropriation.
Services
The Department provides the following services:
Service 1: Heritage Management
To provide support to achieve the right balance between the
development and protection to ensure economic opportunities are
leveraged to the benefit of the whole community.
Service 2: Land Management
To better utilise the Aboriginal Lands Trust Estate to achieve shared social
and economic benefits.
Service 3: Accountable Government
To provide support to improve accountability for the delivery of outcomes
for Aboriginal people from government investments.
Service 4: Community Development
The provision of support to the Western Australian Aboriginal Community
to independently determine and further their identified priorities.

(d) Contributed equity
AASB Interpretation 1038 Contributions by Owners Made to
Wholly-Owned Public Sector Entities requires transfers in the nature of
equity contributions, other than as a result of a restructure of
administrative arrangements, to be designated by the Government
(the owner) as contributions by owners (at the time of, or prior to
transfer) before such transfers can be recognised as equity contributions.
Capital appropriations have been designated as contributions by owners
by TI 955 Contributions by Owners made to Wholly Owned Public Sector
Entities and have been credited directly to Contributed equity.
The transfer of net assets to/from other agencies, other than as a result of
a restructure of administrative arrangements, are designated as
contributions by owners where the transfers are non-discretionary and
non-reciprocal.
(e) Income
Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised and measured at the fair value of consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is recognised for the major business
activities as follows:
Sale of goods
Revenue is recognised from the sale of goods and disposal of other assets
when the significant risks and rewards of ownership transfer to the
purchaser and can be measured reliably.
Provision of services
Revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the
transaction.
Interest
Revenue is recognised as the interest accrues.
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Service appropriations
Service Appropriations are recognised as revenues at fair value in the
period in which the Department gains control of the appropriated funds.
The Department gains control of appropriated funds at the time those
funds are deposited to the bank account or credited to the ‘Amounts
receivable for services’ (holding account) held at Treasury.
Net Appropriation Determination
The Treasurer may make a determination providing for prescribed
receipts to be retained for services under the control of the Department.
In accordance with the most recent determination, as quantified in the
2015-2016 Budget Statements, the Department retained $0.376 million in
2016 ($1.081 million in 2015) from the following:
• other Departmental revenue; and
• GST input credits
Grants, donations, gifts and other non-reciprocal contributions
Revenue is recognised at fair value when the Department obtains control
over the assets comprising the contributions, usually when cash is
received.
Other non-reciprocal contributions that are not contributions by owners
are recognised at their fair value. Contributions of services are only
recognised when a fair value can be reliably determined and the services
would be purchased if not donated.
Royalties for Regions funds are recognised as revenue at fair value in the
period in which the Department obtains control over the funds. The
Department obtains control of the funds at the time the funds are
deposited into the Department's bank account.

Gains
Realised or unrealised gains are usually recognised on a net basis. These
include gains arising on the disposal of non-current assets and some
revaluations of non-current assets.
(f) Plant and Equipment
Capitalisation / expensing of assets
Items of plant and equipment costing $5,000 or more are recognised as
assets and the cost of utilising assets is expensed (depreciated) over their
useful lives. Items of plant and equipment and works of art costing less than
$5,000 are immediately expensed direct to the Statement of Comprehensive
Income (other than where they form part of a group of similar items which
are significant in total).
Initial recognition and measurement
Plant and equipment are initially recognised at cost.
For items of plant and equipment acquired at no cost or for nominal cost, the
cost is their fair value at the date of acquisition.
Subsequent measurement
Subsequent to initial recognition as an asset, the revaluation model is used
for the measurement of works of art and the cost model for all other plant
and equipment. Works of art are carried at fair value. All other items of
plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
The Department re-values its works of art every three years by a specialist in
the valuation of Aboriginal art. The valuation determined at this time is the
fair value of the works of art. Any additional purchases between
revaluations are recognised at purchase cost.
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Derecognition
Upon disposal or derecognition of an item of plant and equipment or works
of art, any revaluation surplus relating to that asset is retained in the asset
revaluation surplus.
Asset revaluation surplus
The asset revaluation surplus is used to record increments and decrements
on the revaluation of non-current assets on a class of assets basis.
Depreciation
All non-current assets having a limited useful life are systematically
depreciated over their estimated useful lives in a manner that reflects the
consumption of their future economic benefits.
Depreciation is calculated using the straight line method, using rates which
are reviewed annually. Estimated useful lives for each class of depreciable
asset are:
Plant and equipment (excluding Leasehold
Improvements)

8 to 10 years

Leasehold Improvements

Over the remaining
term of lease

Office Equipment

3 to 5 years

Software (a)

3 to 5 years

Motor vehicles

3 to 8 years

(a) Software that is integral to the operation of any related hardware.
Works of art controlled by the Department are classified as property, plant
and equipment. These are anticipated to have indefinite useful lives. Their
service potential has not, in any material sense, been consumed during the
reporting period and consequently no depreciation has been recognised.

(g) Intangible Assets
Capitalisation / expensing of assets
Acquisitions of intangible assets costing $5,000 or more and internally
generated intangible assets costing $50,000 or more are capitalised. The
cost of utilising the assets is expensed (amortised) over their useful lives.
Costs incurred below these thresholds are immediately expensed directly to
the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. For assets acquired at no
cost or for nominal cost, the cost is their fair value at the date of acquisition.
The cost model is applied for subsequent measurement requiring the asset
to be carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is calculated for the
period of the expected benefit (estimated useful life which is reviewed
annually) on the straight line basis. All intangible assets controlled by the
Department have a finite useful life and zero residual value.
The expected useful lives for each class of intangible asset are:
Licences

Up to 10 years

Development costs

3 to 5 years

Software (a)

3 to 5 years

Website costs

3 to 5 years

(a) Software that is not integral to the operation of any related hardware.
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Licences
Licences have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Development costs
Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development costs incurred for an
individual project are carried forward when the future economic benefits can
reasonably be regarded as assured and the total project costs are likely to
exceed $50,000. Other development costs are expensed as incurred.
Computer Software
Software that is an integral part of the related hardware is recognised as
plant and equipment. Software that is not an integral part of the related
hardware is recognised as an intangible asset. Software costing less than
$5,000 is expensed in the year of acquisition.
Website costs
Website costs are expensed when they are incurred unless they relate to the
acquisition or development of an asset when they may be capitalised and
amortised. Generally, costs in relation to feasibility studies during the
planning phase of a website and ongoing costs of maintenance during the
operating phase are expensed. Costs incurred in building or enhancing a
website that can be reliably measured are capitalised to the extent that they
represent probable future economic benefits.
(h) Impairment of Assets
Plant and equipment are tested for any indication of impairment at each
reporting period. Where there is an indication of impairment, the
recoverable amount is estimated. Where the recoverable amount is less than
the carrying amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to
the recoverable amount and an impairment loss is recognised. Where an
asset measured at cost is written down to recoverable amount, an
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss. Where a previously revalued

asset is written down to recoverable amount, the loss is recognised as a
revaluation decrement in other comprehensive income. As the Department
is a not-for-profit entity, unless a specialised asset has been identified as a
surplus asset, the recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's fair value
less cost to sell and depreciated replacement cost.
The risk of impairment is generally limited to circumstances where an asset’s
depreciation is materially understated, where the replacement cost is falling
or where there is a significant change in useful life. Each relevant class of
assets is reviewed annually to verify that the accumulated
depreciation/amortisation reflects the level of consumption or expiration of
asset’s future economic benefits and to evaluate any impairment risk from
falling replacement costs.
Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life and intangible assets not yet
available for use are tested for impairment at the end of each reporting
period irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment.
The recoverable amount of assets identified as surplus assets is the higher of
fair value less costs to sell and the present value of future cash flows
expected to be derived from the asset. Surplus assets carried at fair value
have no risk of material impairment where fair value is determined by
reference to market-based evidence. Where fair value is determined by
reference to depreciated replacement cost, surplus assets are at risk of
impairment and the recoverable amount is measured. Surplus assets at cost
are tested for indications of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
(i) Leases
The Department holds operating leases for head office and a number of
branch office buildings. Lease payments are expensed on a straight line basis
over the lease term as this represents the pattern of benefits derived from
the leased properties.
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(j) Financial Instruments
In addition to cash, the Department has two categories of financial
instruments:
• Receivables; and
• Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost.

(l) Accrued salaries
Accrued salaries [refer to note 21 ‘Payables’] represent the amount due to
staff but unpaid at the end of the financial year. Accrued salaries are settled
within a fortnight of the financial year end. The Department considers the
carrying amount of accrued salaries to be equivalent to its fair value.

Financial instruments have been disaggregated into the following classes:
• Financial Assets
• Cash and cash equivalents
• Restricted cash and cash equivalents
• Receivables
• Amounts receivable for services

The accrued salaries suspense account [refer to note 14 ‘Restricted cash and
cash equivalents’] consists of amounts paid annually into a suspense account
over a period of 10 financial years to largely meet the additional cash
outflow in each eleventh year when 27 pay days occur instead of the normal
26. No interest is received on this account.

• Financial Liabilities
• Payables
• Other current liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement of financial instruments is at fair value
which normally equates to the transaction cost or the face value.
Subsequent measurement is at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
The fair value of short-term receivables and payables is the transaction cost
or the face value because there is no interest rate applicable and subsequent
measurement is not required as the effect of discounting is not material.
(k) Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalent
(and restricted cash and cash equivalent) assets comprise cash on hand and
short-term deposits with original maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible to a known amount of cash and which are subject to
insignificant risk of changes in value.

(m) Amounts receivable for services (holding account)
The Department receives funding on an accrual basis. The appropriations are
paid partly in cash and partly as an asset (holding account receivable).
The accrued amount receivable is accessible on the emergence of the cash
funding requirement to cover leave entitlements and asset replacement.
(n) Receivables
Receivables are recognised and carried at original invoice amount less an
allowance for any uncollectible amounts (i.e. impairment). The collectability
of receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis and any receivables identified
as uncollectible are written off against the allowance account. The
allowance for uncollectible amounts (doubtful debts) is raised when there is
objective evidence that the Department will not be able to collect the debts.
The carrying amount is equivalent to fair value as it is due for settlement
within 30 days.
(o) Payables
Payables are recognised at the amounts payable when the Department
becomes obliged to make future payments as a result of a purchase of assets
or services. The carrying amount is equivalent to fair value, as they are
generally settled within 30 days.
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(p) Provisions
Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing or amount and are recognised
where there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event and when the outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is
probable and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period.

Long service leave
Long service leave is not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the reporting period is recognised and measured at the
present value of amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are
settled, using the remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of
settlement.

i.

When assessing expected future payments consideration is given to
expected future wage and salary levels including non-salary
components such as employer superannuation contributions, as well as
the experience of employee departures and periods of service. The
expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the
end of the reporting period on national government bonds with terms
to maturity that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash
outflows.

Provisions – employee benefits
All annual leave and long service leave provisions are in respect of
employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period.
Annual leave
Annual leave is not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the reporting period and is therefore considered to be
‘other long term employee benefits’. The annual leave liability is
recognised and measured at the present value of amounts expected to
be paid when the liabilities are settled using the remuneration rate
expected to apply at the time of settlement.
When assessing expected future payments consideration is given to
expected future wage and salary levels including non-salary
components such as employer superannuation contributions, as well as
the experience of employee departures and periods of service. The
expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the
end of the reporting period on national government bonds with terms
to maturity that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash
outflows.
The provision for annual leave is classified as a current liability as the
Department does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

Unconditional long service leave provisions are classified as current
liabilities as the Department does not have an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of
the reporting period. Pre-conditional and conditional long service leave
provisions are classified as non-current liabilities because the
Department has an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the
liability until the employee has completed the requisite years of service.
Purchased leave
The provision for purchased leave relates to Public Service employees
who have entered into an agreement to self-fund up to an additional
ten weeks leave per calendar year. The provision recognises the value
of salary set aside for employees and is measured at the undiscounted
amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.
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Superannuation
The Government Employees Superannuation Board (GESB) and other fund
providers administer public sector superannuation arrangements in Western
Australia in accordance with legislative requirements. Eligibility criteria for
membership in particular schemes for public sector employees varies
according to commencement and implementation dates.
Eligible employees contribute to the Pension Scheme, a defined benefit
pension scheme closed to new members since 1987, or the Gold State
Superannuation Scheme (GSS), a defined benefit lump sum scheme closed to
new members since 1995.
Employees commencing employment prior to 16 April 2007 who were not
members of either the Pension Scheme or the GSS became non contributory
members of the West State Superannuation Scheme (WSS). Employees
commencing employment on or after 16 April 2007 became members of the
GESB Super Scheme (GESBS). From 30 March 2012, existing members of the
WSS or GESBS and new employees became able to choose their preferred
superannuation fund. The Department makes concurrent contributions to
GESB or other funds on behalf of employees in compliance with the
Commonwealth Government’s Superannuation Guarantee (Administration)
Act 1992. Contributions to these accumulation schemes extinguish the
Department's liability for superannuation charges in respect of employees
who are not members of the Pension Scheme or GSS.
The GSS is a defined benefit scheme for the purposes of employees and
whole-of-government reporting. However, it is a defined contribution plan
for agency purposes because the concurrent contributions (defined
contributions) made by the Department to GESB extinguishes the
Department’s obligations to the related superannuation liability.
The Department has no liabilities under the Pension Scheme or the GSS. The
liabilities for the unfunded Pension Scheme and the unfunded GSS transfer
benefits attributable to members who transferred from the Pension Scheme,

are assumed by the Treasurer. All other GSS obligations are funded by
concurrent contributions made by the Department to the GESB.
The GESB makes all benefit payments in respect of the Pension Scheme and
GSS, and is recouped from the Treasurer for the employer’s share.
ii.

Provisions – other
Employment on-costs
Employment on-costs, including workers’ compensation insurance, are
not employee benefits and are recognised separately as liabilities and
expenses when the employment to which they relate has occurred.
Employment on-costs are included as part of ‘Other expenses’ and are
not included as part of the Department’s ‘Employee benefits expense’.
The related liability is included in ‘Employment on-costs provision’.

(q) Superannuation expense
The superannuation expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
comprises of employer contributions paid to the GSS (concurrent
contributions), the WSS, the GESBS, or other superannuation funds. The
employer contribution paid to the GESB in respect of the GSS is paid back
into the Consolidated Account by the GESB.
(r) Assets and services received free of charge or of nominal value
Assets or services received free of charge or for nominal cost, that the
Department would otherwise purchase if not donated, are recognised as
income at the fair value of the assets or services where they can be reliably
measured. A corresponding expense is recognised for services received.
Receipts of assets are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position.
Assets or services received from other State Government agencies are
separately disclosed under Income from State Government in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income.
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(s) Comparative figures
Comparative figures are, where appropriate, reclassified to be comparable
with the figures presented in the current financial year.

Leasehold improvements
The Department capitalises leasehold improvements where significant
economic benefit is obtained.

(t) Support provided to AAPA/Aboriginal Lands Trust
Decision making responsibility in respect of the Aboriginal land estate
effectively resides with the Aboriginal Lands Trust (ALT), a body established
under the auspices of the Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority Act 1972.

4. Key sources of estimation uncertainty

When the Aboriginal Affairs Department (now titled the Department of
Aboriginal Affairs) was established on 1 November 1994, it effectively took
over the operations of its originating agencies, including the Aboriginal
Affairs Planning Authority (AAPA). Staff previously employed by the AAPA
at that time were transferred to the AAD. As a consequence, administrative
support for the AAPA and the ALT was provided by staff employed by the
AAD. See Note 26 'Services provided free of charge'.

Key estimates and assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.
Long Service Leave
Several estimations and assumptions used in calculating the Department’s
long service leave provision include expected future salary rates, discount
rates, employee retention rates and expected future payments. Changes in
these estimations and assumptions may impact on the carrying amount of
the long service leave provision.

3. Judgements made by management in applying accounting policies
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make
judgements about the application of accounting policies that have a
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.
The Department evaluates these judgements regularly.
Operating lease commitment
The Department has entered into a number of leases for buildings for branch
office accommodation. Some of these leases relate to buildings of a
temporary nature and it has been determined that the lessor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. Accordingly,
these leases have been classified as operating leases.

87

Department of Aboriginal Affairs

Notes to the Financial Statements

Part 4 – Disclosures and Legal Compliance

for the year ended 30 June 2016

Page 88

5. Disclosure of changes in accounting policy and estimates
Initial application of an Australian Accounting Standard
The Department has applied the following Australian Accounting Standards effective, or adopted, for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2015 that impacted on the Department:
AASB 2013-9

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards Conceptual Framework, Materiality and Financial Instruments.
Part C of this Standard defers the application of AASB 9 to 1 January 2017. The application date of AASB 9 was subsequently deferred
to 1 January 2018 by AASB 2014-1. The Department has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of AASB 9.

AASB 2014-8

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 (December 2014) – Application of AASB 9 (December 2009) and
AASB 9 (December 2010) [AASB 9 (2009 & 2010)]
This Standard makes amendments to AASB 9 Financial Instruments (December 2009) and AASB 9 Financial Instruments (December 2010),
arising from the issuance of AASB 9 Financial Instruments in December 2014. The Department has not yet determined the application or
the potential impact of AASB 9.

AASB 2015-3

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Withdrawal of AASB 1031 Materiality
This Standard completes the withdrawal of references to AASB 1031 in all Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations, allowing
that Standard to effectively be withdrawn. There is no financial impact.

AASB 2015-7

Amendments to the Australian Accounting Standards - Fair Value Disclosures of Not-for-Profit Public Sector Entities
This Standard relieves not-for-profit public sector entities from the reporting burden associated with various disclosures required
by AASB 13 for assets within the scope of AASB 116 that are held primarily for their current service potential rather than to generate
future net cash inflows. It has no financial impact.
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Future impact of Australian Accounting Standards not yet operative
The Department cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless specifically permitted by TI 1101 Application of Australian Accounting
Standards and Other Pronouncements or by an exemption from TI 1101. By virtue of a limited exemption, the Department has early adopted AASB 2015-7
Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Fair Value Disclosures of Not-for-Profit Public Sector Entities. Where applicable, the Department plans to
apply the following Australian Accounting Standards from their application date.
Title

AASB 9

Operative for
reporting periods
beginning on/after
Financial Instruments
01-January-2018
This Standard supersedes AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, introducing a number
of changes to accounting treatments.
The mandatory application date of this Standard is currently 1 January 2018 after being amended by AASB 20126, AASB 2013-9, and, AASB 2014-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards. The Department has not yet
determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard.

AASB 15

Revenue from Contracts with Customers
01-January-2018
This Standard established the principles that the Department shall apply to report useful information to users of
financial statements about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from a
contract with a customer. The Department has not yet determined the application or potential impact of the
Standard.

AASB 16

Leases
01-January-2019
This Standard introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities
for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. The Department
has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard.
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Operative for
reporting periods
beginning on/after

AASB 1057

Application of Australian Accounting Standards
01-January-2016
This Standard lists the application paragraphs for each other Standard (and Interpretation), grouped where they
are the same. There is no financial impact.

AASB 2010-7

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 (December 2010) [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 01-January-2018
102, 108, 112, 118, 120, 121, 127, 128, 131, 132, 136, 137, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Int 2, 5, 10, 12, 19 & 127]
This Standard makes consequential amendments to other Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations as
a result of issuing AASB 9 in December 2010.
The mandatory application date of this Standard has been amended by AASB 2012-6 and AASB 2014-1
to 1 January 2018. The Department has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of the
Standard.

AASB 2014-1

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards
01-January-2018
Part E of this Standard makes amendments to AASB 9 and consequential amendments to other Standards. It has
not yet been assessed by the Department to determine the application or potential impact of the Standard.

AASB 2014-3

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations
01-January-2016
[AASB 1 &11]
The Department establishes Joint Operations in pursuit of its objectives and does not routinely acquire interests in
Joint Operations. Therefore, there is no financial impact on application of the Standard.

AASB 2014-4

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation [AASB 116 & 138]
The adoption of this Standard has no financial impact for the Department as depreciation and amortisation
is not determined by reference to revenue generation, but by reference to consumption of future economic
benefits.

01-January-2016
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Operative for
reporting periods
beginning on/after

AASB 2015-2

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Disclosure Initiative: Amendments to AASB 101
01-January-2016
[AASB 7, 101, 134 & 1049]
This Standard amends AASB 101 to provide clarification regarding the disclosure requirements in AASB 101.
Specifically, the Standard proposes narrow-focus amendments to address some of the concerns expressed about
existing presentation and disclosure requirements and to ensure entities are able to use judgement when
applying a Standard in determining what information to disclose in their financial statements. There is no financial
impact.

AASB 2015-6

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Extending Related Party Disclosures to Not-for-Profit Public
01-July-2016
Sector Entities [AASB 10, 124 & 1049]
The amendments extend the scope of AASB 124 to include application by not-for-profit public sector entities.
Implementation guidance is included to assist application of the Standard by not-for-profit public sector entities.
There is no financial impact.

AASB 2015-8

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Effective Date of AASB 15
01-January-2017
This Standard amends the mandatory effective date (application date) of AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers so that AASB 15 is required to be applied for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018 instead of 1 January 2017. The Department has not yet determined the application or the potential impact
of AASB 15.

AASB 2015-10

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Effective Date of Amendments to AASB 10 & 128
01-January-2016
This Standard defers the mandatory effective date (application date) of amendments to AASB 10 & 128 that were
originally made in AASB 2014-10 so that the amendments are required to be applied for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018 instead of 1 January 2016. The Department has not yet determined the
application or the potential impact of AASB 2014-10.
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Operative for
reporting periods
beginning on/after

AASB 2016-2

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Disclosure Initiative: Amendments to AASB 107
01-January-2017
This Standard amends AASB 107 Statement of Cash Flows (August 2015) to require disclosures that enable users
of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes
arising from cash flows and non-cash changes. There is no financial impact.

AASB 2016-3

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Clarifications to AASB 15
This Standard clarifies identifying performance obligations, principal versus agent considerations, timing of
recognising revenue from granting a licence, and, provides further transitional provisions to AASB 15. The
Department has not yet determined the application or the potential impact.

01-January-2018

Changes in accounting estimates
There were no changes in accounting estimates that have an effect in the current period or are expected to have an effect in future periods.
6. Employee benefits expense

Wages and salaries (a)
Superannuation – defined contribution plans (b)

2016
$000

2015
$000

16,293

16,094

1,403

1,445

17,696

17,539

(a) Includes the value of the fringe benefit to the employee plus the fringe benefits tax component, leave entitlements including superannuation
contribution component.
(b) Defined contribution plans include West State, Gold State, GESB and other eligible funds.
Employment on-costs such as workers' compensation insurance are included at note 11 'Other expenses'.
The employment on-costs liability is included at note 22 'Provisions'.
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7. Supplies and Services

Communications
Services and contracts
Services Purchased from Non Government Agencies
Consumables
Operating leases
Repairs and Maintenance
Travel
Other

2016
$000
383
2,780
5,784
156
235
1
243
21
9,658

2015
$000
357
2,768
5,601
248
335
3
347
58
9,717

311
598
310
445
281
404
390
1,187
404
918
149
387

305
323
305
437
277
396
383
1,164
396
1,164
146
305

5,784

5,601

Details of the Services Purchased from Non Government Agencies are listed below:
Bloodwood Tree Association Inc.
Emu Services
Garl Garl Walbu Aboriginal Corporation
Geraldton Yamatji Patrol Aboriginal Corporation
Jungarni Jutiya Indigenous Corporation
Kununurra Waringarri Aboriginal Corporation
Mamabulanjin Aboriginal Corp
MEEDAC Incorporated
Ngnowar Aerwah Aboriginal Corporation
Nyoongar Patrol System Inc.
Yaandina Family Centre
Yulella Aboriginal Corporation
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8. Depreciation and amortisation expense

2016
$000

2015
$000

18
142
160

22
129
151

Amortisation
Computer software
Total amortisation

510
510

289
289

Total depreciation and amortisation

670

440

3,063
1
148
34

3,270
3
280
45

3,246

3,598

928
-

1,443
55

928

1,498

Depreciation
Plant and equipment
IT equipment
Total depreciation

See also Note 2(f) Plant & Equipment
9. Accommodation expenses
Lease rentals
Repairs and maintenance
Electricity and water
Other

10. Grants and Subsidies
Recurrent
Grants to non-government agencies
Transfers/contributions to other state government agencies

Details of grants of $100,000 or greater are listed below:
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Other Grants
City of Swan
Jawun - Indigenous Enterprise Partnership
Kurongkurl Katitjin Centre for Indigenous Australian Education and Research, ECU
Fairbridge WA
West Australian Football Commission Inc.
11. Other expenses
Doubtful debts expense
Building Maintenance
Employment on-costs (a)
Other (b)

2016
$000

2015
$000

-

116
200
120
100
100

8
123
50

5
2
112
37

181

156

(a) Includes workers' compensation insurance and other employment on-costs such as staff amenities, staff training etc. The on-costs liability associated
with the recognition of annual and long service leave liability is included at note 22 ''Provisions'. Superannuation contributions accrued as part of the
provision for leave are employee benefits and are not included in employment on-costs.
(b) Audit fee, see also note 33 “Remuneration of auditor”
12. Other revenue
Contributions from State Government agencies
Other contributions
Miscellaneous revenue
Revenues from non-operating activities
Government Vehicle Scheme
Staff housing contributions

33

436

196

362

46
101
376

39
94
931
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13. Income from State Government

Appropriations received during the period:
Service appropriations (a)

2016
$000

2015
$000

31,713
31,713

32,871
32,871

Services received free of charge from other State government agencies during the financial period (b)
Determined on the basis of the following estimates provided by agencies:
State Solicitor's Office - legal advice
Department of Finance - Property Management Services

Royalties for Regions Fund:
Regional Community Services Fund (c)

169
572
741

97
579
676

32,454

33,547

52
52

86
86

(a) Service appropriations fund the net cost of services delivered. Appropriation revenue comprises a cash component and a receivable (asset). The
receivable (holding account) comprises the budgeted depreciation expense for the year and any agreed increase in leave liabilities during the year.
(b) Where assets or services have been received free of charge or for nominal cost, the Department recognises revenue equivalent to the fair value of
the assets and/or the fair value of those services that can be reliably determined and which would have been purchased if they were not donated.
Where the contributions of assets or services are in the nature of contributions by owners, the Department makes an adjustment direct to equity.
(c) This is a sub-fund within the over-arching ‘Royalties for Regions Fund’. This relates to funds received from the Department of Regional Development
for the regional workers incentives initiative.
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14. Restricted cash and cash equivalents

Current
Remote Indigenous Housing West Kimberley Tripartite Forum (a)
Kalumburu Roads (b)
Accrued salaries suspense account (c)
Total Current
Balance at end of period

2016
$000

2015
$000

150
227
337

150
227
705
1,082

337

1,082

(a) Funding to support the Kimberley Land Council and its nominated organisations to attend meetings of the West Kimberley Tripartite Forum and its
working groups.
(b) Funding to support remedial works to flood damaged roads at Kalumburu Community.
(c) Amount held in the suspense account for the purpose of meeting the 27th pay in a financial year which occurs once in 11 years i.e. 2015-16.
15. Receivables
Current
Receivables
Allowance for impairment of receivables
GST receivable

Reconciliation of changes in the allowance for impairment of receivables.
Balance at start of period
Doubtful debts expense recognised in the statement of comprehensive income
Amounts written off during the period
Balance at end of period

150
196
346

97
(5)
170
262

5
(5)
-

5
5

The Department does not hold any collateral as security or other credit enhancements relating to receivables.
See also note 2(n) 'Receivables' and note 31 'Financial Instruments'.
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16. Amounts receivable for services

Current
Non-current

2016
$000
543
414
957

2015
$000
598
346
944

Represents the non-cash component of service appropriations. See note 2(m) 'Amounts Receivable for Services (Holding Account)'. It is restricted in that
it can only be used for asset replacement or payment of leave liability.
17. Other assets
Current
Prepayments

1,035
1,035

364
364

Vehicles
At cost
Accumulated depreciation
Total Vehicles

53
(53)
-

53
(53)
-

Plant and equipment
At cost
Accumulated depreciation
Total plant and equipment

168
(78)
90

144
(128)
16

994
(554)
440

1,175
(898)
277

18. Plant and equipment

Information technology equipment
At cost
Accumulated depreciation
Total Information technology equipment
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Works of art (a)
At fair value
Total Works of art

Total Plant and equipment

2016
$000

2015
$000

234
234

235
235

764

528

(a) Works of art were revalued in accordance with a valuation which was undertaken by an independent contractor, Seva Fangos Art, on the basis of
current replacement value, as at 30 June 2015. See note 2(f) 'Plant and Equipment'.
Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of plant, equipment and vehicles at the beginning and end of the reporting period are set out in the table below:
Works of Art
$000

Vehicles
$000

Plant &
equipment
$000

Information
technology
equipment
$000

Total
$000

2016
Carrying amount at start of period
Additions
Depreciation
Carrying amount at end of period

235
235

-

16
92
(18)
90

277
304
(142)
439

528
396
(160)
764

2015
Carrying amount at start of period
Additions
Revaluation increments
Depreciation
Carrying amount at end of period

196
39
235

-

38
(22)
16

216
190
(129)
277

450
190
39
(151)
528
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19. Intangible assets
Computer software
At cost
Accumulated depreciation
Total Computer software

2016
$000

2015
$000

3,292
(866)
2,426

2,440
(356)
2,084

Reconciliations
Computer software
Carrying amount at start of period
Additions
Amortisation expense
Carrying amount at end of period

2,084
852
(510)
2,426

1,275
1,098
(289)
2,084

Work in progress
Carrying amount at start of period
Additions
Capitalisation
Carrying amount at end of period

698
(698)
-

297
728
(1,025)
-

20. Impairments of assets
There were no indications of impairment to plant and equipment at 30 June 2016.
The Department held no goodwill or intangible assets with an indefinite useful life during the reporting period.
At the end of the reporting period there were no intangible assets not yet available for use. All surplus assets at
30 June 2016 have either been classified as assets held for sale or written off.
21. Payables
Current
Trade payables
Accrued expenses
Accrued salaries
Total Current

326
91
417

176
32
377
585

See also note 2(o) 'Payables' and note 31 'Financial Instruments'.
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22. Provisions

Current
Employee benefits provision
Annual leave (a)
Long service leave (b)
Purchased leave (c )
Other provisions
Employment on-costs (d)
Total current provisions
Non-Current
Employee benefits provision
Long service leave (b)
Other provisions
Employment on-costs (d)
Total non current provisions
Total provisions

2016
$000

2015
$000

1,237
1,770
(17)
2,990

1,241
1,598
40
2,879

401
401

377
377

3,391

3,256

752
752

815
815

81
81

84
84

833

899

4,224

4,155

(a) Annual leave liabilities have been classified as current as there is no unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:
Within 12 months of reporting period
More than 12 months after end of the reporting period

1,135
102
1,237

890
351
1,241
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22. Provisions

(b) Long service leave liabilities have been classified as current where there is no unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the end of
the reporting period. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:
2016
2015
$000
$000
Within 12 months of reporting period
1,770
1,598
More than 12 months after end of the reporting period
752
815
2,522
2,413
(c) Purchased leave has been classified as current as there is no unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period. All purchased leave must be settled by 31st December each year or it is automatically paid out
Within 12 months of the reporting period

(17)
(17)

40
40

(d) The settlement of annual and long service leave liabilities gives rise to the payment of employment on-costs including workers’ compensation insurance.
The provision is the present value of expected future payments.
The associated expense, apart from the unwinding of the discount (finance cost), is disclosed in note 11 ‘Other expenses’.
Movements in Other Provisions
Movements in each class of provisions during the period, other than employee benefits, are set out below:
Employment on-cost provision
Carrying amount at start of period
Additional provisions recognised
Carrying amount at end of period

461
22
483

477
(16)
461
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23. Other liabilities

Current
Unclaimed monies
Fringe benefits tax
Other
Total Current

2016
$000

2015
$000

4
45
1,190
1,239

5
56
358
419

24. Equity
The Western Australian Government holds the equity interest in the Department on behalf of the community. Equity represents the residual interest in the net
assets of the Department. The asset revaluation surplus represents that portion of equity resulting from the revaluation of non-current assets.
Contributed Equity
Balance at start of period
Contributions by owners
Capital appropriation (a)
Total contributions by owners

1,261

1,063

150
1,411

198
1,261

Balance at end of period

1,411

1,261

(a) Under TI 955 Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly Owned Public Sector Entities, capital appropriations have been designated as contributions by owners in
accordance with AASB Interpretation 1038 Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public Sector Entities.
Reserves
Asset revaluation surplus
Balance at the start of period
Net revaluation increments/(decrements)
Works of art
Balance at end of period

252

213

252

39
252

Accumulated surplus/deficit
Balance at the start of period
Result for the period
Balance at the end of period

3,973
503
4,476

2,356
1,616
3,973

Total Equity at end of period

6,139

5,486
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25. Notes to the Cash Flow Statement
Reconciliation of cash
Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows is reconciled to the related items in the Statement of Financial Position as follows:
2016
2015
$000
$000
Cash and cash equivalents
6,114
5,381
Restricted cash and cash equivalents (see also note 14)
377
1,082
6,491
6,463
Reconciliation of net cost of services to net cash flows provided by /(used in) operating activities
Net cost of services
(32,003)
(32,017)
Non-cash items:
Depreciation and amortisation expense (note 8 ‘Depreciation and amortisation expense’)
Doubtful debts expense (note 11 ‘Other expenses’)

670
-

440
5

Services received free of charge

741

676

(Increase)/decrease in assets:
Current receivables (a)
Other current assets

(58)
(671)

91
(104)

Increase/(decrease) in liabilities:
Current payables (a)
Current provisions
Other current liabilities
Non-current provisions
Net GST receipts (b)
Change in GST receivables/payables ( c)

(168)
135
820
(66)
(26)
-

38
(154)
(1,144)
168
100
(4)

(30,626)

(31,905)

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities

At the end of the reporting period, the Department had fully drawn on all financing facilities, details of which are disclosed in the financial statements.
(a) Note that the Australian Taxation Office (ATO) receivable/payable in respect of GST and the receivable/payable in respect of the sale/purchase of
non-current assets are not included in these items as they do not form part of the reconciling items.
(b) This is the net GST received, i.e. cash transactions.
(c) This reverses out the GST in receivables and payables.
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26. Services provided free of charge
During the period the following services were provided to other agencies free of charge for functions outside the normal operations of the Department.
2016
2015
$000
$000
Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority

1,938

1,552

254
343
597

420
564
984

597
597

984
984

See also note 2(t) Support provided to AAPA/Aboriginal Lands Trust.

27. Commitments
Lease commitments (a) (b)
Commitments for minimum lease payments are payable as follows:
Within 1 year
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years
Representing:
Non-cancellable operating leases

(a)
(b)

The property leases are non-cancellable leases for periods up to 5 years with rent payable monthly in advance. Contingent rent provisions
within the lease agreements require that the lease payments shall be increased by the CPI or other criteria such as independent valuations
or fixed percentages. Options may exist to renew the leases at the end of the lease term.
Motor vehicle leases are non-cancellable leases over a fixed period and/or targeted number of kilometres.

Expenditure Commitments
The Department has contracted commitments for its grants program via service/grant agreements at the end of the reporting period that are not
recognised as liabilities and are payable as follows:
Within 1 year

-

23
23
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28. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets
The Department had no contingent liabilities or contingent assets as at 30 June 2016.
29. Events occurring after the end of the reporting period
No information has become apparent since the end of the reporting period which materially affects the financial statements.
30. Explanatory statement
All variances between estimates (original budget) and actual results for 2016, and between the actual results for 2016 and 2015 are shown below. Narratives
are provided for key variations selected from observed major variances, which are generally greater than:
• 5% and $0.659 million for the Statements of Comprehensive Income and Cash Flows; and
• 5% and $0.186 million for the Statement of Financial Position.
Variance
between
Variance
actual
between
results for
estimate
Original
2016
and
Budget
Actual
Actual
and 2015
actual
2016
2016
2015
$’000
$’000
$’000
$’000
$’000
Variance Note
Statement of Comprehensive Income
Expenses
Employee benefits expense
Supplies and services
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Accommodation expenses
Grants and subsidies
Other expenses
Total cost of services
Income
Revenue
Other revenue
Total Revenue
NET COST OF SERVICES

1
1

2

19,539
8,105
648
3,586
1,035
919
33,832

17,696
9,658
670
3,246
928
181
32,379

17,539
9,717
440
3,598
1,498
156
32,948

(1,843)
1,553
22
(340)
(107)
(738)
(1,453)

157
(59)
230
(352)
(570)
25
(569)

430
430
33,402

376
376
32,003

931
931
32,017

(54)
(54)
(1,399)

(555)
(555)
(14)
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Income from State Government
Service appropriation
Services received free of charge
Royalties for Regions Fund
Total income from State Government
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE PERIOD

Original
Budget
2016
Variance Note $’000

Actual
2016
$’000

Actual
2015
$’000

Variance
between
estimate
and
actual
$’000

Variance
between
actual
results for
2016
and 2015
$’000

A

31,745
635
64
32,444
(958)

31,713
741
52
32,506
503

32,871
676
86
33,633
1,616

(32)
106
(12)
62
1,461

(1,158)
65
(34)
(1,127)
(1,113)

3
3, 4

B
B

5

C

1,740
2,562
365
543
272
5,482

6,114
377
346
543
1,035
8,415

5,381
1,082
262
598
364
7,687

4,374
(2,185)
(19)
763
2,933

733
(705)
84
(55)
671
728

446
1,135
2,057
196
3,834
9,316

414
764
2,426
3,604
12,019

346
528
2,084
2,958
10,645

(32)
(371)
369
(196)
(230)
2,703

68
236
342
646
1,374

Statement of Financial Position
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Amounts receivable for services
Other current assets
Total Current Assets
Non-Current Assets
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Amounts receivable for services
Plant and equipment
Intangible Assets
Other non-current assets
Total Non-Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

6
7
8

D
E
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Original
Budget
2016
Variance Note $’000
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Payables
Provisions
Other current liabilities
Total Current Liabilities

Actual
2015
$’000

Variance
between
actual
results for
2016
and 2015
$’000

210
3,223
2,223
5,656

417
3,391
1,239
5,047

585
3,256
419
4,260

207
168
(984)
(609)

(168)
135
820
787

Non-Current Liabilities
Provisions
Total Non-Current Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

734
734
6,390

833
833
5,880

899
899
5,159

99
99
(510)

(66)
(66)
721

NET ASSETS

2,926

6,139

5,486

3,213

653

1,411

1,411

1,261

-

150

EQUITY
Contributed equity
Reserves
Accumulated surplus/(deficit)
TOTAL EQUITY

9

Actual
2016
$’000

Variance
between
estimate
and
actual
$’000

10

11

F

213

252

252

39

-

1,302

4,476

3,973

3,174

503

2,926

6,139

5,486

3,213

653
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Statement of Cash Flow

CASH FLOWS FROM STATE GOVERNMENT
Service appropriations
Capital contributions
Holding account drawdown
Non-retained revenue distributed to owner
Royalties for Regions Fund
Net cash provided by State Government
Utilised as follows:
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Payments
Employee benefits
Supplies and services
Accommodation
Grants and subsidies
Other payments
Receipts
GST receipts from taxation authority
Other receipts
Net cash used in operating activities

Variance
between
estimate
and
actual
$’000

Variance
between
actual
results for
2016
and 2015
$’000

32,246
198
185
86
32,715

(12)
(12)

(1,144)
(48)
413
(34)
(813)

(19,470)
(7,974)
(3,017)
(1,035)
(2,394)

(18,036) (17,488)
(9,952) (9,650)
(2,674) (3,019)
(806) (2,618)
(1,694) (1,686)

1,434
(1,978)
343
229
700

(548)
(302)
345
1,812
(8)

1,414
430
(32,046)

1,508
1,619
1,028
937
(30,626) (31,905)

94
598
1,420

(111)
91
1,279

Original
Budget
2016
Variance Note $’000
A

1, 12
1, 12
G
12

31,102
150
598
64
31,914

Actual
2016
$’000
31,102
150
598
52
31,902

Actual
2015
$’000
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Statement of Cash Flow
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments
Purchase of non-current physical assets

Variance
Note

Original
Budget
2016
$’000

Actual
2016
$’000

Variance
between
actual
results for
2016
and 2015
$’000

Variance
between
estimate
and
actual
$’000

Actual
2015
$’000

(1,393)

(1,248)

(991)

145

(257)

Receipts
Proceeds from sale of non-current physical assets
Net cash used in investing activities

-

-

-

-

-

(1,393)

(1,248)

(991)

145

(257)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period

(1,525)
5,827

28
6,463

(181)
6,644

1,553
636

209
(181)

4,302

6,491

6,463

2,189

28

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE PERIOD

Major Variances Narratives
Variances between estimate and actual
1.
Variance of $1.8 million between budget and actuals is a result of non-alignment of cost elements in budgets for employee expense and supplies and services.
Contributing factors are the whole of public sector freeze on recruitment and the Department's continuing to defer recruitment decisions until results of an
agency-wide review are clear. These kept salaries lower than expected and higher costs for temporary filling of vacant positions under supplies and services.
2.
A contributing factor to the variance between budget and 2016 actual for other expenses is realignment of costs to supplies and services for operating leases
actual cost of $0.235 million
3.
Increase in cash are mainly due to net under spending as well as increase in current liabilities which decreased cash outflow. Rationalisation of office
accommodation in regional offices resulted in lower costs of $0.343 million.
4.
Decrease in restricted cash and cash equivalents of $2.185 million is partly due to reclassification of funds from restricted to non-restricted for release of
funds for payment of one extra fortnight of salary expense for the financial year.
5.
The jump in other current assets as compared to the budget is attributable to the pre-payment of one month of Patrols program.
6.
The lower figure for 2016 plant and equipment compared to the budget is to the deferment of capital expenditure on information technology replacement
program and office equipment.
7.
The higher 2016 intangible assets is due mainly to the capitalisation of the phase completion of the Aboriginal Heritage Electronic Lodgement Portal (AHELP)
and funds brought forward from previous year.
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8.

Other non-current assets under estimates refers to works of art at
fair value. However, works of art is categorised under plant and
equipment in actual figure for 2016 (refer to note 18 ).
Payables posted higher in 2016 than budget due to grants accrual
of $211k.
The variance between estimate and 2016 actual for other current
liabilities is partly due to inclusion of salary accrual in the budget
however, the last pay period in June 2016 coincided with the end
of year negating the need for any accrual.
The difference in accumulated surplus between budget and 2016
actual is the change from estimated deficit of $0.956 million to
surplus of $0.503 million.
Cash effects of decrease / increase in accrued spending against
budget.
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9.

10.

11.
12.

Variances between actual results for 2016 and 2015
A. The decrease in service appropriation is the net effect of lower
spending changes imposed by Treasury and offset by $0.6 million
incentive payment.
B. Increase in cash and cash equivalents is due to the transfer from
restricted cash that was drawn down from funds held at Treasury
holding account. This was used to fund the 27th fortnightly salary
that occurs every 11 years.
C. The jump in other current assets as compared to 2015 actual is
attributable to the pre-payment of one month of Patrols program.
D. Plant and equipment increase in 2016 is completion of IT programs.
E. The higher figure in 2016 than 2015 intangible assets is due mainly
to the capitalisation of the phase completion of the Aboriginal
Heritage Electronic Lodgement Portal (AHELP) and funds brought
forward from previous year.
F. The increase in other current liabilities is due to recognition of costs
relating to staffing resources of $0.957 million.

G.

Lower spending in 2016 grants and subsidies of $1.812 million as
compared to 2015 is a result of pending or improvement of the
overall grant process timing and lesser number of grants approved.

31. Financial Instruments
(a) Financial risk management objectives and policies
Financial Instruments held by the Department are cash and cash
equivalents, restricted cash and cash equivalents, receivables and
payables. All of the Department's cash is held in the public bank
account (non-interest bearing) including restricted cash. The
Department has limited exposure to financial risks. The
Department's overall risk management program focuses on
managing the risks identified below.
Credit risk
Credit risk arises when there is a possibility of the Department's
receivables defaulting on their contractual obligations resulting in
financial loss to the Department.
The maximum exposure to credit risk at end of the reporting period
in relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the gross
carrying amount of those assets inclusive of any allowance for
impairment, as shown in the table at Note 31(c) 'Financial
instruments disclosures' and note 15 'Receivables'.
Credit risk associated with the Department's financial assets is
minimal because the main receivable is the amount receivable for
services (holding account). For receivables other than government,
the Department trades only with recognised, creditworthy third
parties. The Department has policies in place to ensure that sales of
products and services are made to customers with an appropriate
credit history. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an
ongoing basis with the result that the Department's exposure to bad
debts is minimal.
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The Department monitors receivables on a monthly basis and
follows up any that are past due. Debtors are contacted to
determine the reason for non-payment via phone and by follow
up letters. In instances where this proves unsuccessful and the
amount outstanding is considered material, the debt is referred to
a debt collector after consideration of the nature of the debt and
any impact this would have on our client base.
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Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk arises when the Department is unable to meet its
financial obligations as they fall due. The Department is exposed
to liquidity risk through its trading in the normal course of
business.

(b)

The Department has appropriate procedures to manage cash
flows including drawdowns of appropriations by monitoring
forecast cash flows to ensure that sufficient funds are available to
meet its commitments.
Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as
foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect the
Department's income or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments. The Department does not trade in foreign currency
and is not materially exposed to other price risks. Other than as
detailed in the Interest rate sensitivity analysis table at Note 31(c),
the Department is not exposed to interest rate risk because apart
from minor amounts of restricted cash, all other cash and cash
equivalents and restricted cash are non-interest bearing and have
no borrowings.

Categories of financial instruments
In addition to cash, the carrying amounts of each of the following categories of financial assets and financial liabilities at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:
2016
2015
$000
$000
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Receivables (a)

6,114
377
150

5,381
1,082
97

Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Payables
Other current liabilities

417
1,239

585
419

(a) The amount of receivables excludes GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable).
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Financial Instrument disclosures
Credit risk
The following tables detail the Department's maximum exposure to credit risk and the ageing analysis of financial assets. The Department's
maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is the carrying amount of financial assets as shown below. The table discloses
the ageing of financial assets that are past due but not impaired and impaired financial assets. The table is based on information provided to senior
management of the Department.
The Department does not hold any collateral as security or other credit enhancement relating to the financial assets it holds.
Aged analysis of financial assets

Financial Assets
2016
Cash assets
Restricted cash assets
Receivables (a)
2015
Cash assets
Restricted cash assets
Receivables (a)
(a)

Carrying
Amount

Not past due
and not
impaired

Up to 1
month

1-3
months

$000

$000

$000

$000

Past due but not impaired
3 months 1 - 5 years More than
to
5 years
1 year
$000

$000

$000

Impaired
financial
assets
$000

6,114
377
150
6,641

6,114
377
150
6,641

148
148

2
2

-

-

-

-

5,381
1,082
97
6,560

5,381
1,082
54
6,517

19
19

24
24

-

-

-

-

The amount of receivables excludes the GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable)
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Liquidity risk and interest rate exposure
The following table details the Department's interest rate exposure and the contractual maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities. The
maturity analysis section includes interest and principal cash flows. The interest rate exposure section analyses only the carrying amounts of each item.

Interest rate exposures and maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities
Interest rate exposure
Carrying
Non
Nominal
Weighted
Amount
interest
Amount
Average
bearing
Effective
Interest
Rate
%
$000
$000
$000
2016
Financial Assets
Cash assets
6,114
6,114
6,114
Restricted cash assets
377
377
377
Receivables (a)
150
150
150
6,641
6,641
6,641
Financial Liabilities
Payables
417
417
417
Other current liabilities
1,239
1,239
1,239
1,656
1,656
1,656
2015
Financial Assets
Cash assets
Restricted cash assets
Receivables (a)

-

Financial Liabilities
Payables
Other current liabilities

-

Up to 1
month

1-3
months

$000

$000

Maturity Dates
3 months
More than
to
1 year
1 year
$000

$000

6,114
377
150
6,641

-

-

-

417
1,239
1,656

-

-

-

-

-

-

5,381
1,082
97
6,560

5,381
1,082
97
6,560

5,381
1,082
97
6,560

5,381
1,082
97
6,560

-

-

-

585
419
1,004

585
419
1,004

585
419
419

585
419
419

-

-

-

(a) The amounts disclosed are the contractual undiscounted cash flows of each class of financial liabilities.
The amounts disclosed are the contractual undiscounted cash flows of each class of financial liabilities.
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Interest Rate Sensitivity Analysis
The Department does not have any items which are subject to interest rate fluctuations.
Fair Values
All financial assets and liabilities recognised in the Statement of Financial Position, whether they are carried at cost or fair value, are recognised at
amounts that represent a reasonable approximation of fair value unless otherwise stated in the applicable notes.
32. Remuneration of senior officers
The number of senior officers whose total fees, salaries, superannuation, non-monetary benefits and other benefits for the financial year fall within the
following bands are:
$

0
60,001
90,001
170,000
180,001
190,001
200,001
210,001
220,001
230,001
250,001
Base remuneration and superannuation
Annual leave and long service leave accruals
Other benefits
Total remuneration of senior officers

to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to

$
60,000
90,000
120,000
180,000
190,000
200,000
210,000
220,000
230,000
240,000
315,000

2016
1
1
2
1
2
1
1
1
$000
1,696
11
114
1,821

2015
3
1
1
2
2
3
1
1
$000
2,085
28
192
2,305

The base remuneration includes allowances, leave loading and superannuation expense incurred by the Department in respect of senior officers.
Other benefits include reportable fringe benefits tax benefits.
No senior officers are members of the pension scheme.
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33. Remuneration of auditor
Remuneration payable to the Auditor General in respect of the audit is as follows:
Auditing the accounts, controls, financial statements and key performance indicators
The expense is included at note 11 'Other expenses'.

2016
$000
41
41

2015
$000
40
40

34.

Affiliated bodies
During the course of the year the Department provided funding to various Government and non-Government agencies. Of the non-government
organisations, it may have occurred during the financial year, that some of them would be defined as affiliated bodies under the terms of Treasurer's
Instruction 951. Due to regulations imposed on grant recipients, financial acquittals are by the provision of a financial statement detailing expenditure of
that particular grant only. The statement provided does not always disclose other income sources, and therefore the Department is not in a position to
accurately determine which of the grant recipients are classified as an affiliated body.

35.

Supplementary financial information
Write offs
During the financial year nil (2015: nil) was written off the Department’s asset register under the authority of:
The Accountable Authority
The Minister
Executive Council
Losses through theft, defaults and other causes
Losses of public moneys and, public and other property through theft or default
Amounts recovered
Gifts of Public Property
Gifts of public property provided by the Department

-

-

-

-

-
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Certification of Key Performance Indicators
I hereby certify that the key performance indicators are based on proper
records, are relevant and appropriate for assisting users to assess the
Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority’s performance, and fairly represents the
performance of the Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority for the financial
year ended 30 June 2016.

Cliff Weeks
Director General
Date:

1 September 2016
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The Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority contributes to the Government goal of FINANCIAL and ECONOMIC RESPONSIBILITY: managing the
State’s finances through the efficient and effective delivery of services, encouraging economic activity and reducing regulatory burden on the
private sector.
The desired Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority outcome for Government was that the use and management of land held by the Aboriginal
Lands Trust (ALT), or for which the ALT is in any manner responsible, accords with the wishes of the Aboriginal inhabitants of the area so far as
that can be ascertained and is practicable.
The Department of Aboriginal Affairs commissioned Advantage Communications-Research, an independent research consultancy, to conduct
a survey of key stakeholders to evaluate the Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority’s effectiveness indicators

EFFECTIVENESS INDICATORS
The Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority’s effectiveness in achieving its outcome was measured in the context of the use and management of
the land held by the Aboriginal Lands Trust (ALT).
To measure this a survey is conducted on annual basis, using an independent, external research provider to ensure objectivity, as well as
relevance and validity of the survey process. Survey responses are sought from direct stakeholders, including other government agencies, key
stakeholder committees and key community organisations.
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In 2015-16, a total of 58 respondents from a database of 66 participated in the survey, yielding an 88 per cent participation rate at +/- 3.8 per cent
maximum error ratio at the 95 per cent confidence level. The survey sample comprised 55 per cent from government agencies, 25 per cent from
Aboriginal organisations, 9 per cent from community and 11 per cent from industry.
The overall satisfaction level of 77 per cent represents a 14 per cent improvement on 2014-15 results, and a 12 per cent positive variance against
target. Improvements in survey results relate to overall management of land on behalf of Aboriginal people and reflect stakeholder satisfaction
regarding a focus on creating awareness of economic opportunities for Aboriginal people in relation to ALT Estate. The results also show satisfaction
with an improved response to remediation of health and safety risks on ALT Estate and improved engagement with stakeholders on matters such as
ALT policies, leasing, land access and land divestment opportunities.

Proportion of stakeholders who found the Authority's management
of the land on behalf of Aboriginal people satisfactory
100.0%
80.0%
60.0%
40.0%
20.0%
0.0%

2010-11 Actual

2011-12 Actual

2012-13 Actual

2013-14 Actual

2014-15 Actual

2015-16 Actual

Result

81.8%

87.4%

63.0%

59.0%

63.0%

77.0%

Target

79.0%

79.0%

79.0%

79.0%

65.0%

65.0%
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Average cost per hectare

This efficiency indicator measures the average cost (calculated by the
adjusted cost of service) per hectare spent managing and maintaining the
Estate. Costs include services received free-of-charge from the Department
of Aboriginal Affairs (the Department) for administration of the Estate and
spending on maintenance of the Estate.
The average cost per hectare increased by 8 cents during 2015-16. The
increase is attributed to a greater focus by the ALT on addressing critical
public health and safety risks across the ALT Estate. As a landholder the ALT
has a range of statutory responsibilities under State legislation which
establish minimum standards for the safety and condition of buildings and
land. Relevant legislation includes the Electricity Act 1945, the Building Act
2011, the Occupational Safety and Health Act 1984 and the Contaminated
Sites Act 2003. ALT infrastructure and land management priorities in 2015-16
included the remediation of asbestos contaminated sites; the repair of sewer,
plumbing and electrical infrastructure; and the demolition of unsafe
structures and uninhabitable houses.

$0.30

Average cost per hectare

$0.20

$0.10

$0.00

2010-11

2011-12

2012-13

2013-14

2014-15

2015-16

$ per hectare

0.09

0.14

0.20

0.25

0.19

0.27

Target

0.09

0.09

0.15

0.15

0.15

0.24

As a pastoral lease holder the ALT must also comply with the Land
Administration Act 1997 and the Agriculture and Related Resources
Protection Act 1976 with regard to proper pastoral management, including
the removal of feral animals. In 2015-16 the ALT undertook feral animal
control programs across four properties to address environmental
degradation and animal welfare concerns
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Certification of Financial Statements
The accompanying financial statements of the Aboriginal Affairs Planning
Authority have been prepared in compliance with the provisions of the
Financial Management Act 2006 from proper accounts and records to
present fairly the financial transactions for the financial year ended
30 June 2016 and the financial position as at 30 June 2016.
At the date of signing we are not aware of any circumstances which would
render the particulars included in the financial statements misleading or
inaccurate.

Maurice Hanrahan
Chief Financial Officer

Cliff Weeks
Director General

Date:

Date:

1 September 2016

1 September 2016
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2016
$000

2015
$000

6
7
8
9
10

3,367
960
245
192
1,109
5,873

2,770
1,012
73
645
57
4,557

11
12

75
405
480

102
370
472

480

472

5,393

4,085

2,857
2,857

2,528
2,528

(2,536)

(1,557)

(4,615)
(4,615)

(4,965)
(4,965)

(7,151)

(6,522)
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COST OF SERVICES
Expenses
Supplies and services
Depreciation expense
Accommodation expenses
Grants and subsidies
Other expenses
Total cost of services
Income
Revenue
Interest revenue
Other revenue
Total Revenue
Total income other than income from State Government
NET COST OF SERVICES
Income from State Government
Services received free of charge
Total income from State Government

13

SURPLUS /(DEFICIT) FOR THE PERIOD
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Items not reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Changes in asset revaluation surplus
Total other comprehensive income
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD

23

The Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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As at 30 June 2016

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Other current assets
Total Current Assets
Non-Current Assets
Property
Total Non-Current Assets

Note
24
14, 24
15
16

17

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Payables
Provisions
Other current liabilities
Total Current Liabilities

20
21
22

TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS
EQUITY
Reserves
Accumulated surplus/(deficit)
TOTAL EQUITY

23
23

2016
$000
242
2,306
18
19
2,585

2015
$000
190
3,338
12
23
3,563

104,086
104,086

110,522
110,522

106,671

114,085

68
1,381
1,449

8
1,389
315
1,712

1,449

1,712

105,222

112,373

119,270
(14,048)
105,222

123,885
(11,512)
112,373

The Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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for the year ended 30 June 2016

2016
$000

2015
$000

(450)
(245)
(507)
(131)
(8)
(256

(595)
(73)
(2,290)
(106)
(1)
(275)

79
405
8
125
(980)

124
396
95
(2,725)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

(980)

(2,725)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period

3,528

6,253

2,548

3,528

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Payments
Supplies and services
Accommodation expenses
Grants and subsidies
GST payments on purchases
GST payments to taxation authority
Other payments
Receipts
Interest received
Rent received
Other receipts
GST receipts on sales
GST receipts from taxation authority
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE PERIOD

Note

24

24

The Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Reserves
$000

Accumulated
surplus / (deficit)
$000

Total equity
$000

128,850

(9,955)

118,895

-

(1,557)

(1,557)

(4,965)

-

(4,965)

(4,965)

(1,557)

(6,522)

Balance at 30 June 2015

123,885

(11,512)

112,373

Balance at 1 July 2015

123,885

(11,512)

112,373

(2,536)

(2,536)
(4,615)

(4,615)

(2,536)

(7,151)

-

-

-

119,270

(14,048)

105,222

Note
Balance at 1 July 2014

23

Surplus/(deficit)
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the period

Surplus/(deficit)
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the period
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners:
Distribution to Owners
Total
Balance at 30 June 2016

(4,615)

The Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Australian Accounting Standards

General
The Authority’s financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2016
have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards.
The term ‘Australian Accounting Standards’ includes Standards and
Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standard Board
(AASB).
The Authority has adopted any applicable new and revised Australian
Accounting Standards from their operative dates.
Early adoption of standards
The Authority cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard
unless specifically permitted by TI 1101 Application of Australian
Accounting Standards and Other Pronouncements. Partial exemption
permitting early adoption of AASB 2015-7 Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards - Fair Value Disclosures of Not-for-Profit Public
Sector Entities has been granted. Aside from AASB 2015-7, there has been
no early adoption of any Australian Accounting Standards that have been
issued or amended (but not operative) by the Authority for the annual
reporting period ended 30 June 2016.
2.

Summary of significant accounting policies

(a) General statement
The Authority is a not-for-profit reporting entity that prepares general
purpose financial statements in accordance with Australian Accounting
Standards, the Framework, Statements of Accounting Concepts and other
authoritative pronouncements of the AASB as applied by the Treasurer's
instructions. Several of these are modified by the Treasurer's instructions
to vary application, disclosure, format and wording.

The Financial Management Act 2006 and the Treasurer's instructions
impose legislative provisions that govern the preparation of financial
statements and take precedence over Australian Accounting Standards,
the Framework, Statements of Accounting Concepts and other
authoritative pronouncements of the AASB.
Where modification is required and has had a material or significant
financial effect upon the reported results, details of that modification and
the resulting financial effect are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.
(b) Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting using the historical cost convention, except for land, buildings
and infrastructure which have been measured at fair value.
The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial
statements have been consistently applied throughout all periods
presented unless otherwise stated.
The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand dollars ($'000).
Note 3 ‘Judgements made by management in applying accounting
policies’ discloses judgements that have been made in the process of
applying the Authority’s accounting policies resulting in the most
significant effect on amounts recognised in the financial statements.
Note 4 ‘Key sources of estimation uncertainty’ discloses key assumptions
made concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
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(c) Reporting entity
The reporting entity comprises the Authority and bodies included at note
31 'Related body'.
(d) Contributed equity
AASB Interpretation 1038 Contributions by Owners Made to WhollyOwned Public Sector Entities requires transfers in the nature of equity
contributions, other than as a result of a restructure of administrative
arrangements, to be designated by the Government (the owner) as
contributions by owners (at the time of, or prior to transfer) before such
transfers can be recognised as equity contributions. Capital
appropriations have been designated as contributions by owners by TI 955
Contributions by Owners made to Wholly Owned Public Sector Entities
and have been credited directly to Contributed equity.
The transfer of net assets to/from other agencies, other than as a result of
a restructure of administrative arrangements, are designated as
contributions by owners where the transfers are non-discretionary and
non-reciprocal.
(e) Income
Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or
receivable. Revenue is recognised for the major business activities as
follows:
Interest
Revenue is recognised as the interest accrues.
Grants and Contributions
Revenue is recognised at fair value when the Authority obtains control
over the assets comprising the contributions, usually when cash is
received.

Other non-reciprocal contributions that are not contributions by owners
are recognised at their fair value. Contributions of services are only
recognised when a fair value can be reliably determined and the services
would be purchased if not donated.
Gains
Realised and unrealised gains are recognised on a net basis. These include
gains arising on the disposal of non current assets and some revaluations
of non current assets.
(f) Property
Capitalisation / Expensing of assets
Items of property costing $5,000 or more are recognised as assets and the
cost of utilising assets is expensed (depreciated) over their useful lives.
Items of property costing less than $5,000 are immediately expensed
direct to the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Initial recognition and measurement
All items of property are initially recognised at cost.
For items of property acquired at no cost or for nominal cost, the cost is
the fair value at the date of acquisition.
Subsequent measurement
Subsequent to initial recognition as an asset, the revaluation model is
used for the measurement of land and buildings. Land and buildings are
carried at fair value less accumulated depreciation (buildings only) and
accumulated impairment losses. The Authority does not hold any assets
other than land and buildings.
Where market-based evidence is available, the fair value of land and
buildings is determined on the basis of current market values determined
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by reference to recent market transactions. When buildings are revalued
by reference to recent market transactions, the accumulated depreciation
is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net
amount restated to the revalued amount.
Where market-based evidence is not available, the fair value of land and
buildings is determined on the basis of existing use. This normally applies
where buildings are specialised or where land use is restricted. Fair value
for existing use building is determined by reference to the cost of
replacing the remaining future economic benefits embodied in the asset,
i.e. the depreciated replacement cost. Where the fair value of buildings is
determined on the depreciated replacement cost basis, the gross carrying
amount and the accumulated depreciation are restated proportionately.
Fair value for restricted use land is determined by comparison with
market evidence for land with similar approximate utility (high restricted
use land) or market value of comparable unrestricted land (low restricted
use land).
Independent valuations of land and buildings are provided annually by the
Western Australian Land Information Authority (Valuation Services) and
recognised annually to ensure that the carrying amount does not differ
materially from the asset’s fair value at the end of the reporting period.
The most significant assumptions and judgements in estimating fair value
are made in assessing whether to apply the existing use basis to assets
and in determining estimated economic life. Professional judgement by
the valuer is required where the evidence does not provide a clear
distinction between market type assets and existing use assets.
Refer to note 17 'Property' for further information on revaluations.

Derecognition
Upon disposal or derecognition of an item of property, any revaluation
surplus relating to that asset is retained in the asset revaluation surplus.
Asset revaluation surplus
The asset revaluation surplus is used to record increments and decrements
on the revaluation of non-current assets on a class of assets basis.
Depreciation
All non-current assets having a limited useful life are systematically
depreciated over their estimated useful lives in a manner that reflects the
consumption of their future economic benefits.
Land is not depreciated.
Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight line method,
using rates which are reviewed annually. Estimated useful lives for each
class of depreciable asset are:
Buildings

50 years

(g) Impairment of Assets
Property is tested for any indication of impairment at the end of each
reporting period. Where there is an indication of impairment, the
recoverable amount is estimated. Where the recoverable amount is less
than the carrying amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written
down to the recoverable amount and an impairment loss is recognised.
Where an asset measured at cost is written down to recoverable amount, an
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss. Where a previously revalued
asset is written down to recoverable amount, the loss is recognised as a
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revaluation decrement in other comprehensive income. As the Authority is a
not for profit entity, unless a specialised asset has been identified as a
surplus asset, the recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and depreciated replacement cost.

Financial Assets
• Cash and cash equivalents
• Restricted cash and cash equivalents
• Receivables

The risk of impairment is generally limited to circumstances where an asset’s
depreciation is materially understated, where the replacement cost is falling
or where there is a significant change in useful life. Each relevant class of
assets is reviewed annually to verify that the accumulated depreciation/
amortisation reflects the level of consumption or expiration of asset’s future
economic benefits and to evaluate any impairment risk from falling
replacement costs.

Financial Liabilities
• Payables
• Other current liabilities

The recoverable amount of assets identified as surplus assets is the higher of
fair value less costs to sell and the present value of future cash flows
expected to be derived from the asset. Surplus assets carried at fair value
have no risk of material impairment where fair value is determined by
reference to market-based evidence. Where fair value is determined by
reference to depreciated replacement cost, surplus assets are at risk of
impairment and the recoverable amount is measured. Surplus assets at cost
are tested for indications of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Refer to note 19 'Impairment of assets' for outcome of impairment reviews
and testing.
(h) Financial instruments
In addition to cash, the Authority has two categories of financial instrument:
• Loans and Receivables, and
• Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Financial instruments have been disaggregated into the following classes:

Initial recognition and measurement of financial instruments is at fair value
which normally equates to the transaction cost or the face value.
Subsequent measurement is at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
The fair value of short-term receivables and payables is the transaction cost
or the face value because there is no interest rate applicable and subsequent
measurement is not required as the effect of discounting is not material.
(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents
For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalent
(and restricted cash and cash equivalent) assets comprise cash on hand and
short-term deposits with original maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible to a known amount of cash and which are subject to
insignificant risk of changes in value.
(j) Receivables
Receivables are recognised and carried at original invoice amount less an
allowance for any uncollectible amounts (i.e. impairment). The collectability
of receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis and any receivables identified
as uncollectible are written off against the allowance account. The
allowance for uncollectible amounts (doubtful debts) is raised when there is
objective evidence that the Authority will not be able to collect the debts.
The carrying amount is equivalent to fair value as it is due for settlement
within 30 days.
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(k) Payables
Payables are recognised at the amounts payable when the Authority
becomes obliged to make future payments as a result of a purchase of assets
or services. The carrying amount is equivalent to fair value, as they are
generally settled within 30 days.
(l) Provisions
Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing or amount and are recognised
where there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event and when the outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is
probable and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Such situations are disclosed as contingent liabilities, unless the
outflow of resources is remote in which case no liability is recognised.
Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period.
Remediation Costs
A provision is recognised where the Authority has a legal or constructive
obligation to undertake remediation work. Estimates are based on the
present value of expected future cash outflows.
The Authority has a liability under the Contaminated Sites Act 2003 to
rehabilitate affected parcels of land. Where contaminated sites have been
identified and classified as 'contaminated - remediation required' or it is
probable that the site will be classified as 'contaminated - remediation'
required and a reliable estimate can be made of the cost of remediation of
the site, a provision has been made. See note 21, 'Provisions'.
(m) Assets and Services Received Free of Charge or for nominal cost
Assets or services received free of charge or for nominal cost, that the
Authority would otherwise purchase if not donated, are recognised as
income at the fair value of the assets or services where they can be reliably
measured. A corresponding expense is recognised for services received.
Receipts of assets are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position.

Where assets or services are received from another State Government
agency, these are separately disclosed under Income from State Government
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
(n) Support from Department of Aboriginal Affairs
Decision making authority in respect of the Aboriginal Land Trust Estate
effectively resides with the Aboriginal Lands Trust (ALT), a body established
under the auspices of the Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority Act 1972.
When the Aboriginal Affairs Department (AAD) - now titled the Department
of Aboriginal Affairs (DAA) - was established on 1 November 1994, it
effectively took over the operations of its originating agencies, including the
Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority (AAPA). Staff previously employed by
the AAPA at that time were transferred to the AAD. As a consequence,
administrative support for the AAPA and the ALT is provided by staff
employed by the Department. These expenses were brought to account as
Supplies and Services and as Resources Received Free of Charge. See note 6
'Supplies and services' and note 13 'Income from State Government'.
(o) Comparative Figures
Comparative figures are, where appropriate, reclassified to be comparable
with the figures presented in the current financial year.
3. Judgements made by management in applying accounting policies
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make
judgements about the application of accounting policies that have a
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements. The
Authority evaluates these judgements regularly.
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Contaminated sites
The provision toward restoration costs of contaminated sites are treated as current liabilities as the Authority has reported these to the Department of
Environment Regulation in accordance with the Contaminated Sites Act 2003 and has applied to the Contaminated Sites Management Account (CSMS) for
funding to complete restoration works. If funds are provided, restoration works can be completed within 12 months from the reporting date. See note 21
'Provisions' and note 25 'Contingent Liabilities'.
4. Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The Authority makes key estimates and assumptions concerning the future. These estimates and assumptions are based on historical experience and various
other factors that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
Contaminated Sites
The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at reporting date. As the Authority
cannot reliably estimate the timing of future cash flows, the provision is based on current costs that are reviewed annually.
5. Disclosure of changes in accounting policy and estimates
Initial application of an Australian Accounting Standard
The Authority has applied the following Australian Accounting Standards effective, or adopted, for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2015
that impacted on the Authority.
AASB 2013-9

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards Conceptual Framework, Materiality and Financial Instruments.
Part C of this Standard defers the application of AASB 9 to 1 January 2017. The application date of AASB 9 was subsequently deferred
to 1 January 2018 by AASB 2014-1. The Authority has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of AASB 9.

AASB 2014-8

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 (December 2014) – Application of AASB 9 (December 2009) and
AASB 9 (December 2010) [AASB 9 (2009 & 2010)]
This Standard makes amendments to AASB 9 Financial Instruments (December 2009) and AASB 9 Financial Instruments (December 2010),
arising from the issuance of AASB 9 Financial Instruments in December 2014. The Authority has not yet determined the application or the
potential impact of AASB 9.
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AASB 2015-3

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Withdrawal of AASB 1031 Materiality
This Standard completes the withdrawal of references to AASB 1031 in all Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations, allowing
that Standard to effectively be withdrawn. There is no financial impact.

AASB 2015-7

Amendments to the Australian Accounting Standards - Fair Value Disclosures of Not-for-Profit Public Sector Entities
This Standard relieves not-for-profit public sector entities from the reporting burden associated with various disclosures required by
AASB 13 for assets within the scope of AASB 116 that are held primarily for their current service potential rather than to generate future
net cash inflows. It has no financial impact.

Future impact of Australian Accounting Standards not yet operative
The Authority cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless specifically permitted by TI 1101 Application of Australian Accounting Standards
and Other Pronouncements or by an exemption from TI 1101. By virtue of a limited exemption, the Authority has early adopted AASB 2015-7 Amendments to
Australian Accounting Standards - Fair Value Disclosures of Not-for-Profit Public Sector Entities. Where applicable, the Authority plans to apply the following
Australian Accounting Standards from their application date.
Title

AASB 9

Operative for
reporting periods
beginning on/after
Financial Instruments
01-January-2018
This Standard supersedes AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, introducing a number of
changes to accounting treatments.
The mandatory application date of this Standard is currently 1 January 2018 after being amended by AASB 2012-6,
AASB 2013-9, and, AASB 2014-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards. The Authority has not yet
determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard.
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AASB 15

Revenue from Contracts with Customers
01-January-2018
This Standard established the principles that the Authority shall apply to report useful information to users of
financial statements about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from a
contract with a customer. The Authority has not yet determined the application or potential impact of the Standard.

AASB 16

Leases
01-January-2019
This Standard introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for
all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. The Authority has not yet
determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard.

AASB 1057

Application of Australian Accounting Standards
01-January-2016
This Standard lists the application paragraphs for each other Standard (and Interpretation), grouped where they are
the same. There is no financial impact.

AASB 2010-7

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 (December 2010) [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 102, 01-January-2018
108, 112, 118, 120, 121, 127, 128, 131, 132, 136, 137, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Int 2, 5, 10, 12, 19 & 127]
This Standard makes consequential amendments to other Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations as a
result of issuing AASB 9 in December 2010.
The mandatory application date of this Standard has been amended by AASB 2012-6 and AASB 2014-1
to 1 January 2018. The Authority has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard.

AASB 2014-1

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards
01-January-2018
Part E of this Standard makes amendments to AASB 9 and consequential amendments to other Standards. It has not
yet been assessed by the Authority to determine the application or potential impact of the Standard.

AASB 2014-3

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations [AASB 01-January-2016
1 &11]
The Authority establishes Joint Operations in pursuit of its objectives and does not routinely acquire interests in Joint
Operations. Therefore, there is no financial impact on application of the Standard.
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AASB 2014-4

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation [AASB 116 & 138]
The adoption of this Standard has no financial impact for the Authority as depreciation and amortisation is not
determined by reference to revenue generation, but by reference to consumption of future economic benefits.

01-January-2016

AASB 2014-5

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 15
This Standard gives effect to the consequential amendments to Australian Accounting Standards (including
Interpretations) arising from the issuance of AASB 15. The Authority has not yet determined the application or the
potential impact of the Standard.

01-January-2017

AASB 2014-7

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 (December 2014)
This Standard gives effect to the consequential amendments to Australian Accounting Standards (including
Interpretations) arising from the issuance of AASB 9 (December 2014). The Authority has not yet determined the
application or the potential impact of the Standard.

01-January-2018

AASB 2014-9

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements
01-January-2016
[AASB 1, 127 & 128]
This Standard amends AASB 127, and consequentially amends AASB 1 and AASB 128, to allow entities to use the equity
method of accounting for investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in their separate financial
statements. The Authority has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard.

AASB 2014-10

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate 01-January-2016
or Joint Venture [AASB 10 & 128]
This Standard amends AASB 10 and AASB 128 to address an inconsistency between the requirements in AASB 10 and
those in AASB 128 (August 2011), in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The Authority has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of the
Standard.

AASB 2015-1

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Annual Improvements to Australian Accounting Standards 2012– 01-January-2016
2014 Cycle [AASB 1, 2, 3, 5, 7, 11, 110, 119, 121, 133, 134, 137 & 140]
These amendments arise from the issuance of International Financial Reporting Standard Annual Improvements to
IFRSs 2012–2014 Cycle in September 2014, and editorial corrections. The Authority has not yet determined the
application or the potential impact of the Standard.
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AASB 2015-2

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Disclosure Initiative: Amendments to AASB 101
[AASB 7, 101, 134 & 1049]
This Standard amends AASB 101 to provide clarification regarding the disclosure requirements in AASB 101.
Specifically, the Standard proposes narrow-focus amendments to address some of the concerns expressed about
existing presentation and disclosure requirements and to ensure entities are able to use judgement when applying a
Standard in determining what information to disclose in their financial statements. There is no financial impact.

AASB 2015-6

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Extending Related Party Disclosures to Not-for-Profit Public Sector 01-July-2016
Entities [AASB 10, 124 & 1049]
The amendments extend the scope of AASB 124 to include application by not-for-profit public sector entities.
Implementation guidance is included to assist application of the Standard by not-for-profit public sector entities. There
is no financial impact.

AASB 2015-8

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Effective Date of AASB 15
This Standard amends the mandatory effective date (application date) of AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers so that AASB 15 is required to be applied for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018 instead of 1 January 2017. The Authority has not yet determined the application or the potential
impact of AASB 15.

AASB 2015-10

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Effective Date of Amendments to AASB 10 & 128
01-January-2017
This Standard defers the mandatory effective date (application date) of amendments to AASB 10 & 128 that were
originally made in AASB 2014-10 so that the amendments are required to be applied for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018 instead of 1 January 2016. The Authority has not yet determined the application
or the potential impact of AASB 2014-10.

01-January-2016

01-January-2017
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AASB 2016-2

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Disclosure Initiative: Amendments to AASB 107
01-January-2017
This Standard amends AASB 107 Statement of Cash Flows (August 2015) to require disclosures that enable users of
financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising
from cash flows and non-cash changes. There is no financial impact.

AASB 2016-3

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Clarifications to AASB 15
01-January-2017
This Standard clarifies identifying performance obligations, principal versus agent considerations, timing of
recognising revenue from granting a licence, and, provides further transitional provisions to AASB 15. The Authority
has not yet determined the application or the potential impact.

Changes in accounting estimates
There were no changes in accounting estimates that have an effect in the current period or are expected to have an effect in future periods.
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6. Supplies and Services

Electricity and water
Services and contracts
• support from Department of Aboriginal Affairs (a) (b)
• support from Landgate (a)
• other services and contracts
Consumables
Operating leases
Repairs and maintenance
Travel

2016
$000

2015
$000

12

9

1,938
919
377
1
106
14
3,367

1,552
976
133
53
47
2,770

(a) See also note 2(m) 'Assets and services received free of charge or for nominal cost' and note 13 'Income from State Government'.
(b) See also note 2(n) 'Support from Department of Aboriginal Affairs'.
7. Depreciation expense
Buildings

960
960

1,012
1,012

1
244
245

31
42
73

8. Accommodation expense
Repairs and maintenance
Other
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9. Grants and subsidies
Grants to organisations from:

Recurrent funds
- general funds
- mining rents & royalties funds
- intestate funds

2016
$000

2015
$000

192
192

183
461
1
645

162

644

233
16
860
1,109

40
17
57

(a) See note 14 'Restricted cash and cash equivalents' for more detail.
Details of significant grants (above $100,000) paid are as follows:
Mining rents & Royalties
• Ngaanyatjarra Council
10. Other expenses
Building Maintenance
Other Expenses (a)
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of non-current assets (b)

(a) Audit Fees, see also note 30 ‘Remuneration of the auditor’
(b) The loss on disposal of properties is due to the transfer of land and buildings to the Moorditj Koort Aboriginal Corporation.
11. Interest revenue
Interest revenue

75
75

102
102

111
3
291
405

33
337
370

12. Other Revenue
Rent
Intestate receipts
Royalties Received
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13. Income from State Government
Services received free of charge from other State Government agencies during the financial period (a)
Determined on the basis of the following estimates provided by the relevant agencies
- Department of Aboriginal Affairs (b)
- Landgate (Land information and valuation) (c)

2016
$000
1,938
919
2,857

2015
$000
1,552
976
2,528

(a) Where assets or services have been received free of charge or for nominal cost, the Authority recognises revenues equivalent to the fair value of the assets and/or
the fair value of those services that can be reliably determined and which would have been purchased if they were not donated. Where the contribution of assets
or services are in the nature of contributions by owners, the Authority makes an adjustment direct to equity.
(b) See also note 2(n) 'Support from Department of Aboriginal Affairs'.
(c) The Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority manages land and building assets totalling $104,086,155. Landgate provide land information services for maps and aerial
photography, land information enterprises and sale of digital data free of charge.
14. Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Current
Mining rents and royalties (a)
Community facilities (b)
Strategic Intervention Package (c)
Multifunctional Police Facilities (d)
Special Purpose Grants (e)
Intestate Account (f)
CL Johnson Bequest (g)
H Drake-Brockman (h)
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)
(g)
(h)

306
315
958
1,812
19
19
651
651
366
538
3
2
2
1
1
2,306
3,338
Mining, rents and royalties - Improvements to land held by the Authority, on which mining activity takes place.
Community facilities - The provision of facilities, such as swimming pools, in certain regional communities.
WA Strategic Intervention package - This is interest earned on the unspent funds that was refunded during the year. This will also be returned to the
Commonwealth.
Multifunctional police facilities - Develop police facilities at 4 remote communities - Burringurrah, Looma, Wingellina and Bidyadanga.
Special Purpose Grants - Funds received from outside organisations for defined projects including Aboriginal Community Emergency Response Fund.
Intestate Account - Funds received from the Public Trustee for intestate estates.
CL Johnson Bequest - The purpose of this trust account is to hold funds for the benefit of Aboriginal Missionaries in Western Australia during illness in accordance
with the bequest of the late Christian Larsen Johnson to the Department of Native Welfare (now abolished).
H Drake-Brockman - The purpose of this trust account is to hold funds to award a prize in the form of books, apparatus, equipment etc. to the Aboriginal student
who achieves the highest Tertiary Entrance Examination (TEE) aggregate results in Western Australia in accordance with the bequest of the late Henrietta Drake143
Brockman.
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15. Receivables

Current
Goods and Services Tax (GST) receivable

2016
$000

2015
$000

18
18

12
12

The Authority does not hold any collateral as security or other credit enhancements relating to receivables.
See also note 2(j) 'Receivables' and note 28 'Financial instruments'.
16. Other current assets
Accrued interest

19
19

23
23

16,547
45,291
2,733
253
64,824

17,048
50,168
1,733
263
69,212

5,134
-

9,476
-

Buildings at current use
Accumulated depreciation of buildings at current use

41,412
(7,284)

43,041
(5,849)

Total buildings at fair value
Total accumulated depreciation of buildings

46,546
(7,284)
39,262

47,724
(6,414)
41,310

104,086

110,522

17. Property
Land at fair value (a)
Freehold land (b)
Reserve land (c)
Pastoral leases (d)
Other leases (e)

Buildings at fair value (a)
Buildings at market value
Accumulated depreciation of buildings at market value

Total property
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(a) Land and buildings were revalued as at 1 July 2015 by the Western Australian Land Information Department (Valuation Services). The valuations
were performed during the year ended 30 June 2016 and recognised at 30 June 2016. In undertaking the revaluation, fair value was determined by
reference to market values for land: $34,160,300 (2015: $42,585,300) and buildings: $5,134,400 (2015: $6,579,500). For the remaining balance, fair
value of land and buildings was determined on the basis of depreciated replacement cost and fair value of land was determined on the basis of
comparison with market evidence for land with low level utility (high restricted use land). See note 2(f) 'Property'.
(b) Freehold land is land that is alienated (removed) from the Crown Estate and granted to an entity. This may be an individual or an organisation
(government or non-government).
(c) Reserve land is Crown Land set aside for public purposes: for example, hospitals, schools, conserving plants and animals, national parks, recreation,
and for the use of Aboriginal people. State reserves are created under the Land Administration Act.
(d) Pastoral leases are Crown Land set aside for grazing stock and all purposes connected with that.
(e) Other leases are Crown Land designated as general or state leases issued for a particular purpose. For the Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority a
general lease may be for the purpose of the use and benefit of Aboriginal people.
Information on Fair Value measurement is provided in note 18.
Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of property at the beginning and end of the reporting period are set out in the table below.
Reserves

2016
Carrying amount at start of year
Additions
Disposals
Revaluation increments/(decrements)
Depreciation
Carrying amount at end of year

Freehold
Land
$000
17,048
(730)
229
16,547

Other
Leases
$000
263
(10)
253

Buildings

Total

$000
50,168
(4,877)
45,291

Pastoral
Leases
$000
1,733
1,000
2,733

$000
41,310
(130)
(958)
(960)
39,262

$000
110,522
(860)
(4,616)
(960)
104,086

2015
Carrying amount at start of year
Additions
Disposals
Revaluation increments/(decrements)
Depreciation
Carrying amount at end of year

17,442
(394)
17,048

50,490
(322)
50,168

1,637
96
1,733

263
263

46,668
(4,345)
(1,013)
41,310

116,500
(4,965)
(1,013)
110,522
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18. Fair value measurements

Assets measured at fair value:
2016
Land (Note 17)
Buildings (Note 17)
2015
Land (Note 17)
Buildings (Note 17)

Level 1

Level 2

$000

-

Level 3

$000
34,160
5,134
39,294

$000
30,664
34,128
64,792

Fair Value
At end of
period
$000
64,824
39,262
104,086

42,586
6,580
49,166

26,626
34,730
61,356

69,212
41,310
110,522

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 or 3 during the current and previous periods.
Valuation techniques to derive Level 2 fair values
Level 2 fair values of Non-current assets held for sale, Land and Buildings (Office Accommodation) are derived using the market approach.
Market evidence of sales prices of comparable land and buildings (office accommodation) in close proximity is used to determine price
per square metre.
Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3)
2016
Fair Value at start of period
Additions
Revaluation increments/(decrements) recognised in Profit or Loss
Revaluation increments/(decrements) recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Transfers from/(to) Level 2
Disposal
Depreciation Expense
Fair Value at end of period
Total gains or losses for the period included in profit or loss, under ‘Other Gains
Change in unrealised gains or losses for the period included in profit or loss for assets held at the end of the
reporting period

Land
$000
26,626

Buildings
$000
34,730

4,038

226

30,664
-

(828)
34,128
-

-
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Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) (Continued)
2015
Fair Value at start of period
Additions
Revaluation increments/(decrements) recognised in Profit or Loss
Revaluation increments/(decrements) recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Transfers from/(to) Level 2
Disposal
Depreciation Expense
Fair Value at end of period
Total gains or losses for the period included in profit or loss, under ‘Other Gains
Change in unrealised gains or losses for the period included in profit or loss for assets held at the end of the
reporting period

Land
$000

Buildings
$000

26,381

37,192

245

(1,639)

26,626

34,730

-

-

-

-

(823)

Valuation processes
There were no changes in valuation techniques during the period.
Transfers in and out of a fair value level are recognised on the date of the event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer. Transfers are generally
limited to assets newly classified as non-current assets held for sale as Treasurer's instructions require valuations of land, buildings and infrastructure to be
categorised within Level 3 where the valuations will utilise significant Level 3 inputs on a recurring basis.
Land (Level 3 fair values)
Fair value for restricted use land is based on comparison with market evidence for land with low level utility (high restricted use land). The relevant comparators
of land with low level utility is selected by the Western Australian Land Information Authority (Valuation Services) and represents the application of a significant
Level 3 input in this valuation methodology. The fair value measurement is sensitive to values of comparator land, with higher values of comparator land
correlating with higher estimated fair values of land.
Restoration costs are estimated for the purpose of returning the site to a vacant and marketable condition and include costs for: building demolition,
clearing, re-zoning and an allowance for time factors.
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Buildings (Level 3 fair values)
Fair value for existing use specialised buildings and infrastructure assets is determined by reference to the cost of replacing the remaining future economic benefits
embodied in the asset, i.e. the depreciated replacement cost. Depreciated replacement cost is the current replacement cost of an asset less accumulated
depreciation calculated on the basis of such cost to reflect the already consumed or expired economic benefit, or obsolescence, and optimisation (where applicable)
of the asset. Current replacement cost is generally determined by reference to the market observable replacement cost of a substitute asset of comparable utility
and the gross project size specifications.
Valuation using depreciation replacement cost utilises the significant Level 3 input, consumed economic benefit/obsolescence of asset which is estimated by the
Western Australian Land Information Authority (Valuation Services). The fair value measurement is sensitive to the estimate of consumption/obsolescence, with
higher values of the estimate correlating with lower estimated fair values of buildings.

Buildings (Level 3 fair values)
Fair value for existing use specialised buildings and infrastructure assets is determined by reference to the cost of replacing the remaining future economic benefits
embodied in the asset, i.e. the depreciated replacement cost. Depreciated replacement cost is the current replacement cost of an asset less accumulated
depreciation calculated on the basis of such cost to reflect the already consumed or expired economic benefit, or obsolescence, and optimisation (where applicable)
of the asset. Current replacement cost is generally determined by reference to the market observable replacement cost of a substitute asset of comparable utility
and the gross project size specifications.
Valuation using depreciation replacement cost utilises the significant Level 3 input, consumed economic benefit/obsolescence of asset which is estimated by the
Western Australian Land Information Authority (Valuation Services). The fair value measurement is sensitive to the estimate of consumption/obsolescence, with
higher values of the estimate correlating with lower estimated fair values of buildings.
Basis of Valuation
In the absence of market-based evidence, due to the specialised nature of some non-financial assets, these assets are valued at Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy on
an existing use basis. The existing use basis recognises that restrictions or limitations have been placed on their use and disposal when they are not determined to be
surplus to requirements. These restrictions are imposed by virtue of the assets being held to deliver a specific community service.
Information about significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) in fair value measurements
Fair value as at
Fair value as at
30 June 2016
30 June 2015
$000
$000
Valuation technique(s)
Description
Land
$30,664
$26,626
Market approach
Buildings
$34,128
$34,730
Depreciated Replacement Cost

Unobservable inputs
Selection of land with similar approximate utility
Consumed economic benefit / obsolescence of asset
2
Historical cost per square metre floor area (m )

Reconciliations of the opening and closing balances are provided in Notes 17.
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19. Impairment of assets
There were no indications of impairment to property at 30 June 2016.
The Authority held no goodwill or intangible assets with an indefinite useful life during the reporting period. At the end of the reporting period there were
no intangible assets not yet available for use.
20. Payables
Current
Trade Payables

2016
$000

2015
$000

68
68

8
8

1,381
1,381

1,389
1,389

(a) See also note 2(k) ‘Payables’ and note 28 ‘Financial instruments’.
21. Provisions
Current
Contaminated Sites (a)

(a) This provision represents liabilities associated with remediation of contaminated land under the Contaminated Sites Act 2003. See note 2(l)
'Provisions', note 3 'Judgements made by management in applying accounting policies' and note 4 'Key sources of estimation uncertainty'.
Movement in provisions
Carrying amount at start of year
Additional provisions recognised/(reduced)
Carrying amount at end of year

1,389
(8)
1,381

1,607
(218)
1,389
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22. Other Liabilities
Current
Other Liabilities (a)

(a) This represents grants payable

2016
$000

2015
$000

-

315
315

23. Equity
The Western Australian Government holds the equity interest in the Authority on behalf of the community. Equity represents the residual interest in the
net assets of the Authority. The asset revaluation surplus represents that portion of equity resulting from the revaluation of non-current assets.
Reserves
Asset Revaluation Surplus
Balance at start of year
Net revaluation (decrements)/increments:
Land
Buildings
Balance at end of year
Accumulated surplus/(deficit)
Balance at start of year
Distribution to Owners
Result for the period
Balance at end of year
Total equity at end of period

123,885

128,850

(3,657)
(958)
119,270

(620)
(4,345)
123,885

(11,512)
(2,536)
(14,048)
105,222

(9,955)
(1,557)
(11,512)
112,373

** TI 955 designates non-discretionary and non-reciprocal transfers of net assets between state government agencies as contributions by owners
in accordance with AASB Interpretation 1038. Where the transferee agency accounts for a non-discretionary and non-reciprocal transfer of net
assets as a contribution by owners, the transferor agency accounts for the transfer as a distribution to owners.
*** TI 955 requires non-reciprocal transfers of net assets to Government to be accounted for as distribution to owners in accordance with AASB
Interpretation 1038.
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24. Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows
Reconciliation of cash
Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows is reconciled to the related items in the Statement of Financial Position as follows :

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents (see note 14)

2016
$000

2015
$000

242
2,306
2,548

190
3,338
3,528

(5,393)

(4,085)

960
2,857
860

1,012
2,528
-

4

26
21

60
(7)
(315)
(6)

(354)
(218)
(1,645)
(12)
2
(2,725)

Reconciliation of net cost of services to net cash flows provided by/(used in) operating activities
Net cost of services
Non-cash items:
Depreciation expense
Resources received free of charge
Loss on disposal of property
(Increase)/decrease in assets:
Current receivables (a)
Other current assets
Increase/(decrease) in liabilities:
Current payables (a)
Provisions
Other current liabilities
Net GST receipts/(payments) (b)
Change in GST receivables/payables (c)
Net cash used in operating activities

(980)

(a) Note that the Australian Taxation Office (ATO) receivable/payable in respect of GST and the receivable/payable in respect of the sale/purchase of noncurrent assets are not included in these items as they do not form part of the reconciling items.
(b) This is the net GST paid/received, i.e. cash transactions.
(c) This reverses out the GST in receivables and payables.
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25. Contingent Liabilities
In addition to the liabilities included in the financial statements, the
Authority has the following contingent liabilities:
Contaminated Sites
Under the Contaminated Sites Act 2003, the Authority is required to report
known and suspected contaminated sites to the Department of Environment
Regulation (DER). In accordance with the Act, DER classifies these sites on
the basis of the risk to human health, the environment and environmental
values. Where sites are classified as contaminated – remediation required or
possibly contaminated – investigation required, the Authority may have a
liability in respect of investigation or remediation expenses.
In addition to the contaminated sites reported at Note 21 'Provisions', during
the year the Authority reviewed all sites and determined that their status
remained unchanged from the previous year. There were no additional sites
reported to DER this year. These sites will remain as a contingent liability
until such time as funding is identified to complete Preliminary Site
Investigations, classifications determined and it is practicable to estimate the
potential financial effect or to identify the uncertainties relating to the
amount or timing of any outflows. While there is no possibility of
reimbursement of any future expenses that may be incurred in the
remediation of these sites, the Authority may apply for funding from the
Contaminated Sites Management Account to undertake further investigative
work or to meet remediation costs that may be required.

values based on known property conditions. Properties are now insured at
replacement building value or cost to demolish. Riskcover still require
assurances relating to asset management plans for the buildings insured at
replacement building value. There is a risk that these buildings will not be
fully insured at replacement value however the Authority is continuing to
work with Riskcover to address their disclosure requirements. The Authority
is also reviewing its insurance cover for other fixed assets on the ALT Estate
and will report to Riskcover as required.
Water
During the reporting period, Water Corporation brought to the attention of
management a contingent liability regarding the supply of water on the ALT
Estate. It is longstanding Authority policy not to pay outgoing costs on leased
or tenanted land (whether recoverable or not from the lessee or tenant);
whereas Water Corporation’s position is that debt generally reverts to the
landowner if it is not recoverable from a lessee or tenant.
No invoices were issued by Water Corporation to AAPA during the period
under review and discussions are currently underway between the parties
concerned. No provision was raised at 30 June 2016 as there was no present
legal or constructive obligation and management does not consider an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits probable.
26. Events occurring after the end of the reporting period
There have been no material events occurring after 30 June 2016.

Insurance
Riskcover has advised that due to their change in requirements for coverage,
specific information on buildings and contents on the land that is owned or
under the ALT's responsibility will be required before full insurance coverage
is provided. During the year, work was undertaken to provide Riskcover with
the information they require. An assessment was also made on insured
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27. Explanatory statement
All variances between estimates (original budget) and actual results for 2016, and between the actual results for 2016 and 2015 are shown below. Narratives are
provided for key variations selected from observed major variances, which are generally greater than:
• 5% and $91,000 for the Statements of Comprehensive Income and Cash Flows; and,
• 5% and $2.2 million for the Statement of Financial Position.
Significant variances between estimated and actual result for 2016

Statement of Comprehensive Income
Expenses
Supplies and services
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Accommodation expenses
Grants and subsidies
Other expenses
Total cost of services
Income
Other revenue
Total income other than income from State Government

1
2
3
9

A
A
B
A

4

NET COST OF SERVICES
Income from State Government
Services received free of charge
Total income from State Government
SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) FOR THE PERIOD

C

Estimate
2016

Actual
2016

Actual
2015

$000

$000

$000

Variance
Variance
between
between
estimate and actual results
for 2016
actual
and 2015
$000

$000

2,882
1,131
1,072
250
15
5,350

3,367
960
245
192
1,109
5,873

2,770
1,012
73
645
57
4,557

(485)
171
827
58
(1,094)
(523)

597
(52)
172
(453)
1,052
1,316

333
333

480
480

472
472

(147)
(147)

8
8

5,017

5,393

4,085

(376)

1,308

2,880
2,880

2,857
2,857

2,528
2,528

23
23

329
329

(2,137)

(2,536)

(1,557)

399

(979)
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Statement of Financial Position

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Other current assets
Total Current Assets

Estimate 2016

Actual
2016

Actual
2015

Variance
between
estimate and
actual

Variance
between
actual results
for 2016
and 2015

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

953
1,415
2,368

242
2,306
18
19
2,585

190
3,338
12
23
3,563

(711)
891
18
19
217

52
(1,032)
6
(4)
(978)

110,766
110,766

104,086
104,086

110,522
110,522

(6,680)
(6,680)

(6,436)
(6,436)

113,134

106,671

114,085

(6,463)

(7,414)

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Payables
Provisions
Other current liabilities
Total Current Liabilities

1
1,387
125
1,513

68
1,381
0
1,449

8
1,389
315
1,712

67
(6)
(125)
(64)

60
(8)
(315)
(263)

TOTAL LIABILITIES

1,513

1,449

1,712

(64)

(263)

Non-Current Assets
Property
Total Non-Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

5

D
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Estimate 2016
$000

Statement of Financial Position (continued)

NET ASSETS

Actual
2016
$000

Actual
2015
$000

Variance
between
estimate and
actual $000

Variance
between
actual results
for 2016 and
2015 $000

111,621

105,222

112,373

(6,399)

(7,151)

1,797
125,270
(13,649)
113,418

119,270
(14,048)
105,222

123,885
(11,512)
112,373

(1,797)
(6,000)
(399)
(8,196)

(4,615)
(2,536)
(7,151)

(1,240)
(45)
(565)
(121)
(15)

(450)
(245)
(507)
(131)
(8)
(256)

(595)
(73)
(2,290)
(106)
(1)
(275)

(790)
200
(58)
10
8
241

(145)
172
(1,783)
25
7
(19)

47
646
133
(1,160)

79
405
8
125
(980)

124
396
95
(2,725)

32
(241)
8
(8)
(598)

(45)
9
8
30
(1,741)

(1,160)

(980)

(2,725)

(180)

1,745

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period

3,528

3,528

6,253

-

(2,725)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE PERIOD

2,368

2,548

3,528

(180)

(980)

EQUITY
Contributed equity
Reserves
Accumulated surplus/(deficit)
TOTAL EQUITY

6

E

Statement of Cash Flow
Utilised as follows:
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Payments
Supplies and services
Accommodation
Grants and subsidies
GST payments on purchases
GST payments to taxation authority
Other payments
Receipts
Interest received
Other receipts
GST receipts on sales
GST receipts from taxation authority
Net cash used in operating activities
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

1
3
7

8

A
A
B
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Major Variance Narratives
Variances between estimate and actual
1. Increase of $0.551 million in supplies and services reflects higher resources provided free of charge by Department of Aboriginal Affairs.
2. Lower actual depreciation and amortisation expenses reflects the lower valuation of properties.
3. Part of the variance in accommodation expenses is due to costs being reported under other expenses ($0.422 million). Deferment of program activities is also a
contributing factor to the variance.
4. The variance in other revenue is mainly attributable to increase in rent income of $0.075 million.
5. Decrease in property reflects the overall lower valuation. The estimate was based on previous year's balance.
6. Lower reserves balance is a flow through from the decrease in property values.
7. Lower income form Mining Rents and Royalties (MRR) is a factor in the decrease in grants and subsidies as these are funded from MRR income.
8. Variance in other receipts is partly due to lower income from MRR than was estimated.
9. Transfer of land and buildings to an Aboriginal corporation contributed to the variance in other expenses.
Variances between actual results for 2016 and 2015
A. Higher expenses in 2016 are in line with approved higher spending limits for the Authority. This is in recognition of the need to fund property management
activities. This trend is expected to continue in the next years.
B. Grants & subsidies are funded from Mining Rents and Royalties (MRR) income that has decreased from previous years. The reduction in grants and subsidies
follow this downward trend.
C. In line with increase in supplies and services, the higher income is attributable to increased resources received free of charge from Department of Aboriginal
Affairs.
D. Decrease in property reflects the revaluation performed by Landgate.
E. The decrease in reserves is due to the lower valuation of properties.
28. Financial Instruments
(a) Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
Financial instruments held by the Authority are cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash and cash equivalents, receivables and payables. The Authority has
limited exposure to financial risks. The Authority’s overall risk management program focuses on managing the risks identified below.
Credit risk
Credit risk arises when there is the possibility of the Authority's receivables defaulting on their contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Authority.
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of reporting period in relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the gross carrying amount of those
assets inclusive of any allowance for impairment as shown in Note 28 ( c ).
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Credit risk associated with the Authority's financial assets is minimal because the main receivable is the amount receivable for services (holding account). For
receivables, the Authority trades only with recognised, creditworthy third parties. The Authority has policies in place to ensure that it trades with organisations with
an appropriate credit history. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Authority's exposure to bad debts is
minimal. At the end of the reporting period there were no significant concentrations of credit risk.
Provision for impairment of financial assets is calculated based on past experience and current and expected changes in client credit ratings. Refer note 15
'Receivables'.
Liquidity Risk
The Authority is exposed to liquidity risk through its trading in the normal course of business. Liquidity risk arises when the Authority is unable to meet its financial
obligations as they fall due.
The Authority has appropriate procedures to manage cash by monitoring forecast cash flows to ensure that sufficient funds are available to meet its commitments.
Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect the Authority's income or the value of its holdings of
financial instruments. The Authority does not trade in foreign currency and is not materially exposed to other price risks. The Authority does not borrow money to
fund any of its operations. Other than as detailed in the interest rate sensitivity analysis table below, the Authority is not exposed to interest rate risk. All funds held
by the Authority are in interest bearing accounts.
(b) Categories of Financial Instruments
The carrying amounts of each of the following categories of financial assets and financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period are:
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents

2016
$000
242

2015
$000
190

Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Receivables (a)

2,306
19

3,338
23

68
-

8
315

Financial Liabilities
Payables
Other current liabilities
(a) The amount of receivables excludes GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable)
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(c) Financial instrument Disclosures

Credit Risk
The following table discloses the Authority's maximum exposure to credit risk and the ageing analysis of financial assets. The Authority's maximum exposure to credit
risk at the end of the reporting period is the carrying amount of the financial assets as shown below. The table discloses the ageing of financial assets that are past
due but not impaired and impaired financial assets. The table is based on information provided to senior management of the Authority.
The Authority does not hold any collateral as security or other credit enhancement relating to the financial assets it holds.
Ageing analysis of financial assets
Carrying
Amount

2016
Cash assets
Restricted cash assets
Accrued interest
2015
Cash assets
Restricted cash assets
Accrued interest

Past due but not impaired
3 months to
1 - 5 years
1 year

Up to 1
month

1 - 3 months

$000

Not past
due and
not
impaired
$000

$000

$000

$000

242
2,306
19
2,567

242
2,306
19
2,567

-

-

-

190
3,338
23
3,551

190
3,338
23
3,551

-

-

-

More than
5 years

Impaired
financial
assets

$000

$000

-

-

-

-

-

-

$000
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Liquidity Risk and interest rate exposure
The following table details the Authority's interest rate exposure and the contractual maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities. The
maturity analysis section includes interest and principal cash flows. The interest rate exposure section analyses only the carrying amounts of each item.
Interest rate exposures and maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities
Interest rate exposure

2016
Financial Assets
Cash assets
Restricted cash assets
Accrued interest
Financial Liabilities
Payables
2015
Financial Assets
Cash assets
Restricted cash assets
Accrued interest
Financial Liabilities
Payables
Other current liabilities

Weighted Carrying
average Amount
effective
interest
rate
%
$000

Fixed
interest
rate

Variable
interest
rate

Noninterest
bearing

Nominal
amount

Up to 1
month

Maturity
date
1-3
months

$000

$000

$000

$000

$000

2.3
2.3
-

242
2,306
19
2,567

-

242
2,306
2,548

-

68
68

-

-

2.7
2.7
-

190
3,338
23
3,551

-

190
3,338

-

8
315
323

3 months
to
1 year

1-5
years

More
than 5
years

19
19

242
2,306
19
2,567

242
2,306
19
2,567

-

-

-

-

68
68

68
68

68
68

-

-

-

-

3,528

23
23

190
3,338
23
3,551

190
3,338
23
3,551

-

-

-

-

-

-

8

8

8

-

-

-

-

-

-

8

8

8

-

-

-

-

(a) The amount of receivables excludes the GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable)
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Interest rate sensitivity analysis
The following table represents a summary of the interest rate sensitivity of the Authority's financial assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting period
on the surplus for the period and equity for a 1% change in interest rates. It is assumed that the change in interest rates is held constant throughout the
reporting period.
-100 basis points
+100 basis points
2016

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Total Increase/(Decrease)

Carrying
amount
$000

Surplus
$000

242
2,306

Equity
$000
(2)
(23)
(25)

Surplus
$000
(2)
(23)
(25)

-100 basis points
2015
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Total Increase/(Decrease)

Carrying
amount
$000
190
3,338

Surplus
$000

2
23
25

2
23
25

+100 basis points

Equity
$000

(2)
(33)
(35)

Equity
$000

Surplus
$000

(2)
(33)
(35)

Equity
$000

2
33
35

2
33
35

Fair Values
All financial assets and liabilities recognised in the Statement of Financial Position, whether they are carried at cost or fair value, are recognised at amounts
that represent a reasonable approximation of fair value unless otherwise stated in the applicable notes.
29. Remuneration of senior officers
There are no senior staff employed by the Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority (AAPA). The AAPA does not employ any staff. The Department of
Aboriginal Affairs (DAA) manages the AAPA and the remuneration of senior staff is reported in the DAA statements. See also note 2(n) 'Support from
Department of Aboriginal Affairs'.
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30. Remuneration of the auditor
Remuneration payable to the Auditor General in respect to the audit for the current financial year is as follows:
2016
$000
Auditing the accounts, financial statements and key performance indicators

16

2015
$000
15

The expense is included at note 10 'Other expenses'.

31. Related body
The Aboriginal Lands Trust (ALT) was deemed a related body by the Treasurer by virtue of Section 3(b) of the Financial Management Act 2006. The
revenue, expenditures, assets and liabilities of the ALT have been included within the financial statements of the Authority.
32. Special Purpose Accounts
Special Purpose Account section 16(1)(c)FMA
C L Johnson Bequest Trust Account
The purpose of this trust account is to hold funds for the benefit of Aboriginal Missionaries in Western Australia during illness in accordance with the
bequest of the late Christian Larsen Johnson to the Department of Native Welfare (now abolished).2016
2015
Balance at start of period
Receipts
Payments
Balance at end of period

$000
2
2

$000
2
2

Henrietta Drake-Brockman Trust Account
The purpose of this trust account is to hold funds to award a prize in the form of books, apparatus, equipment etc. to the Aboriginal student who achieves
the highest Tertiary Entrance Examination aggregate results in Western Australia in accordance with the bequest of the late Henrietta Drake-Brockman.

Balance at start of period
Receipts
Payments
Balance at end of period

2016
$000
1
1

2015
$000
1
1
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Intestate Trust Account
The purpose of this trust account is to hold funds received from the Public Trustee two years after the death of an Aboriginal person who dies intestate.
These funds are used for the betterment of Aboriginal people.
2016
2015
$000
$000
Balance at start of period
1
1
Payments
Balance at end of period
1
1
33. Supplementary financial information
Write-Offs
Bad Debts written off under the authority of the Accountable Authority
Losses Through Theft, Defaults and Other Causes
Losses of public moneys and, public and other property through theft or default
Amounts recovered
Gifts of Public Property
Gifts of public property provided by the Authority

2016
$000
-

2015
$000
-

2016
$000
-

2015
$000
-

2016
$000
-

2015
$000
-
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2017
$000

COST OF SERVICES
Expenses
Supplies and services
Depreciation expense
Accommodation expenses
Grants and subsidies
Other expenses
Total cost of services

3,316
1,155
459
355
22

5,307

Income
Revenue
Interest revenue
Other revenue
Total Revenue

14
309
323

Total income other than income from State Government

323

NET COST OF SERVICES

4,984

Income from State Government
Services received free of charge
Total income from State Government

2,880
2,880

SURPLUS /(DEFICIT) FOR THE PERIOD

(2,104)

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Changes in asset revaluation surplus
Total other comprehensive income
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD

(2,104)
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Estimates for the year ended 30 June 2017
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Other current assets
Total Current Assets
Non-Current Assets
Property
Total Non-Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

2017
$000
1,419
1,419
111,997
111,997
13,416

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Payables
Provisions
Other current liabilities
Total Current Liabilities

1
1,387
125
1,513

TOTAL LIABILITIES

1,513

NET ASSETS

111,903

EQUITY
Reserves
Accumulated surplus/(deficit)
TOTAL EQUITY

127,656
(15,753)
111,903
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Statement of Cash Flows

Estimates for the year ended 30 June 2017
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Supplies and services
Accommodation expenses
Grants and subsidies
GST payments on purchases
GST payments to taxation authority
Other payments

Note

2017
$000
855
40
355
121
22

Receipts
Interest received
Rent received
Other receipts
GST receipts on sales
GST receipts from taxation authority
Net cash used in operating activities

121
1,393

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

(949)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period

2,368

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE PERIOD

1,419

14
309
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Aboriginal Lands Trust (ALT)
The Aboriginal Lands Trust (ALT) became responsible for the administration of lands previously held by the Native Welfare
Department and a number of other State Government agencies. There are also lands that remain registered in the name of
the Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority. Additionally, as a part of the effective management of its estate, the ALT
undertakes strategic land acquisitions.
The ALT provides advice to the Minister for Aboriginal Affairs on ALT land issues. The ALT is a significant landholder with
responsibility for approximately 24 million hectares or 10 per cent of the State's land mass. This land comprises different
tenures including reserves, leases and freehold properties. A significant proportion of this land comprises reserves that
have Management Orders held by the ALT (generally having the power to lease), with their purposes mostly being for "the
use and benefit of Aboriginal inhabitants".
The ALT meets every second month.
Details of members and remuneration for the 2015-16 year is provided in the table below:

Position

Name

Type of remuneration

Chair
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member

Robert Isaacs
Kyra Bonney
Irene Davey
Jamie Elliott
Simon Forrest
Harry Graham
Patrick Green
Preston Thomas

Sitting fees
Sitting fees
Sitting fees
N/A
Sitting fees
Sitting fees
Sitting fees
Sitting fees

(per meeting attended)
(per meeting attended)
(per meeting attended)
(per meeting attended)
(per meeting attended)
(per meeting attended)
(per meeting attended)

Period of
membership
12 months
12 months
12 months
12 months
12 months
12 months
12 months
12 months

Total

Total

Gross actual
remuneration
$2,700
$1,400
$2,100
$0
$350
$2,100
$1,980
$1,980
$12,610
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Aboriginal Cultural Material Committee (ACMC)
The Aboriginal Cultural Material Committee (ACMC) is established under the Aboriginal Heritage Act 1972 (Act):
• to evaluate on behalf of the community the importance of places and objects alleged to be associated with Aboriginal
persons;
• where appropriate, to record and preserve the traditional Aboriginal lore related to such places and objects;
• to recommend to the Minister for Aboriginal Affairs (Minister) places and objects which, in the opinion of the
Committee, are, or have been, of special significance to persons of Aboriginal descent and should be preserved, acquired
and managed by the Minister;
• to advise the Minister on any question referred to the Committee, and generally on any matter related to the objects
and purposes of this Act;
• to perform the functions allocated to the Committee by this Act;
• and to advise the Minister when requested to do so as to the apportionment and application of moneys available for the
administration of this Act.

The ACMC meets once every month except in January as per the dates specified in the 2016 ACMC Meeting Dates. This
document also provides details on closing and advertising dates for Section 18 Notices and Section 16 Authorisation.
Details of members and remuneration for the 2015-16 year is provided in the table below:
Position

Name

Type of remuneration

Chair
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Ex-officio member
Ex-officio member
Ex-officio member

Gavin Fielding
Quinton Tucker
Vanessa Kickett
Bruce Smith
Merle Carter
Patrick Churnside
Lindsay Dean
Cliff Weeks
Alec Coles
Richard Browne

Sitting fees (annual)
Sitting fees (per meeting attended)
N/A
Sitting fees (per meeting attended)
Sitting fees (per meeting attended)
Sitting fees (per meeting attended)
Sitting fees (per meeting attended)
N/A
N/A
N/A

Period of
membership
12 months
12 months
12 months
3 months
3 months
3 months
3 months
12 months
12 months
12 months

Total

Total

Gross actual
remuneration
$20,988
$3,072
$0
$975
$975
$975
$975
$0
$0
$0
$27,960
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Western Australian Aboriginal Advisory Council (WAAAC)
Formation of the Western Australian Aboriginal Advisory Council (WAAAC) represents a unique opportunity to build genuine,
respectful and reciprocal relationships between Aboriginal people and the Western Australian Government to achieve better life
outcomes for Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander men, women and children.
Central to achieving this purpose is working in partnership with the Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander community of Western
Australia. In turn, the State Government will be better placed to address Aboriginal disadvantage by acting on the advice and
direction of the WAAAC and working collaboratively to achieve multiple benefit outcomes.
Details of members and remuneration for the 2015-16 year is provided in the table below:
Position

Name

Type of remuneration

Chair
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Ex-Member

Ian Trust
Gail Allison
Gordon Gray
Troy Eaton
Brenda Garstone
Phil Matera
Krista McMeeken
Carol Pettersen
Colleen Drage

Sitting fees (per meeting attended)
Sitting fees (per meeting attended)
Sitting fees (per meeting attended)
Sitting fees (per meeting attended)
Sitting fees (per meeting attended)
Sitting fees (per meeting attended)
Sitting fees (per meeting attended)
Sitting fees (per meeting attended)
Sitting fees (per meeting attended)

Period of
membership
9 months
12 months
12 months
9 months
9 months
9 months
9 months
9 months
5 months

Total

Total

Gross actual
remuneration
$3,400
$700
$1,750
$1,400
$1,050
$1,050
$1,400
$1,400
$700
$12,850
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No Ministerial directives were received during the financial year.

Other financial disclosures

Pricing policies
The Department does not provide any paid services.
Capital Works
The Department carried out capital expenditure during 2015-16
totalling $1.258 million. For details please see financial
statements from page 71.
Employment and industrial relations
Staffing levels*

2016

2015

Full time permanent

108

107

Full time contract

18

24

Part time (Permanent + contract)

13

15

On secondment

2

5

141

151

Total

*Total headcount comprises all staff currently employed and/or
remunerated by the Department. The sum includes trainees and
attached officers.

Staff Development
The Department has a proactive focus on capacity development, working
closely with partners and stakeholders as part of the Department’s
commitment to continuous improvement in the delivery of services. In
addition to economic and environmental development programs, the
Department supports social benefits to Aboriginal communities.
The Department’s commitment to organisational learning and
development is built on the recognition that its employees underpin all
that the Department does across learning, discovery and engagement.
In addition to skills development to enhance delivery in their role and
identified through performance development processes, including
information systems training, report writing skills, Ministerial writing and
writing policy documents, staff undertook relevant public sector training,
including:
• Accountable and Ethical decision making
• Cultural Awareness
• Occupational Safety and Health for Managers,
• Safety Representative training,
• Equal Opportunity Law and workplace culture.
As at 30 June 2016, 95 per cent of staff have completed essential
training.
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Officers of the Department hold corporate credit cards where their functions warrant usage of this facility.
During the year, one incidence of unauthorised use of credit card was recorded. A regional based departmental officer had an additional single
nights’ personal accommodation inadvertently charged to their corporate credit card when setting the account for their stay in Perth on a
business trip. The hotel charged the account on check in. The officer became aware of the error whilst checking out and immediately brought
matter to the attention of the Chief Finance Officer. The officer repaid personal portion that same day.
The charge was not intentional act by the officer concerned and no further action was taken.
2016
Aggregate amount of personal use expenditure for the reporting period

$185

Aggregate amount of personal use expenditure settled by the due date (within 5 working days)

$185

Aggregate amount of personal use expenditure settled after the period (after 5 working days)

-

Aggregate amount of personal use expenditure outstanding at balance date

-

Governance disclosures
Contracts with senior officers
At 30 June 2016, no senior officers, or firms of which senior officers
are members or entities in which senior officers have substantial
interests, had any interests in existing or proposed contracts with
the Department of Aboriginal Affairs other than normal contracts of
employment for service.

Workers Compensation
No workers compensation claims were recorded during this financial
year.
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Other
legal legal
and government
policy requirements
Other
and government
policy

requirements

•

Expenditure on advertising, market research,
polling and direct mail

•

Disability Access and Inclusion Plan outcomes

•

Compliance with public sector standards and
ethical codes

•

Recordkeeping plans

•

Freedom of Information

•

Substantive equality

•

Occupational Safety, Health and Injury
Management
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Expenditure on advertising, market research, polling and direct mail
In accordance with section 175ZE of the Electoral Act 1907, the
Department incurred the following expenditure for advertising, market
research, polling, direct mail and media advertising.
Total expenditure for the 2015-16 financial year was $20,989.
Expenditure was incurred in the following areas:
Expenditure

Total

Amount

Advertising agencies

$17,246

AdCorp

$17,246

Market research

Nil

Nil

Polling organisations

Nil

Nil

Direct mail
organisations

Media advertising
Total

$3,743

Nil

Createsend

$2,443

Loaded
Communications

$1,300
Nil
$20,989

Disability Access and Inclusion Plan outcomes
The Department’s Disability Access and Inclusion Plan (DAIP)
outlines the strategies that will be to provide an accessible and
inclusive environment for our clients, staff and visitors with
disabilities.
During the year, the Department’s progress was effective and
supports the Department’s objectives in creating equitable and
inclusive access for people with a disability to our facilities, services
and programs across the State. The DAIP affords the Department a
valuable opportunity to signal its commitment to inclusiveness in
daily operations. A summary of the Department’s progress against
each of the DAIP outcomes is provided.
Outcome 1: People with a disability have the same opportunities
as other people to access the services of, and any events
organised by, a public authority.
During 2015-16, the Department planned and implemented six
strategies toward delivery of this outcome.
• Improve management arrangements for the development,
implementation and review of the DAIP.
• Ensure that events are accessible to people with a disability,
through an updated Event Management Guide to include an
updated venue accessibility checklist.
• Integrated DAIP strategies into normal business planning and
reporting.
172

Part 5 – Other legal and government policy requirements

Page 173

• Integrated DAIP strategies into the Department’s People Strategy:
Workforce and Diversity Plan 2016-2020.
• Develop and maintain relationships with other community
organisations to facilitate access and inclusion for people with a
disability.
• Ensure that agents and contractors are aware of the relevant
requirements of the Disability Services Act 1993.
Outcome 2: People with a disability have the same opportunities
as other people to access the Department’s buildings and facilities.
During 2015-16, the Department planned and implemented two
strategies toward delivery of this outcome.
• Ensure all buildings and facilities are physically accessible to
people with a disability.
• Consider access and inclusion in community planning for buildings,
infrastructure. Currently, all Departmental premises are leased
through Building Management and Works / Department of
Finance, with disability access and inclusions included in the lease
coordination process.
Outcome 3: People with a disability receive information from a
public authority in a format that will enable them to access the
information as readily as other people are able to access it.
During 2015-16, the Department planned four strategies toward
delivery of this outcome, and implemented three.
• Ensure all public information is made available in alternative
formats on request, with an inclusion in the “Disclaimer” section
on all recent publications.

• Conduct regular audits of departmental publications to ensure they
comply with the Department’s guidelines for accessible formats.
• Ensure the Department’s website meets the contemporary good
practice and Public Sector Commission’s Web Accessibility Policy
(published July 2011). The Department is compliant with WCAG2.0
level (AA) requirements. The website was redesigned to be
accessible to as many users as possible, including:
• People with disabilities who may use assistive technologies;
• Slower internet connections;
• Rural and regional users; and
• Handheld devices and mobile phones.
Outcome 4: People with a disability receive the same level of service
from the staff of the Department as other people receive from staff
of that public authority.
During 2015-16, the Department planned and implemented three
strategies toward delivery of this outcome.
• Information circulated to staff and available on corporate systems,
promoting the use of resources such as Guidelines for Accessible
Formats, Office Accessibility checklist, and useful disability services
contacts.
• External emails contain signatures with a statement promoting
access and inclusion of people with disabilities through
improvement of access to facilities and services.
• Disability Awareness is promotes with staff across the Department
through induction checklists, inclusion on the OSH committee
agenda, Workforce and Diversity plan, and promotion of events.
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Outcome 5: People with a disability have the same opportunities
as other people to make complaints.
During 2015-16, the Department planned and implemented one
strategy toward delivery of this outcome.
• Review the complaints mechanisms to ensure they meet the
needs of people with a disability.
Outcome 6: People with a disability have the same opportunities
as other people to participate in any public consultation by the
Department. .
During 2015-16, the Department planned and delivered two
strategies toward delivery of this outcome.
• During periods of consultation, draw on the Disability Services
Commission to provide contact details of organisations and
people most suited to be consulted – based on the project or
initiative.
• Ensure meetings and forums held as part of community
consultations comply with the Department’s Venue Accessibility
checklist.
Outcome 7: People with a disability have the same opportunities
as other people to obtain and maintain employment with the
Department.
During 2015-16, the Department planned and implemented four
strategies toward delivery of this outcome.
• Ensure employment advertisements and supporting
documentation is available in alternative formats on request.

• Review recruitment policies, procedures, templates, language and
formats to ensure that they are equitable and inclusive of people
with a disability, as required.
• Ensure job description forms are developed in an inclusive, nondiscriminatory way by focusing on the core duties or inherent
requirements of the job and what is to be achieved, rather than
how it is to be achieved.
• Ensure adequate support services are provided for staff with a
disability and remind staff about the purposes and processes for
disclosing a disability to their employer.
Compliance with public sector standards and ethical codes
The Department is committed to achieving government policy
objectives through its organisational and workforce frameworks and
standards to which Executive, managers, and decision makers are
accountable.
In accordance with section 31(1) of the Public Sector Management Act
1994, (the Act) the Department has complied with the Public Sector
Standards and Code of Ethics.
The Department complies with the employment principles of the Act
and has updated policies and procedures to advance these principles.
During the year, the Department reviewed and launched a new Code
of Conduct, applying to all staff and affiliates of the Department under
one set of standards.
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The Department’s values are aligned with the Public Sector values
and implemented through the Department in many ways, including
performance planning. The Department implements values
through its end-to-end employment policies, programs and
resources including Employment Performance Agreements, to
strengthen the alignment of employee and manager behaviour
with the values and employment principles.
The Department continues to provide Aboriginal employment
opportunities through the School Based Traineeship and the
Aboriginal Traineeship programs.
Recruiting people with the right skills set is essential in delivering
high quality and responsive services to the Department and the
wider Public Sector. The recruitment fundamental principle is that
selection is made on merit and based upon fair and open
competition, without bias and prejudice. The principles of merit,
equity and diversity and procedural fairness are integral to the
recruitment process. The Department focussed on continual
improvement of all policies and procedures.
In accordance with the Public Sector Commissioner’s Circular
2009—03, it is expected that all public sector employees will
receive training in Accountable and Ethical Decision Making.
During the year, the Department conducted an intensive program
of training, including Accountable and Ethical Decision Making and
Cultural Awareness. To date, 95 per cent of staff have participated
in essential training.

In the 2015-16 period, no breach claims against the Public Sector
Commissioner’s Employment Standard were received.
There were no formal grievance claims received by the Department
during the year.
Recordkeeping plans
The Department continues to operate with its Record Keeping Plan
which was approved for a period of five years by the State Records
Commission on 5th December 2014. This was a requirement under
section 28 of the State Records Act 2000.
The Department has a large volume of critical and sensitive
records associated with comprehensive cultural awareness
information, training is provided to staff on understanding cultural
and the traditional Aboriginal values. These values need to be
applied with staff and the community when accessing and viewing
such records. Access provisions to these records can be viewed on
the Department’s website www.daa.wa.gov.au.
A new Electronic Document Management System has enabled the
Department to continue to improve the integration of
recordkeeping with its key business operating systems. This reflects
the Department’s commitment to improve and streamline
recordkeeping processes by automatically generating electronic
records from its corporate business systems.
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Freedom of Information
The Freedom of Information Act 1992 (FOI Act) created a general
right of access to documents held by State and local government
agencies. In compliance with Part 5 of the FOI Act, this Annual
Report serves the purpose as an Information Statement.

By mail
FOI Coordinator
Department of Aboriginal Affairs
PO Box 3153
East Perth WA 6892

A description of the kinds of documents held by the Department
and arrangements for accessing those records can be viewed on
the Department’s website www.daa.wa.gov.au.
A formal Freedom of Information (FOI) application is required to
access documents that are not available as part of the
Department’s normal course of business.

Fees and charges
• The rate of fees and charges are set under the FOI Act.
• Application fee for non-personal information is $30.00.
• There are no fees for applications for personal information
about the applicant.
• Charges for dealing with the application are set at a standard
rate of $30.00 per hour, or pro rata for a part of an hour.
• Charges for supervising inspection of documents are set at a
standard rate of $30.00 per hour, or pro rata for a part of an
• hour.
• Charges for photocopying are $30.00 per hour, or pro rata for a
part of an hour for staff time and 20 cents per copy.
• Charges for time taken by staff transcribing information from a
tape or other device are set at a standard rate of $30.00 per
hour, or pro rata for a part of an hour.
• Charges for duplicating a tape, film or computer information will
be the actual cost.
• Charges for delivery, packaging and postage will be the actual
cost.

Freedom of Information applications for 2015-16
During 2015-16, the Department received 11 valid FOI applications.
Lodgement of Freedom of Information applications
FOI applications, payment of application fees and any associated
charges, if applicable, should be directed to the FOI Coordinator:
In person at the DAA East Perth Office
FOI Coordinator
Department of Aboriginal Affairs
Ground Floor, 151 Royal Street
East Perth WA 6004
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Processing applications
The Director General for the Department has
delegated authority for making initial decisions
to the FOI Coordinator, and conducting
internal reviews into applications under the
FOI Act to the Department’s Principal Legal
Officer.
The Department’s FOI Coordinator is
responsible for administering the process of
FOI applications within the Department and is
the initial contact point for members of the
community, applicants, third parties, the
Office of the Information Commissioner and
other public sector agencies for all FOI related
matters.
Notice of decision
Applicants are provided with written notice of
the Department’s decision compliant with
section 30 of the FOI Act, which includes the
following information:
• date of the decision;
• name and designation of the decision
maker;
• reasons for deleting any matter;
• reasons for deferring access;
• arrangements for giving access;

• reasons for refusing access to any matter;
• the amount and basis for any charges
levied; and
• the rights of review and procedures to be
followed.

internal review decision (30 days for third
parties). The Commissioner’s decision is final
unless an appeal is made to the Supreme Court
on a question of law.

Amendment of personal information
Review rights
Individuals have the right to apply for
The FOI Act provides the applicant or third
amendment to personal information about
party the right to have the Department’s initial them, contained in a document of the agency, if
decision reviewed. A written request for a
they believe the information is inaccurate,
review of that decision must be submitted
incomplete, out-of-date or misleading.
within 30 days after being given notice of the Applications must be made in writing to the
decision. There is no lodgement fee payable
Department’s FOI Coordinator giving sufficient
for an internal review.
details to identify the document and the matter,
which the person believes to be inaccurate,
The review will be conducted by a person
incomplete, out-of-date, or misleading and
other than the person who made the original their reasons for believing this to be the case.
decision, and is not subordinate to that
person. In the Department, that responsibility The person must give details of the amendment
is assigned to the Principal Legal Officer. The
they want and provide an address for contact.
Department must complete the review and
provide a written notice of decision within 15 Written notice of the initial decision must be
days.
provided to the applicant, setting out the
reasons for the decision and the applicant’s
If the applicant or third party is still not
review rights.
satisfied, then they may lodge a written
complaint with the Office of the Information
Commissioner within 60 days following the
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Substantive equality
The Department seeks to provide substantive equality rather than
mere formal equality to ensure discrimination is eliminated to the
greatest possible extent.
The Department recognises that equal of the same application of
rules and processes to unequal groups can have unequal results.
The Department recognises that access to opportunities is not
equitably distributed throughout society, and equality in terms of
outcomes as well as equal opportunity is required to address the
social and economic costs of discrimination.
The Department is committed to actively eliminate discrimination
where possible. The Accountable Government Directorate is in
place to improve the delivery from government investments for
Aboriginal people. This is achieved with a coordinated whole of
government investment decision making to achieve substantial
change in people’s lives. The Directorate is set up to improve the
capability to monitor and audit quality and impact of investment in
services for Aboriginal people.
The Department has undertaken ongoing improvements in service
delivery including more workshops and forums with Aboriginal
people and groups, more personalised services and greater access
to Aboriginal family history information, and inclusive recruitment
procedures. As a result of these, the Department holds a strong
diversity profile, with strong representation from Aboriginal people
within the Department.

Occupational Safety, Health and Injury Management
The Department continued to promote a proactive approach to
work health and safety. It is our belief that injuries are
preventable. Health and safety is the responsibility of everyone
and all workers and visitors play an important role in contributing
to a healthy and safe workplace.
During the year the most significant workplace health and safety
initiatives were:
• Continuing workstation assessments and, where needed,
rehabilitation case management services to meet the health,
safety and rehabilitation needs of the workforce.
• Making the flu vaccination program available to all staff.
• Conducting regular campaigns encouraging staff to use services
provided by the Department's Employee Assistance Program
provider.
The Department became corporate member with some private
health insurance providers in order to provide employees who are
existing (and new) member of the selected insurers to obtain a
discount off their health insurance premiums while they are
employed at the Department.
A Blood Donation group was also formed to encourage employees
to participate in the program.
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The Department’s Executive is responsible for ensuring effective
health and safety management, monitoring performance and
providing appropriate health and safety assurances in their area of
responsibility. The Department’s Executive ensured that the
implementation and maintenance of an effective health and safety
management across the Department that is consistent with the
Occupational Safety and Health Act 1981 and other legislative
requirements.
The Department continues to evolve the Health and Safety
Management System through a process of continuous
improvement with a focus to manage health and safety risks. This
is achieved through consultation with workers, the Safety and
Health Committee and Safety and Health Representatives with the
objective to prevent workplace injury and illness.
The Department continues to provide appropriate health and
safety training and update information for all employees to access
via the Department’s intranet site.
Employees are highly valued, and the Department is committed to
preventing injury and illness by providing a safe and healthy work
environment, and is equally committed to assisting staff who
sustain an injury or illness to return to their pre-injury or illness
status. This is achieved by working collaboratively with employees
and a team of professionals to facilitate a safe return to meaningful
work, and in accordance with the Workers’ Compensation and
Injury Management Act 1981.

Managers are also provided with assistance to promote the
prevention and better management of workplace injury or illness.
Medical Practitioners and Approved Vocational Rehabilitation
Provider (AVRPs) provide assistance in the injury management
process in a number of ways including:
• work assessments,
• clarification of duties to ensure a safe return to work is
undertaken;
• worksite or job modifications, which may include advising on
the use of aids and equipment in the workplace;
• vocational assessments, retraining and placement assistance
where an injured employee is unable to resume their pre-injury
duties; and undertaking a Functional Capacity Evaluation to
determine how much work an injured employee can perform.
All findings of the AVRPs assessment are discussed with the injured
employee, the Department and the treating medical practitioner.
The Manager in consultation with the employee, treating medical
practitioner, Director Human Resources, insurer and AVRP will
monitor the employee’s progress towards the Return To Work
(RTW) goal. The RTW goal and program is amended as required.
Should it be necessary for the Department to implement a RTW
program for an employee a commitment is made to monitor the
percentage of agreed actions
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The Department remains compliance with Occupational Safety and Health legislation, Workers’ Compensation and relevant policies.
During the year, the Department commenced a review of policies, practices and equipment for long distance and regional road travel,
and procedures relating to non-employee and volunteers travelling for Departmental business. These are expected to be finalised in the
next financial year.
A summary of the Department’s performance in Occupational safety, health and injury management is provided.
Measure

Actual
2015-16
Zero (0)

Target

Number of fatalities

Actual
2014-15
Zero (0)

Comment

0

Meets target

Lost Time Injury/disease incidence rate

Zero (0)

Zero (0)

0

Consistent with last 3 years’ figures

Lost time injury severity rate

Zero (0)

Zero (0)

0

Consistent with 2014-15

Percentage of injured workers returned
to work within (i) 13 weeks and (ii) 26
weeks

N/A

N/A

N/A

Percentage of managers and supervisors
trained in occupational safety, health
and injury management responsibilities

76 per cent

79 per cent

N/A refer above

Courses are provided annually, and managers
and new managers are scheduled to complete
as required.
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